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This Annual Report on Form 10-K, together with other statements and information publicly disseminated by the Company, contains certain forward-
looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. The Company intends such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and includes this statement, for purposes of complying with these safe harbor provisions. Forward-looking
statements, which are based on certain assumptions and describe the Company’s future plans, strategies and expectations, are generally identifiable by use of
the words “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “project” or similar expressions. You should not rely on forward-looking statements since
they involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that are, in some cases, beyond the Company’s control and which could materially
affect actual results, performances or achievements. Factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from current expectations include, but are not
limited to, the risk factors discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Accordingly, there is no assurance that the Company’s expectations will be realized.
Except as otherwise required by the federal securities laws, the Company disclaims any obligations or undertaking to publicly release any updates or revisions
to any forward-looking statement contained herein (or elsewhere) to reflect any change in the Company’s expectations with regard thereto or any change in
events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.
 

The “Company” means LaSalle Hotel Properties, a Maryland real estate investment trust, and one or more of its subsidiaries (including LaSalle Hotel
Operating Partnership, L.P. (the “Operating Partnership”) and LaSalle Hotel Lessee, Inc. (“LHL”)), or, as the context may require, LaSalle Hotel Properties
only or the Operating Partnership only.
 

PART I
 
Item 1. Business
 
General
 The Company was organized as a Maryland real estate investment trust on January 15, 1998 to buy, own and lease primarily upscale and luxury full-
service hotels located in convention, resort and major urban business markets. As of December 31, 2004, the Company owned interests in 19 hotels with
approximately 6,300 rooms/suites located in ten states and the District of Columbia. Independent hotel operators manage the hotels. The Company is a self-
managed and self-administered real estate investment trust (“REIT”) as defined in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). A REIT is a
legal entity that holds real estate interests, and that may reduce its federal taxable income to the extent it distributes taxable dividends to its shareholders.
 

Substantially all of the Company’s assets are held by, and all of its operations are conducted through, LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. The
Company is the sole general partner of the operating partnership with an approximate 98.7% ownership interest at December 31, 2004. The remaining 1.3% is
held by limited partners who hold 383,090 limited partnership units. Limited partnership units are redeemable for cash or, at the option of the Company, for a
like number of common shares of beneficial interest, par value $0.01 per share, of the Company. The hotels are leased under participating leases that provide
for rental payments equal to the greater of (i) base rent or (ii) participating rent based on fixed percentages of gross hotel revenues.
 

The Company’s principal offices are located at 3 Bethesda Metro Center, Suite 1200, Bethesda, MD 20814. The Company’s website is
www.lasallehotels.com. The Company makes available on its website free of charge its filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including its
Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports.
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Strategies and Objectives
 The Company’s primary objectives are to provide a stable stream of income to its shareholders through increases in distributable cash flow and to
increase long-term total returns to shareholders through appreciation in the value of its common shares of beneficial interest. To achieve these objectives, the
Company seeks to:
 
 •  enhance the return from, and the value of, the hotels in which it owns interests and any additional hotels the Company may acquire or develop; and
 
 •  invest in or acquire additional hotel properties on favorable terms.
 

The Company seeks to achieve revenue growth principally through:
 
 •  renovations, repositioning and/or expansions at selected hotels;
 
 

•  acquisitions of full-service hotels located in convention, resort and major urban business markets in the U.S. and abroad, especially upscale and
luxury full-service hotels in such markets where the Company perceives strong demand growth or significant barriers to entry; and

 
 

•  selective development of hotel properties, particularly upscale and luxury full-service hotels in high demand markets where development economics
are favorable.

 
The Company intends to acquire additional hotels in targeted markets, consistent with the growth strategies outlined above and which may:

 
 •  possess unique competitive advantages in the form of location, physical facilities or other attributes;
 
 

•  be available at significant discounts to replacement cost, including when such discounts result from reduced competition for hotels with long-term
management and/or franchise agreements;

 
 

•  benefit from brand or franchise conversion, new management, renovations or redevelopment or other active and aggressive asset management
strategies; or

 
 •  have expansion opportunities.
 

The Company seeks to grow through strategic relationships with premier, internationally recognized hotel operating companies including: Westin Hotels
and Resorts, Sheraton Hotels and Resorts Worldwide, Inc., Crestline Hotels & Resorts, Inc., Outrigger Lodging Services, Noble House Hotels and Resorts,
Hyatt Hotels Corporation, Kimpton Hotel & Restaurant Group, L.L.C., Benchmark Hospitality, White Lodging Services Corporation, Davidson Hotel
Company and Sandcastle Resorts & Hotels. The Company believes that having multiple independent operators creates a network that will generate acquisition
opportunities. In addition, the Company believes its acquisition capabilities are enhanced by its considerable experience, resources and relationships in the
hotel industry specifically and the real estate industry generally.
 
Hotel Acquisitions
 The Company acquired ten upscale and luxury full-service hotels in connection with its initial public offering. The Company has since sold five of
these hotels. In addition to continuing to hold five hotels acquired in connection with its IPO, the Company has acquired the following hotel interests:
 
 •  100% interest in the 462-room San Diego Paradise Point Resort for a net purchase price of $73.0 million in June 1998;
 
 •  the 270-room Harborside Hyatt Conference Center & Hotel in Boston, Massachusetts for a net purchase price of $73.5 million in June 1998;
 
 •  the 222-room Hotel Viking in Newport, Rhode Island for a net purchase price of $28.0 million in June 1999;
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•  the 1,192-room Chicago Marriott Downtown in January 2000 through a joint venture with The Carlyle Group, an institutional investor. The

Company has a non-controlling 9.9% equity interest and is entitled to receive an annual preferred return and the opportunity to earn an incentive
participation in net sale proceeds in the event the hotel is sold or refinanced;

 

 

•  four full-service hotels in Washington, D.C. (the “D.C. Collection”) with a total of 496 guestrooms for an aggregate net purchase price of
approximately $42.5 million in March 2001. All four hotels (the Topaz Hotel, the Hotel Rouge, the Hotel Madera and the Hotel Helix) have been
fully renovated, improved and repositioned as unique high-end, independent hotels. The aggregate cost of renovating and repositioning the four
hotels was approximately $32.7 million;

 
 

•  the 343-room Holiday Inn on the Hill, a full-service hotel located on Capitol Hill in Washington, D.C., for a net purchase price of approximately
$44.0 million in June 2001;

 
 

•  the 296-room Lansdowne Resort, a full-service golf resort and conference center located in Lansdowne, Virginia, for a purchase price of
approximately $115.8 million, in June 2003;

 
 

•  the 139-room Hotel George, a luxury urban hotel located on Capitol Hill in Washington, D.C., for a purchase price of approximately $24.1 million,
in September 2003. The Company includes the Hotel George as part of the D.C. Collection;

 
 

•  the 615-room Indianapolis Marriott Downtown, a full-service convention hotel located in downtown Indianapolis, Indiana, for a purchase price of
approximately $106.0 million, in February 2004;

 
 

•  the 241-room Hilton Alexandria Old Town, an upscale full-service hotel located in historic downtown Alexandria, Virginia, for a purchase price of
approximately $59.0 million, in May 2004;

 
 

•  the 153-room Chaminade, a resort and executive conference center located in Santa Cruz, California, for a purchase price of approximately $18.5
million, in November 2004.

 
Additionally, subsequent to December 31,2004, the Company acquired the following hotel interests:
 
 

•  the 282-room Hilton San Diego Gaslamp Quarter, a full-service upscale urban hotel located in downtown San Diego, California, for a purchase
price of approximately $85.0 million, in January 2005; and

 
 

•  the 108-room Grafton on Sunset, an upscale full-service hotel located in West Hollywood, California, for a purchase price of approximately $25.5
million, in January 2005.

 
Recent Developments
 On January 6, 2005, the Company acquired a 100% interest in the Hilton San Diego Gaslamp Quarter, a 282-room upscale full-service hotel located in
the Gaslamp historic district in downtown San Diego, California, for $85.0 million. The source of the funding for the acquisition was the Company’s senior
unsecured bank facility. The property is leased to LHL, and Davidson Hotel Company was retained to manage the property.
 

On January 10, 2005, the Company acquired a 100% interest in the Grafton on Sunset, a 108-room, upscale full-service hotel located in West
Hollywood, California, for $25.5 million. The source of the funding for the acquisition was the Company’s senior unsecured bank facility. The property is
leased to LHL, and Outrigger Lodging Services was retained to manage the property.
 
Hotel Dipositions
 In September 2004, the Company sold the Omaha Marriott for a net sale proceeds of approximately $28.6 million because the hotel was no longer
considered consistent with the Company’s long-term portfolio strategy. The Company has since redeployed these net proceeds in markets that it believes exhibit
stronger fundamentals.
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Hotel Renovations
 The Company believes that its regular program of capital improvements at the hotels, including replacement and refurbishment of furniture, fixtures
and equipment, helps maintain and enhance its competitiveness and maximizes revenue growth under the participating leases. During the year ended December
31, 2004, the Company invested approximately $37.2 million on renovations and additional capital improvements at the hotels. The Company plans to invest
approximately $55.0 million on renovations and additional capital improvements at its hotel properties during 2005. As of December 31, 2004, purchase
orders and letters of commitment totaling approximately $15.0 million had been issued for renovations at the hotels. The Company has committed to these
projects and anticipates making similar arrangements with the existing hotels or any future hotels that it may acquire. Any unexpended amounts will remain
the property of the Company upon termination of the participating leases.
 
Tax Status
 The Company has elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Code. As a result, the Company generally is not subject to
corporate income tax on that portion of its net income that is currently distributed to shareholders. A REIT is subject to a number of highly technical and
complex organizational and operational requirements, including requirements with respect to the nature of its gross income and assets and a requirement that it
currently distribute at least 90% of its taxable income. The Company may, however, be subject to certain state and local taxes on its income and property.
 

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company elected to operate its wholly-owned subsidiary, LaSalle Hotel Lessee, Inc. (“LHL”), as provided for under the
REIT Modernization Act as a taxable-REIT subsidiary. Accordingly, LHL is required to pay income taxes at the applicable rates.
 
Seasonality
 The hotels’ operations historically have been seasonal. The hotels maintain higher occupancy rates during the second and third quarters. The Seaview
Marriott Resort and Spa and Lansdowne Resort, which generate a portion of their revenues from golf-related business, have revenues that fluctuate according
to the season and the weather. These seasonality patterns can be expected to cause fluctuations in the Company’s quarterly lease revenue under the participating
leases with third-party lessees and hotel operating revenue from LHL.
 
Competition
 The hotel industry is highly competitive. Each of the hotels is located in a developed area that includes other hotel properties. The number of competitive
hotel properties in a particular area could have a material adverse effect on occupancy, average daily rate and room revenue per available room of the
Company’s current hotels or at hotels acquired in the future. The Company may be competing for investment opportunities with entities that have
substantially greater financial resources than the Company. These entities may generally be able to accept more risk than the Company can prudently manage,
including risks with respect to the creditworthiness of a hotel operator or the geographic proximity of its investments. Competition may generally reduce the
number of suitable investment opportunities offered to the Company and increase the bargaining power of property owners seeking to sell.
 
Environmental Matters
 In connection with the ownership of hotels, the Company is subject to various federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations relating to
environmental protection. Under these laws, a current or previous owner or operator of real estate may be liable for the costs of removal or remediation of
certain hazardous or toxic substances on, under, or in such property. Such laws often impose liability without regard to whether the owner
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or operator knew of, or was responsible for, the presence of hazardous or toxic substances. In addition, the presence of contamination from hazardous or toxic
substances, or the failure to remediate such contaminated property properly, may adversely affect the owner’s ability to borrow using such property as
collateral. Furthermore, a person who arranges for the disposal or treatment of a hazardous or toxic substance at a property owned by another, or who
transports such substance to or from such property, may be liable for the costs of removal or remediation of such substance released into the environment at
the disposal or treatment facility. The costs of remediation or removal of such substances may be substantial, and the presence of such substances may
adversely affect the owner’s ability to sell such real estate or to borrow using such real estate as collateral. In connection with the ownership of hotels the
Company may be potentially liable for such costs.
 

The Company believes that its hotels are in compliance, in all material respects, with all federal, state and local environmental ordinances and
regulations regarding hazardous or toxic substances and other environmental matters, the violation of which could have a material adverse effect on the
Company. The Company has not received written notice from any governmental authority of any material noncompliance, liability or claim relating to
hazardous or toxic substances or other environmental matters in connection with any of its present properties.
 
Employees
 The Company had 23 employees as of February 15, 2005. All persons employed in the day-to-day operations of the hotels are employees of the
management companies engaged by the lessees to operate such hotels.
 
Additional Information
 The Company has made available copies of the charters of its board committees, its code of ethics and conduct, its corporate governance guidelines and
its whistleblower policy on its website at www.lasallehotels.com. Copies of these documents are available in print to any shareholder who requests them.
Requests should be sent to LaSalle Hotel Properties, 3 Bethesda Metro Center, Suite 1200, Bethesda, Maryland, 20814. Attn: Hans S. Weger, Corporate
Secretary.
 
Risk Factors
 
Additional Factors that May Affect Future Results
 The following risk factors and other information included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K should be carefully considered. The risks and
uncertainties described below are not the only ones the Company faces. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Company or that it may
currently deem immaterial also may impair its business operations. If any of the following risks occur, the Company’s business, financial condition,
operating results and cash flows could be materially adversely affected.
 
The Company’s return on its hotels depends upon the ability of the lessees and the hotel operators to operate and manage the hotels
 To maintain its status as a REIT, the Company is not permitted to operate any of its hotels. As a result, the Company is unable to directly implement
strategic business decisions with respect to the operation and marketing of its hotels, such as decisions with respect to the setting of room rates, repositioning
of a hotel, food and beverage prices and certain similar matters. Although it consults with the lessees and hotel operators with respect to strategic business
plans, the lessees and hotel operators are under no obligation to implement any of the Company’s recommendations with respect to such matters.
 

5



Table of Contents

The Company’s performance and its ability to make distributions on its capital shares are subject to risks associated with the hotel industry
 Competition for Guests, Increases in Operating Costs, Dependence on Travel and Economic Conditions Could Adversely Affect the Company’s
Cash Flow.    The hotels are subject to all operating risks common to the hotel industry. These risks include:
 
 •  competition for guests and meetings from other hotels including competition from internet wholesalers and distributors;
 
 

•  increases in operating costs, including wages, benefits, insurance, property taxes and energy, due to inflation and other factors, which may not be
offset in the future by increased room rates;

 
 •  dependence on demand from business and leisure travelers, which may fluctuate and be seasonal;
 
 •  increases in energy costs, airline fares and other expenses related to travel, which may negatively impact traveling;
 
 •  terrorism alerts and warnings and military actions such as the war in Iraq, which may cause decreases in business and leisure travel; and
 
 •  adverse effects of weak general and local economic conditions.
 

These factors could adversely affect the ability of the lessees to generate revenues and to make rental payments to the Company.
 

Unexpected Capital Expenditures Could Adversely Affect the Company’s Cash Flow .    Hotels require ongoing renovations and other capital
improvements, including periodic replacement or refurbishment of furniture, fixtures and equipment. Under the terms of its leases, the Company is obligated
to pay the cost of certain capital expenditures at the hotels and to pay for periodic replacement or refurbishment of furniture, fixtures and equipment. If capital
expenditures exceed expectations, there can be no assurance that sufficient sources of financing will be available to fund such expenditures. In addition, the
Company may acquire hotels in the future that require significant renovation. Renovation of hotels involves numerous risks, including the possibility of
environmental problems, construction cost overruns and delays, the impact on current demand, uncertainties as to market demand or deterioration in market
demand after commencement of renovation and the emergence of unanticipated competition from other hotels.
 
The Company’s obligation to comply with financial covenants in its senior unsecured bank facility and mortgages on some of its hotel properties
could restrict its range of operating activities
 The Company has a senior unsecured bank facility with a syndicate of banks, which provides for a maximum borrowing of up to $300.0 million. The
senior unsecured bank facility matures on December 31, 2006 and has a one-year extension option. Funding for the new unsecured bank facility occurred on
August 30, 2004, at which time it replaced the Company’s prior senior unsecured bank facility. The senior unsecured bank facility contains certain financial
covenants relating to debt service coverage, minimum tangible net worth and total funded indebtedness.
 

The Company’s bank facility contains financial covenants that could restrict its ability to incur additional indebtedness or make distributions on its
common shares. The senior unsecured bank facility contains certain financial covenants relating to debt service coverage, net worth and total funded
indebtedness; it also contains financial covenants that, assuming no continuing defaults, allow the Company to make shareholder distributions which, when
combined with the distributions to shareholders in the three immediately preceding fiscal quarters, do not exceed the greater of (i) funds from operations from
the preceding four-quarter rolling period or (ii) the greater of (a) the amount of distributions required for the Company to maintain its status as a REIT or (b)
the amount required to ensure that the Company will avoid imposition of an excise tax for failure to make certain
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minimum distributions on a calendar-year basis. Availability under the bank facility may be reduced by hotel financing that the Company obtains outside the
bank facility. Pursuant to the bank facility, the amount of outside financing is limited to specified levels. If the Company is unable to borrow under the bank
facility, it could adversely affect the Company’s financial condition.
 

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, LHL, has a senior unsecured bank facility with U.S Bank National Association, which provides for a
maximum borrowing of up to $25.0 million. The senior unsecured bank facility matures on December 31, 2006. The senior unsecured bank facility contains
certain financial covenants relating to debt service coverage, minimum tangible net worth and total funded indebtedness.
 

The Sheraton Bloomington Hotel Minneapolis South, Westin City Center Dallas, Le Montrose Suite Hotel, San Diego Paradise Point Resort,
Indianapolis Marriott Downtown and Hilton Alexandria Old Town are each mortgaged to secure payment of indebtedness aggregating approximately $211.8
million as of December 31, 2004. The Harborside Hyatt Conference Center & Hotel is mortgaged to secure payment of principal and interest on bonds with an
aggregate par value of approximately $42.5 million. In addition, the joint venture that owns the Chicago Marriott Downtown in which the Company holds a
non-controlling 9.9% ownership interest is mortgaged to secure payment of indebtedness of $140.0 million. The Company’s prorate share of the loan is
approximately $13.9 million. If the Company is unable to meet mortgage payments, the mortgage securing the specific property could be foreclosed upon by,
or the property could be otherwise transferred to, the mortgagee with a consequent loss of income and asset value to the Company. From time to time, the
Company may mortgage additional hotels to secure payment of additional indebtedness.
 
The Company’s performance is subject to real estate industry conditions and the terms of our leases
 Because Real Estate Investments Are Illiquid, the Company May Not Be Able to Sell Hotels When Desired .    Real estate investments generally
cannot be sold quickly. The Company may not be able to vary its portfolio promptly in response to economic or other conditions. In addition, provisions of
the Code limit a REIT’s ability to sell properties in some situations when it may be economically advantageous to do so.
 

Liability for Environmental Matters Could Adversely Affect the Company’s Financial Condition .    As an owner of real property, the Company is
subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment that may require a current or previous owner of real
estate to investigate and clean-up hazardous or toxic substances at a property. These laws often impose such liability without regard to whether the owner knew
of or caused the presence of the contaminants, and liability is not limited under the enactments and could exceed the value of the property and/or the aggregate
assets of the owner. Persons who arrange for the disposal or treatment of hazardous or toxic substances may also be liable for the clean-up costs of the
substances at a disposal or treatment facility, whether or not such facility is owned or operated by the person. Even if more than one person were responsible
for the contamination, each person covered by the environmental laws may be held responsible for the entire amount of clean-up costs incurred.
 

Environmental laws also govern the presence, maintenance and removal of asbestos-containing materials. These laws impose liability for release of
asbestos-containing materials into the air and third parties may seek recovery from owners or operators of real properties for personal injury associated with
asbestos-containing materials. In connection with ownership (direct or indirect) of its hotels, the Company may be considered an owner or operator of
properties with asbestos-containing materials. Having arranged for the disposal or treatment of contaminants, the Company may be potentially liable for
removal, remediation and other costs, including governmental fines and injuries to persons and property.
 

The Costs of Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act Could Adversely Affect the Company’s Cash Flow .    Under the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, all public accommodations are required to meet certain federal requirements related to access and use by disabled persons. A
determination that the
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Company is not in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 could result in imposition of fines or an award of damages to private
litigants.
 

Certain Leases and Management Agreements May Constrain the Company from Acting in the Best Interests of Shareholders or Require it to
Make Certain Payments.     The Harborside Hyatt Conference Center & Hotel, the San Diego Paradise Point Resort, Indianapolis Marriott Downtown and one
of two golf courses, the Pines, at Seaview Marriott Resort and Spa are each subject to a ground lease with a third-party lessor. The ground leases for the
Indianapolis Marriott Downtown and the Pines golf course at Seaview Marriott Resort and Spa are each for one dollar per year. In order for the Company to sell
any of these hotels or to assign its leasehold interest in any of these ground leases, it must first obtain the consent of the relevant third-party lessor. The
Sheraton Bloomington Hotel Minneapolis South is also subject to a ground lease with a third-party lessor; third-party lessor consent is required to assign the
leasehold interest unless the assignment is in conjunction with the sale of the hotel. Accordingly, if the Company determines that the sale of any of these hotels
or the assignment of its leasehold interest in any of these ground leases is in the best interest of its shareholders, the Company may be prevented from
completing such a transaction if it is unable to obtain the required consent from the relevant lessor.
 

In some instances, the Company may be required to obtain the consent of the hotel operator or franchisor prior to selling the hotel. Typically, such
consent is only required in connection with certain proposed sales, such as if the proposed purchaser is engaged in the operation of a competing hotel or does
not meet certain minimum financial requirements. Hotels where operator approval of certain sales may be required include the Chicago Marriott Downtown and
Harborside Hyatt Conference Center & Hotel.
 

The Westin City Center Dallas is a unit of a commercial condominium complex and is subject to a right of first refusal in favor of the owner of the
remaining condominium units. The Hilton San Diego Gaslamp Quarter is a unit of a commercial condominium complex and is not subject to a right of first
refusal by the owner of the remaining condominium units. In addition, the Company is subject to certain rights of first refusal or similar rights with respect to
the following hotels: Hotel Viking, LaGuardia Airport Marriott, Seaview Marriott Resort and Spa and Indianapolis Marriott Downtown. Similarly, the operator
of the D.C. Collection hotels has a right of first offer and a right of first refusal, excluding the Hotel George, if any of the hotels is sold other than through a
public bidding process. Finally, the Company is subject to franchisor’s certain rights of first offer with respect to the Hilton Alexandria Old Town.
 

If the Company determines to terminate a lease with a third-party lessee (other than in connection with a default by such lessee), it may be required to
pay a termination fee calculated based upon the value of the lease.
 
Increases in interest rates may increase our interest expense
 As of December 31, 2004, approximately $56.4 million of aggregate indebtedness (21.0% of total indebtedness) was subject to variable interest rates.
The aggregate indebtedness balance includes the Company’s $13.9 million pro rata portion of indebtedness relating to the Company’s joint venture investment
in the Chicago Marriott Downtown hotel. An increase in interest rates could increase the Company’s interest expense and reduce its cash flow and its ability to
make distributions to shareholders and to service its indebtedness.
 
Failure to qualify as a REIT would be costly
 The Company has operated (and intends to so operate in the future) so as to qualify as a REIT under the Code beginning with its taxable year ended
December 31, 1998. Although management believes that the Company is organized and operated in a manner to so qualify, no assurance can be given that the
Company will qualify or remain qualified as a REIT.
 

If the Company fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, it will be subject to federal income tax (including any applicable alternative minimum tax)
on its taxable income at regular corporate rates. Moreover,
 

8



Table of Contents

unless entitled to relief under certain statutory provisions, the Company also will be disqualified from treatment as a REIT for the four taxable years following
the year during which qualification was lost. This treatment would cause the Company to incur additional tax liabilities and would significantly impair the
Company’s ability to service indebtedness, and reduce the amount of cash available to make new investments or to make distributions on its common shares
of beneficial interest and preferred shares.
 
Property ownership through partnerships and joint ventures could limit the Company’s control of those investments
 Partnership or joint venture investments may involve risks not otherwise present for investments made solely by the Company, including the possibility
that its co-investors might become bankrupt, might at any time have different interests or goals from those of the Company, and may take action contrary to
the Company’s instructions, requests, policies or objectives, including its policy with respect to maintaining its qualification as a REIT. Other risks of joint
venture investments include an impasse on decisions, such as a sale, because neither the Company’s co-investors nor the Company would have full control
over the partnership or joint venture. There is no limitation under the Company’s organizational documents as to the amount of funds that may be invested in
partnerships or joint ventures.
 
Tax consequences upon a sale or refinancing of properties may result in conflicts of interest
 Holders of units of limited partnership interest in the operating partnership or co-investors in properties not owned entirely by the Company may suffer
different and more adverse tax consequences than the Company upon the sale or refinancing of properties. The Company may have different objectives from
these co-investors and unitholders regarding the appropriate pricing and timing of any sale or refinancing of these properties. While the Company, as the sole
general partner of the operating partnership, has the exclusive authority as to whether and on what terms to sell or refinance each property owned solely by the
operating partnership, some of its trustees who have interests in units of limited partnership may seek to influence the Company not to sell or refinance the
properties, even though such a sale might otherwise be financially advantageous to it, or may seek to influence the Company to refinance a property with a
higher level of debt.
 
The Company may not have enough insurance
 The Company carries comprehensive liability, fire, flood, earthquake, extended coverage and business interruption policies that insure it against losses
with policy specifications and insurance limits that the Company believes are reasonable. There are certain types of losses that management may decide not to
insure against since the cost of insuring is not economical. The Company may suffer losses that exceed its insurance coverage. Further, market conditions,
changes in building codes and ordinances or other factors such as environmental laws may make it too expensive to repair or replace a property that has been
damaged or destroyed, even if covered by insurance.
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Item 2. Properties
 
Hotel Properties
 At December 31, 2004, the Company owned interests in the following 19 hotel properties:
 

Property

  

Number of
Rooms/Suites

  

Location

  1.    Sheraton Bloomington Hotel Minneapolis South*   5 6 5  Bloomington, MN
  2.    Westin City Center Dallas *   407  Dallas, TX
  3.    Seaview Marriott Resort and Spa   297  Galloway, NJ (Atlantic City)
  4.    Le Montrose Suite Hotel *   133  West Hollywood, CA
  5.    LaGuardia Airport Marriott   438  New York, NY
  6.    San Diego Paradise Point Resort *   462  San Diego, CA
  7.    Harborside Hyatt Conference Center & Hotel *   270  Boston, MA
  8.    Hotel Viking   222  Newport, RI
  9.    Chicago Marriott Downtown *   1,192  Chicago, IL
10.    Topaz Hotel   9 9  Washington, D.C.
11.    Hotel Rouge   137  Washington, D.C.
12.    Hotel Madera   82  Washington, D.C.
13.    Hotel Helix   178  Washington, D.C.
14.    Hotel George   139  Washington, D.C.
15.    Holiday Inn on the Hill   343  Washington, D.C.
16.    Lansdowne Resort   296  Lansdowne, VA
17.    Indianapolis Marriott Downtown *   615  Indianapolis, IN
18.    Hilton Alexandria Old Town *   241  Alexandria, VA
19.    Chaminade Resort and Conference Center   153  Santa Cruz, CA
      
         Total number of rooms/suites   6,269   

      

*  Properties subject to a mortgage.
 

Sheraton Bloomington Hotel Minneapolis South.     Sheraton Bloomington Hotel Minneapolis South is an upscale full-service convention hotel located
at the intersection of Interstate 494 and Highway 100, approximately 15 minutes from the Minneapolis/St. Paul International Airport, and five miles from the
Mall of America. The hotel is currently leased to LHL and operated by Starwood Hotels & Resorts, Worldwide, Inc.
 

Westin City Center Dallas.    Westin City Center Dallas is an upscale full-service convention-oriented hotel located in downtown Dallas,
approximately 25 minutes from the Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport, in the heart of the city’s arts and financial districts. The hotel is conveniently
located near the Dallas Convention Center, four stops away on the Dallas light rail system, with a DART station adjacent to the hotel. The hotel is leased to
LHL and operated by Starwood Hotels & Resorts Worldwide, Inc.
 

Seaview Marriott Resort and Spa.     Seaview Marriott Resort and Spa is a AAA Four-Diamond rated luxury golf resort and conference center located
on Reeds Bay, approximately nine miles north of Atlantic City, New Jersey. The hotel is leased to LHL and operated by Marriott International, Inc.
 

Le Montrose Suite Hotel.    Le Montrose Suite Hotel is a five-story, luxury full-service hotel located in West Hollywood, California, two blocks east of
Beverly Hills and one block south of the “Sunset Strip.” The hotel is within walking distance of many of the area’s finest restaurants, retail shops and
nightclubs. The hotel attracts short and long-term guests and small groups primarily from the recording, film and design industries. The hotel is leased to and
operated by Outrigger Lodging Services.
 

LaGuardia Airport Marriott.     LaGuardia Airport Marriott is an upscale full-service urban/major business hotel located directly across from New
York’s LaGuardia Airport. The hotel is five minutes from Shea Stadium and the USTA National Tennis Center and 20 minutes from Manhattan. The hotel is
leased to LHL and operated by Marriott International, Inc.
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San Diego Paradise Point Resort.     San Diego Paradise Point Resort is a luxury resort that lies on 44 acres and has nearly one mile of beachfront. The
hotel is located in the heart of Mission Bay on Vacation Island, a 4,600-acre aquatic park in southwest San Diego County. The resort is 15 minutes away
from the San Diego International Airport and convenient to many major San Diego tourist attractions including Sea World, Old Town, downtown San Diego,
the San Diego Convention Center, Qualcomm Stadium and the San Diego Zoo. The hotel is subject to a 50-year ground lease with the city of San Diego,
which expires in June 2049. The hotel is leased to and operated by WestGroup San Diego Associates, Ltd., an affiliate of Noble House Hotels and Resorts.
 

Harborside Hyatt Conference Center & Hotel.     Harborside Hyatt Conference Center & Hotel is a full-service luxury conference and airport hotel
located adjacent to Boston’s Logan International Airport along the Boston waterfront. The property features 19,000 square feet of meeting space and is directly
across Boston Harbor from Boston’s central business district. The hotel is located next to the Ted Williams Tunnel, providing convenient access to downtown
Boston and the new Boston Convention Center. The property is subject to a long-term ground lease with the Massachusetts Port Authority, Logan International
Airport’s owner and operating authority, which expires September 14, 2030. The hotel is leased to LHL and operated by Hyatt Corporation pursuant to a long-
term incentive-based management agreement.
 

Hotel Viking.    Hotel Viking is a full-service upscale resort located on Bellevue Avenue in Newport, Rhode Island. The hotel offers 29,000 square feet
of meeting space, a restaurant, lounge, a rooftop bar and a full-service spa. The property also includes the Trinity Parish House and the fully restored Kay
Chapel, both adjacent to the hotel. The hotel is leased to LHL and is operated by Noble House Hotels and Resorts.
 

Chicago Marriott Downtown.     Chicago Marriott Downtown is a full-service, upscale convention hotel located at the intersection of North Michigan
Avenue and Ohio Street on downtown Chicago’s world-famous “Magnificent Mile.” The property has over 60,000 square feet of meeting space, five food and
beverage outlets, a health club and sports center, a business center and a gift shop. The Chicago Marriott Downtown has superb visibility and allows guests
convenient access to a variety of attractions. A world-renowned shopping destination, the “Magnificent Mile” is home to such retailers as Neiman Marcus,
Saks Fifth Avenue, Nordstrom, Marshall Fields and Niketown. The Company, through the Operating Partnership, owns a non-controlling 9.9% equity
interest in the Chicago Marriott Downtown. The hotel is leased to Chicago 540 Lessee, Inc., in which the Company also owns a non-controlling 9.9% equity
interest. The hotel is operated by Marriott International, Inc.
 

D.C. Collection.    The D.C. Collection comprises five full-service hotels located in Washington, D.C., with a total of 635 guestrooms. Each hotel
features large guestrooms or suites. The Company renovated and repositioned four of the hotels as full-service, upscale, unique, independent hotels: the Topaz
Hotel, the Hotel Rouge, the Hotel Madera and the Hotel Helix. The Company leases each of these hotels to wholly-owned subsidiaries of LHL. The San
Francisco, California-based Kimpton Hotel & Restaurant Group, L.L.C., operates all five of these hotels.
 

Topaz Hotel.    The Topaz Hotel is a full-service hotel with an exotic “East-meets-West” theme. The hotel is conveniently located on Embassy Row in
downtown Washington, D.C. It is within walking distance of the central business district, minutes from the monuments and museums, and less than
two blocks from Dupont Circle and the Metro. The hotel features a bar/restaurant.

 
Hotel Rouge.    Hotel Rouge is a full-service hotel with a “playful, interactive, glamorous” theme. Located on Scott Circle in Washington, D.C., the
hotel is five blocks from the White House and just minutes from the business district. The hotel features a bar/restaurant.

 
Hotel Madera.    Hotel Madera is a full-service hotel with a “cosmopolitan comfort” theme. The Hotel Madera is located on the westside of downtown
Washington, D.C., and near many of the area’s attractions. The hotel features a restaurant, Firefly, a modern American bistro.

 
Hotel Helix.    Hotel Helix is a full-service hotel with a “pop-art” theme. The Hotel Helix is located just a few blocks from the new 2.3 million square-foot
Washington Convention Center. The hotel is located four blocks from Dupont Circle in close proximity to most of the major downtown tourist
attractions. The hotel features a bar/restaurant.
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Hotel George.    The Hotel George, a luxury urban hotel, is situated within three blocks of the U.S. Capitol Building and is centrally located to
numerous leisure and corporate demand generators such as Union Station, The White House, the Mall and the Smithsonian. The hotel is minutes away
from the new 2.3 million square-foot Washington Convention Center and the revitalized Capitol Hill and Chinatown neighborhoods. The hotel features
the award-winning restaurant Bistro Bis.

 
Holiday Inn on the Hill.     Holiday Inn on the Hill is an upscale full-service hotel located on Capitol Hill in Washington, D.C. The property is the

closest hotel to the U.S. Capitol Building. The hotel offers a first class amenity package, including 10,000 square feet of newly renovated meeting space, a
full-service restaurant and bar and a roof-top swimming pool. The hotel is minutes away from the 2.3 million square-foot Washington Convention Center. The
hotel is leased to a wholly-owned subsidiary of LHL, and operated by Crestline Hotels & Resorts, Inc.
 

Lansdowne Resort.    Lansdowne Resort is a AAA Four-Diamond luxury full-service golf resort and conference center located in Lansdowne, Virginia.
The 296-room resort is located on 556 acres and features an 18-hole championship golf course designed by award-winning architect Robert Trent Jones, Jr. A
second 18-hole championship golf course, designed by Greg Norman, nine-hole executive course, resort pool and a clubhouse are currently under development
and are scheduled for completion by mid-2005. The resort is leased to a wholly-owned subsidiary of LHL and operated by Benchmark Hospitality.
 

Indianapolis Marriott Downtown.     Indianapolis Marriott Downtown is a AAA Four-Diamond rated, full-service convention hotel centrally located in
the heart of Indianapolis’s business and leisure district. The property is physically connected, via a temperature-controlled skywalk, to the 1.9 million square
foot Indiana Convention Center/RCA Dome. The property has over 38,000 square feet of meeting space, including a 21,000 square foot ballroom, two
restaurants, an upscale fitness center and an indoor swimming pool. The hotel is subject to a 100–year ground lease with the city of Indianapolis, which
expires on June 23, 2099. The hotel is leased to LHL, and is operated by White Lodging Services Corporation.
 

Hilton Alexandria Old Town.    Hilton Alexandria Old Town is an upscale full-service hotel located in the heart of historic downtown Alexandria. The
property was built in 2000 and includes approximately 8,000 square feet of meeting space, including a 3,800 square-foot ballroom, an upscale restaurant,
fitness center, an indoor swimming pool and an on-site parking facility. The property is situated in the center of the City of Alexandria, on Old Town’s main
street and directly adjacent to the King Street Metro Station. The hotel is leased to LHL, and is operated by Sandcastle Resorts & Hotels.
 

Chaminade Resort and Conference Center.    The Chaminade is a AAA Four-Diamond resort and executive conference center located on a 288-acre
bluff overlooking the northern end of Monterey Bay, approximately 30 miles south of San Jose and 75 miles south of San Francisco. The property opened in
1985 and features twelve meeting rooms encompassing approximately 12,000 square feet of meeting space, state-of-the-art audio-visual and teleconferencing
facilities, three upscale restaurants, a newly renovated spa, a fitness center and other resort amenities. The hotel is leased to LHL, and is operated by
Benchmark Hospitality.
 
Participating Leases and Management Agreements
 The Company is subject to participating leases with third-party lessees and, through LHL, management agreements. For hotels leased to third-party
lessees, the Company earns the greater of (i) base rent or (ii) participating rent based on fixed percentages of gross hotel revenues pursuant to the respective
participating lease. For hotels leased to third-party lessees, the Company is responsible for the payment of real estate taxes, ground rent, if any, certain
insurance, maintaining a reserve for future capital expenditures and payment of agreed upon capital expenditures. The terms of these third-party participating
leases have expirations between 2008 and 2009. For hotels leased by LHL, the Company, through LHL, earns all hotel revenues and is responsible for all hotel
expenses, including base management fees and incentive management fees, if any, pursuant to the terms of the respective management agreement. The terms of
the leases with LHL have expirations between 2008 and 2011.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings
 The nature of the operations of the hotels exposes them to the risk of claims and litigation in the normal course of their business. Although the outcome of
these matters cannot be determined, management does not expect the ultimate resolution of these matters to have a material adverse effect on the financial
position, operations or liquidity of the hotels.
 

Litigation
 The Company has engaged Starwood Hotels & Resorts Worldwide, Inc. to manage and operate its Dallas hotel under the Westin brand affiliation.
Meridien Hotels, Inc. (“Meridien”) affiliates had been operating the Dallas property as a wrongful holdover tenant, until the Westin brand conversion occurred
on July 14, 2003 under court order.
 

On December 20, 2002, affiliates of Meridien abandoned the Company’s New Orleans hotel. The Company entered into a lease with a wholly-owned
subsidiary of LHL and an interim management agreement with Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc., and re-named the hotel the New Orleans Grande Hotel. The
New Orleans property thereafter was sold on April 21, 2003 for $92.5 million.
 

In connection with the termination of the Meridien affiliates at these hotels, the Company is currently in litigation with Meridien and related affiliates.
The Company believes its sole potential obligation in connection with the termination of the leases is to pay fair market value of the leases, if any. With respect
to the Dallas hotel, the Company has obtained a judgment from the court that Meridien defaulted and that Meridien is not entitled to the payment of fair market
value. With respect to the New Orleans hotel, the issue of default by the lessee, among other claims, is currently in trial. Arbitration of the fair market value of
the New Orleans lease commenced in October 2002. On December 19, 2002, the arbitration panel determined that Meridien was entitled to an award of
approximately $5.7 million in connection with the New Orleans property, subject to adjustment (reduction) by the courts to account for Meridien’s holdover.
In order to dispute the arbitration decision, the Company was required to post a $7.8 million surety bond, which was secured by $5.9 million of restricted
cash. The Company successfully challenged the award on appeal, and the dispute has been remanded to the trial court. Meridien’s request for rehearing was
denied on March 31, 2004, and Meridien did not petition to the Louisiana Supreme Court. In June 2004, the $7.8 million surety bond was released and the
$5.9 million restricted cash securing it was returned to the Company.
 

In 2002 the Company recognized a net $2.5 million contingent lease termination expense and reversed previously deferred assets and liabilities related to
the termination of both the New Orleans property and Dallas property leases and recorded a corresponding contingent liability included in accounts payable
and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The Company believes, however, it is owed holdover rent per the lease terms due
to Meridien’s failure to vacate the properties as required under the leases. The contingent lease termination expense was therefore net of the holdover rent the
Company believes it is entitled to for both properties. In the first, second and third quarters of 2003, the Company adjusted this liability by additional
holdover rent of $395, $380 and $52, respectively, that it believes it is entitled to for the Dallas property. These amounts were recorded as other income in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. The contingent lease termination expense recognized cumulatively since 2002 is comprised of (dollars in
thousands):
 

   

Expense
Recognized

Quarter Ended
December 31, 2002

  

Expense
Recognized
Year Ended

December 31, 2004

  

Cumulative
Expense

Recognized as of
December 31, 2004

 
Estimated arbitration “award”   $ 5,749  $ —    $ 5,749 
Legal fees related to litigation    2,610   1,350   3,960 
Holdover rent    (4,844)  —     (4,844)
Expected reimbursement of legal fees    (995)  (500)  (1,495)
     
Net contingent lease termination expense   $ 2,520  $ 850  $ 3,370 
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In September 2004, after evaluating the ongoing Meridien litigation, the Company accrued additional net legal fees of $850 due to litigation timeline
changes in order to conclude this matter. As a result, the net contingent lease termination liability has a balance of approximately $2.0 million as of December
31, 2004, which is included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Based on the claims the Company
has against Meridien, the Company is and will continue to challenge Meridien’s claim that it is entitled to the payment of fair market value, and will continue
to seek reimbursement of legal fees and damages. These amounts may exceed or otherwise may be used to offset any amounts potentially owed to Meridien,
and therefore ultimately may offset or otherwise reduce any contingent lease termination expense. Additionally, the Company cannot provide any assurances
that the holdover rents will be collectible or that the amounts due will not be greater than the recorded contingent lease termination expense.
 

The Company maintained a lien on Meridien’s security deposit on both disputed properties with an aggregate value of approximately $3.3 million, in
accordance with the lease agreements. The security deposits were liquidated in May 2003 with the proceeds used to partially satisfy Meridien’s outstanding
obligations, including certain working capital notes and outstanding base rent.
 

Meridien also has sued the Company and one of the Company’s officers alleging that certain actions taken in anticipation of re-branding the Dallas and
New Orleans hotels under the Westin brand affiliation constituted unfair trade practices, false advertising, trademark infringement, trademark dilution and
tortious interference. The Company intends to vigorously challenge Meridien’s claims if and when this matter gets set for trial.
 

The Company does not believe that the amount of any fees or damages it may be required to pay on any of the litigation related to Meridien will have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations, taken as a whole. The Company’s management has discussed this
contingency and the related accounting treatment with the audit committee of its Board of Trustees.
 

The Company is not presently subject to any other material litigation nor, to the Company’s knowledge, is any other litigation threatened against the
Company, other than routine actions for negligence or other claims and administrative proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which
are expected to be covered by liability insurance and all of which collectively are not expected to have a material adverse effect on the liquidity, results of
operations or business or financial condition of the Company.
 
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
 There were no matters submitted to a vote of the Company’s shareholders during the fourth quarter of the year covered by this Annual Report on Form
10-K.
 

Part II
 
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Shares of Beneficial Interest and Related Shareholder Matters
 
Market Information
 The common shares of the Company began trading on the New York Stock Exchange on April 24, 1998 under the symbol “LHO.” The following table
sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low sale prices per common share and the cash distributions declared per share:
 

   

Calendar Year 2004

  

Calendar Year 2003

   

High

  

Low

  

Distribution

  

High

  

Low

  

Distribution

First Quarter   $ 23.89  $18.60  $ 0.210  $ 14.26  $ 10.50  $ 0.210
Second Quarter   $25.90  $19.84  $ 0.210  $15.90  $ 12.00  $ 0.210
Third Quarter   $29.39  $ 24.28  $ 0.240  $ 17.40  $ 14.75  $ 0.210
Fourth Quarter   $ 32.87  $27.36  $ 0.240  $ 19.07  $16.56  $ 0.210
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The closing price for the Company’s common shares, as reported by the New York Stock Exchange on December 31, 2004, was $31.83 per share.
 
Shareholder Information
 As of February 15, 2005, there were 143 record holders of the Company’s common shares of beneficial interest, including shares held in “street name”
by nominees who are record holders, and approximately 7,000 beneficial holders.
 

In order to comply with certain requirements related to qualification of the Company as a REIT, the Company’s Amended and Restated Declaration of
Trust limits the number of common shares of beneficial interest and preferred shares that may be owned by any single person or affiliated group to 9.8% of
the outstanding common shares of beneficial interest and preferred shares, except for T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc., which was granted a waiver and may
own up to 13.0% of the Company’s outstanding common shares of beneficial interest and preferred shares.
 
Distribution Information
 In 2004, the Company paid $0.90 per common share in distributions, of which 89.2% represented ordinary income and 10.8% represented
unrecaptured Sec. 1250 gain for tax purposes. These distributions were paid monthly to the Company’s common shareholders and unitholders at a level of
$0.07 and $0.08 per common share and limited partnership unit for the months of January 2004 through June 2004 and July 2004 through December 2004,
respectively.
 

The declaration of distributions by the Company is in the sole discretion of the Company’s Board of Trustees, and depends on the actual cash flow of
the Company, its financial condition, capital expenditure requirements for the Company’s hotels, the annual distribution requirements under the REIT
provisions of the Code and such other factors as the Board of Trustees deems relevant.
 
Operating Partnership Units
 The operating partnership issued 3,181,723 units of limited partnership interest on April 29, 1998 (inception), in conjunction with the initial public
offering. The following is a summary of unit activity since inception:
 

Units issued at initial public offering   3,181,723 
Units converted to common shares of beneficial interest:     

1999   (1,622,489)
2000   (36,754)
2001   (1,095,964)
2002   (18,497)
2004   (41,596)

Units issued:     
2000   16,667 

   
Units outstanding at December 31, 2004   383,090 
   

 
Holders of units of limited partnership interest receive distributions per unit in the same manner as distributions on a per common share basis to the

common shareholders of beneficial interest.
 
Item 6. Selected Financial Data
 The following tables set forth selected historical operating and financial data for the Company. The selected historical operating and financial data for the
Company for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000 have been derived from the historical financial statements of the Company. The
following selected financial information should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” and all of the financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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LASALLE HOTEL PROPERTIES
 Selected Historical Operating and Financial Data

(Unaudited, dollars in thousands, except share data)
 

  

For the year ended December 31,

 

  

2004

  

2003

  

2002

  

2001

  

2000

 
Operating Data:                     

Revenues from continuing operations:                     
Hotel operating revenues  $ 261,795  $ 166,158  $ 135,099  $ 104,478  $ —   
Participating lease revenue   18,635   21,284   21,909   32,364   65,443 
Interest income   361   353   344   657   1,130 
Other income   187   919   19   827   56 

      
Total revenues from continuing operations   280,978   188,714   157,371   138,326   66,629 

Expenses from continuing operations:                     
Hotel operating expenses   186,698   123,085   97,154   72,669   —   
Depreciation and other amortization   38,933   31,665   28,272   24,731   22,616 
Real estate, personal property taxes and

insurance   11,891   9,347   7,852   7,711   6,466 
Ground rent   3,493   3,561   3,208   3,279   3,157 
General and administrative   8,398   7,292   6,423   6,355   927 
Interest   13,081   12,651   10,527   16,151   18,958 
Amortization of deferred financing costs   2,268   2,399   2,251   1,841   1,080 
Advisory fee (1)   —     —     —     —     3,840 
Impairment of investment in hotel property   —     2,453   —     1,872   12,296 
Lease termination, advisory transaction, subsidiary purchase and contingent lease termination

expense   850   10   2,520   1,929   —   
Writedown of notes receivable   —     —     —     1,172   —   
Other expenses   632   251   165   976   19 

      
Total expenses from continuing operations   266,244   192,714   158,372   138,686   69,359 

Net income (loss) from continuing operations before income tax benefit, minority interest and equity in
earnings of unconsolidated entities   14,734   (4,000)  (1,001)  (360)  (2,730)

Income tax benefit   3,507   5,605   2,850   1,657   —   
Minority interest in LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P.    (289)  (40)  (52)  (43)  141 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated entities   853   304   458   616   1,152 

      
Net income (loss) from continuing operations   18,805   1,869   2,255   1,870   (1,437)
Distributions to preferred shareholders   (12,532)  (10,805)  (8,410)  —     —   

      
Net income (loss) from continuing operations applicable to common shareholders   6,273   (8,936)  (6,155)  1,870   (1,437)
Net income from discontinued operations   4,418   36,972   2,216   1,965   6,788 

      
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders  $ 10,691  $ 28,036  $ (3,939) $ 3,835  $ 5,351 

      
Net income (loss) from continuing operations applicable to common shareholders per common share:                     

basic (after dividends paid on unvested restricted shares)  $ 0.23  $ (0.46) $ (0.34) $ 0.16  $ (0.08)
diluted (before dividends paid on unvested restricted shares)  $ 0.23  $ (0.43) $ (0.33) $ 0.09  $ (0.08)

      
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders per common share:                     

basic (after dividends paid on unvested restricted shares)  $ 0.39  $ 1.39  $ (0.22) $ 0.21  $ 0.32 
diluted (before dividends paid on unvested restricted shares)  $ 0.39  $ 1.37  $ (0.21) $ 0.21  $ 0.32 

      
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:                     

basic   26,740,506   20,030,723   18,413,602   18,321,730   16,920,596 
diluted   27,376,934   20,487,406   18,843,530   18,452,882   16,982,962 
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As of December 31,

 

  

2004

  

2003

  

2002

  

2001

  

2000

 
Balance Sheet Data:                     

Investment in hotel properties, net  $ 739,733  $595,976  $ 495,488  $ 550,015  $ 486,184 
Total assets   859,596   707,904   605,735   588,256   531,893 
Borrowings under credit facilities   —     —     99,390   175,400   113,500 
Bonds payable, net   42,500   42,500   42,500   42,500   40,314 
Mortgage loans   211,810   187,157   70,175   118,562   119,964 
Minority interest in LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P   4,554   5,721   5,262   5,589   20,288 
Redeemable preferred shares, liquidation preference   127,298   127,298   99,798   —     —   
Total shareholders’ equity   554,074   436,853   315,107   230,393   223,528 

  

For the year ended December 31,

 

  

2004

  

2003

  

2002

  

2001

  

2000

 
Other Data:                     

Funds from operations (2)  $ 48,448  $ 26,844  $ 30,785  $ 36,268  $ 47,984 
Cash provided by operating activities   55,084   41,194   37,961   40,016   40,891 
Cash used in investing activities   (172,468)  (52,709)  (41,548)  (81,231)  (31,853)
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities   114,725   39,755   7,390   42,519   (9,236)
Cash dividends declared per common share  $ 0.900  $ 0.840  $ 0.440  $ 0.795  $ 1.535 

(1)  Represents advisory fee paid to the external advisor for acquisition, management, advisory, employee lease and administrative services provided to the
Company. The external advisor received an annual base fee of up to 5.0% of the Company’s net operating income, as defined in the advisory agreement,
and an annual incentive fee. The external management agreement was terminated as of January 1, 2001.

(2)  The Company considers the non-GAAP measure of funds from operations (“FFO”) to be a key supplemental measure of the Company’s performance
and should be considered along with, but not as an alternative to, net income as a measure of the Company’s operating performance. Historical cost
accounting for real estate assets implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. Since real estate values instead
have historically risen or fallen with market conditions, most industry investors consider supplemental measurements of performance to be helpful in
evaluating a real estate company’s operations. The Company believes that excluding the effect of gains or losses from debt restructuring, extraordinary
items, real estate-related depreciation and amortization, and the portion of these items related to unconsolidated entities, all of which are based on
historical cost accounting and which may be of limited significance in evaluating current performance, can facilitate comparisons of operating
performance between periods and between REITs, even though FFO does not represent an amount that accrues directly to common shareholders.
However, FFO may not be helpful when comparing the Company to non-REITs.

 The White Paper on FFO approved by NAREIT in April 2002 defines FFO as net income or loss (computed in accordance with GAAP), excluding gains
or losses from debt restructuring, sales of properties and items classified by GAAP as extraordinary, plus real estate-related depreciation and
amortization (excluding amortization of deferred finance costs) and after comparable adjustments for the Company’s portion of these items related to
unconsolidated entities and joint ventures. The Company computes FFO in accordance with standards established by NAREIT, which may not be
comparable to FFO reported by other REITs that do not define the term in accordance with the current NAREIT definition or that interpret the current
NAREIT definition differently from the Company.

 FFO does not represent cash generated from operating activities determined by GAAP and should not be considered as an alternative to net income, cash
flow from operations or any other operating performance measure prescribed by GAAP. FFO is not a measure of the Company’s liquidity, nor is it
indicative of funds
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available to fund the Company’s cash needs, including its ability to make cash distributions. FFO does not reflect cash expenditures for long-term
assets and other items that have been and will be incurred. FFO may include funds that may not be available for management’s discretionary use due to
functional requirements to conserve funds for capital expenditures, property acquisitions, and other commitments and uncertainties. To compensate for
this, management considers the impact of these excluded items to the extent they are material to operating decisions or evaluation of the Company’s
operating performance.

 
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
 
Forward-Looking Statements
 This report, together with other statements and information publicly disseminated by the Company, contains certain forward-looking statements within
the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Company
intends such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and includes this statement for purposes of complying with these safe harbor provisions. Forward-looking statements, which
are based on certain assumptions and describe the Company’s future plans, strategies and expectations, are generally identifiable by use of the words
“believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “project” or similar expressions. You should not rely on forward-looking statements since they involve
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that are, in some cases, beyond the Company’s control and which could materially affect actual
results, performances or achievements. Factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from current expectations include, but are not limited to, the
risk factors discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Accordingly, there is no assurance that the Company’s expectations will be realized. Except as
otherwise required by the federal securities laws, the Company disclaims any obligations or undertaking to publicly release any updates or revisions to any
forward-looking statement contained herein (or elsewhere) to reflect any change in the Company’s expectations with regard thereto or any change in events,
conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.
 
Overview
 In 2004, the overall economy and the travel industry, including lodging, gained momentum from the recovery that commenced in the second half of
2003. We believe the lodging industry is now in the beginning of a new, multi-year up-cycle, assuming a normal economic growth period. With a strong
balance sheet and high quality hotel portfolio, the Company was able to take advantage of this environment, significantly increasing room revenue per
available room (“RevPAR”), Funds from Operations (“FFO”), and earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) at the hotel level.
The Company’s revenues come primarily from hotel operating revenues from its hotels. Hotel operating revenues include room revenue, food and beverage
revenue and other ancillary revenue such as golf revenue at our two golf resorts and telephone and parking revenue.
 

For 2004, we had net income of $10.7 million, or $0.39 per diluted share. FFO was $48.4 million, or $1.74 per diluted share/unit and EBITDA was
$76.3 million. RevPAR was $103.49. We consider RevPAR and EBITDA to be key measures of the individual hotels’ performance. RevPAR for the total
portfolio increased 9.1% for 2004. The RevPAR increase is attributable to an Average Daily Rate (“ADR”) increase of 4.0% to $152.31, while occupancy
improved by 4.9% to 67.9% percent. EBITDA at the corporate level declined 12.5% due to the $36.7 million net gain on disposal of assets recognized in
2003. At the hotel level, EBITDA increased $7.4 million due to higher ADR and occupancy.
 

The Company continuously uses these measures to evaluate each hotel’s contribution toward reaching the Company’s goal of maintaining a reliable
stream of income and moderate growth to shareholders. The Company invests in capital improvements throughout the portfolio to continue to positively impact
the competitiveness of its hotels and positively impact their financial performance. The Company actively seeks to acquire new hotel properties that meet its
investment criteria. However, due to a high level of competitive capital resources the Company continues to face significant competition for acquisitions that
meet its investment criteria.
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Critical Accounting Policies
 The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, the Operating Partnership, LHL and its consolidated subsidiaries and
partnerships. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.
 

Use of Estimates
 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of certain assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. In preparing these financial statements, management has utilized the information available including its
past history, industry standards and the current economic environment, among other factors, in forming its estimates and judgments of certain amounts
included in the consolidated financial statements, giving due consideration to materiality. Included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements is an
estimated contingent lease termination expense of $0.9 million and an immaterial amount for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, related
to the Company’s litigation with Meridien Hotels, Inc. (see Item 3. Legal Proceedings). Additionally, included in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements is an estimated liability of $2.0 million related to the Company’s litigation with Meridien Hotels, Inc. (see Item 3. Legal Proceedings), an estimated
allowance for doubtful accounts of $0.3 million and an estimated deferred tax asset of $14.5 million as of December 31, 2004. Management believes that it is
more likely than not that this deferred tax asset will be realized and has determined that no valuation allowance is required.
 

It is possible that the ultimate outcome as anticipated by management in formulating its estimates inherent in these financial statements might not
materialize. However, application of the critical accounting policies below involves the exercise of judgment and use of assumptions as to future uncertainties
and, as a result, actual results could differ from those estimates. In addition, other companies may determine these estimates differently, which may impact
comparability of the Company’s results of operations to those of companies in similar businesses.
 

Revenue Recognition
 For properties not leased by LHL, the Company recognizes lease revenue on an accrual basis pursuant to the terms of the respective participating leases.
Base rent and participating rent are recognized based on quarterly thresholds, pursuant to the lease agreements. For properties leased by LHL, the Company
recognizes hotel operating revenue on an accrual basis consistent with the hotel operations.
 

For the Lansdowne Resort, the Company defers golf membership fees and recognizes revenue over the average expected life of an active membership
(currently six years) on a straight-line basis. Golf membership, health club and executive club annual dues are recognized as earned throughout the
membership year.
 

Investment in Hotel Properties
 Upon acquisition, the Company allocates the purchase price of assets to asset classes based on the fair value of the acquired real estate, furniture,
fixtures and equipment and intangible assets. The Company’s investments in hotel properties are carried at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line
method over an estimated useful life of 30 years for buildings and improvements and three to five years for furniture, fixtures and equipment. Renovations
and/or replacements that improve or extend the life of the asset are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
 

The Company is required to make subjective assessments as to the useful lives of its properties for purposes of determining the amount of depreciation
expense to reflect each year with respect to those properties. These assessments have a direct impact on the Company’s net income. Should the Company
lengthen the expected useful life of particular assets, it would be depreciated over more years, and result in less depreciation expense and higher annual net
income.
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The Company periodically reviews the carrying value of each hotel to determine if circumstances exist indicating impairment to the carrying value of the
investment in the hotel or that depreciation periods should be modified. If facts or circumstances support the possibility of impairment, the Company will
prepare an estimate of the undiscounted future cash flows, without interest charges, of the specific hotel and determine if the investment in such hotel is
recoverable based on the undiscounted future cash flows. If impairment is indicated, an adjustment will be made to the carrying value of the hotel to reflect the
hotel at fair value. These assessments have a direct impact on the Company’s net income, because making an impairment adjustment results in an immediate
negative adjustment to net income. The Company does not believe that there are any facts or circumstances indicating impairment in its hotels.
 

In accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets,” a hotel is considered held for sale when a contract for sale is entered into or when management has committed to a plan to sell an asset, the asset
is actively marketed and sale is expected to occur within one year.
 

Stock-Based Compensation
 The Company has applied Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for the 1998 stock incentive and
option plan. Accordingly, no compensation costs have been recognized for stock options granted to the Company’s employees. The Company has not issued
any options since 2002. Under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, no compensation expense is recognized upon the granting of stock options when
the exercise price of such options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant. The Company recognizes compensation cost pursuant to
FAS 123 for restricted shares issued based upon the fair market value of the common stock at the grant date. Compensation cost is recognized on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period. The Company provides additional pro forma disclosures as required under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 148 in the notes to its consolidated financial statements.
 
Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2004 to the Year Ended December 31, 2003
 

Hotel operating revenues
 Hotel operating revenues from the hotels leased to LHL (16 hotels as of December 31, 2004), including room revenue, food and beverage revenue and
other operating department revenues (which includes golf, telephone, parking and other ancillary revenues) increased approximately $95.6 million, from
$166.2 million in 2003 to $261.8 million in 2004. This increase includes amounts that are not comparable year-over-year as follows:
 
 •  $37.7 million increase from the Indianapolis Marriott Downtown, which was purchased in February 2004;
 
 •  $15.6 million increase from the Lansdowne Resort, which was purchased in June 2003;
 
 •  $9.4 million increase from the Westin City Center Dallas, which lease was transferred to LHL in July 2003;
 
 •  $8.4 million increase from the Hilton Alexandria Old Town, which was purchased in May 2004;
 
 •  $5.7 million increase from the Hotel George, which was purchased in September 2003; and
 
 •  $1.0 million increase from Chaminade Resort and Conference Center, which was purchased in November 2004.
 

The remaining increase of $17.8 million, or 10.7%, is attributable to increases in RevPAR and associated Food & Beverage and Other Revenue for our
other properties leased to LHL. While ADR increased, the majority of the increase in RevPAR is attributable to higher occupancies from stronger business
travel.
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Overall, travel levels improved in 2004, when the industry benefited from continued relatively strong leisure demand and significant increases in
demand from business travelers. On a year-over-year basis, overall industry demand for hotel rooms significantly outpaced supply growth throughout the
year, with occupancies up an average of 4.9% during 2004. With demand improving during 2004, we began to find it easier to achieve increased ADRs.
Nevertheless, both the leisure traveler and the business traveler, group and transient, continue to be price sensitive, utilizing an aggressive negotiation posture
and internet sites to shop for the lowest rates. Additionally, the business is more competitive now because transient guests tend to book their rooms closer to
their time of stay than in the past, and transient rooms get priced lower than they otherwise would have been. Despite these rate challenges, many of our hotels
experienced ADR increases during 2004, especially at our urban and convention hotels.
 

Participating lease revenue
 Participating lease revenue from hotels leased to third-party lessees decreased $2.7 million from $21.3 million in 2003 to $18.6 million in 2004.
Participating lease revenue includes (i) base rent and (ii) participating rent based on fixed percentages of gross hotel revenues pursuant to the respective
participating lease. This decrease includes amounts that are not comparable year-over-year as follows:
 
 •  $1.6 million decrease from the Westin City Center Dallas, which lease was transferred to LHL in July 2003.
 

The remaining decrease of $1.1 million, or 5.2%, is primarily a result of a decrease in RevPAR at San Diego Paradise Point Resort, which is leased to a
third-party lessee. The lower RevPAR resulted from decreased occupancy and ADR from weak group and leisure demand and the difficult comparison to
2003’s first quarter that included the significant benefits to the San Diego Paradise Point Resort as a result of the Super Bowl held in San Diego.
 

Hotel operating expenses
 Hotel operating expenses increased approximately $63.6 million from $123.1 million in 2003 to $186.7 million in 2004. This increase includes
amounts that are not comparable year-over-year as follows:
 
 •  $25.2 million increase from the Indianapolis Marriott Downtown, which was purchased in February 2004;
 
 •  $11.2 million increase from the Lansdowne Resort, which was purchased in June 2003;
 
 •  $6.8 million increase from the Westin City Center Dallas, which lease was transferred to LHL in July 2003;
 
 •  $4.8 million increase from the Hilton Alexandria Old Town, which was purchased in May 2004;
 
 •  $3.3 million increase from the Hotel George, which was purchased in September 2003; and
 
 •  $1.5 million increase from Chaminade Resort and Conference Center, which was purchased in November 2004.
 

The remaining increase of $10.8 million, or 8.8%, is a result of higher occupancies at the hotels as well as above inflation increases in payroll and
related employee costs and benefits, sales and marketing, insurance and energy costs.
 

Depreciation and other amortization
 Depreciation and other amortization expense increased by approximately $7.2 million from $31.7 million in 2003 to $38.9 million in 2004. This
increase includes amounts that are not comparable year-over-year as follows:
 
 •  $4.9 million increase from the Indianapolis Marriott Downtown, which was purchased in February 2004;
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 •  $1.7 million increase from the Lansdowne Resort, which was purchased in June 2003;
 
 •  $1.2 million increase from the Hilton Alexandria Old Town, which was purchased in May 2004;
 
 •  $0.6 million increase from the Hotel George, which was purchased in September 2003; and
 
 •  $0.1 million increase from Chaminade Resort and Conference Center, which was purchased in November 2004.
 

The remaining decrease of $1.3 million is due to certain furniture, fixture and equipment assets that were fully depreciated during 2003 and 2004.
 

Real estate taxes, personal property taxes, insurance and ground rent
 Real estate taxes, personal property taxes, insurance and ground rent expenses increased approximately $2.5 million from $12.9 million in 2003 to
$15.4 million in 2004. This increase includes amounts that are not comparable year-over-year as follows:
 
 •  $1.3 million increase from the Indianapolis Marriott Downtown, which was purchased in February 2004;
 
 •  $0.5 million increase from the Lansdowne Resort, which was purchased in June 2003;
 
 •  $0.2 million increase from the Hotel George, which was purchased in September 2003; and
 
 •  $0.2 million increase from the Hilton Alexandria Old Town, which was purchased in May 2004.
 

The remaining real estate taxes, personal property taxes, insurance and ground rent increased by a net approximate $0.3 million in 2004 for the
remaining hotels.
 

General and administrative expenses
 General and administrative expense increased approximately $1.1 million from $7.3 million in 2003 to $8.4 million in 2004, primarily as a result of
increases in accounting fees, compliance costs and payroll-related expenses to executives and employees.
 

Interest expense
 Interest expense increased by approximately $0.4 million from $12.7 million in 2003 to $13.1 million in 2004 due to an increase in the Company’s
weighted average debt outstanding, offset by a decrease in the weighted average interest rate and an increase in capitalized interest. The Company’s weighted
average debt outstanding related to continuing operations increased from $234.4 million in 2003 to $281.9 million in 2004, which includes increases from: (i)
secured loan financing on the San Diego Paradise Point Resort in December 2003 of $65.0 million, the Indianapolis Marriott Downtown in February 2004 of
$57.0 million, and the Hilton Alexandria Old Town in August 2004 of $34.4 million, (ii) additional borrowings to purchase Chaminade Resort and Conference
Center in November 2004, (iii) additional borrowings under the Company’s bank facility to finance other capital improvements during 2004, and (iv)
additional borrowings to purchase the Hotel George in September 2003, offset by: (v) a $29.1 million paydown in June 2003 on the Company’s bank facility
with proceeds from the June 2003 common share offering, (vi) a $24.2 million net paydown in September 2003 on the Company’s bank facility with proceeds
from the September 2003 Series B Preferred Share offering, (vii) a $50.0 million net paydown on the Company’s bank facility with proceeds from the
November 2003 common stock offering, (viii) a $61.5 million net paydown on the Company’s bank facility with proceeds from the May 2004 common stock
offering, (ix) pay-off of the mortgage secured by the Lansdowne Resort in February 2004, (x) an $8.0 million and $18.8 million paydown on the LHL Credit
facility and the company’s bank facility, respectively, with proceeds from the sale of Omaha Marriott on September 15, 2004, (xi) a $54.9 million net
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paydown on the Company’s bank facility with proceeds from the November 2004 common stock offering and (xii) additional paydowns on the Company’s
bank facility with operating cash flows. The Company’s weighted average interest rate related to continuing operations decreased from 5.3% in 2003 to 4.6% in
2004. Capitalized interest increased by approximately $0.5 million from $0.3 million in 2003 to $0.8 million in 2004, primarily due to 2004 capital
expenditures related to the Lansdowne Resort development project.
 

Income taxes
 Income tax benefit decreased approximately $2.1 million from $5.6 million in 2003 to $3.5 million in 2004. For 2004, the REIT incurred state and local
income tax expense of approximately $0.4 million. LHL’s net loss before income tax benefit decreased by approximately $5.2 million from $14.9 million in
2003 to $9.7 million in 2004. Accordingly, for 2004, LHL recorded a federal income tax benefit of approximately $2.9 million (using an estimated tax rate of
30.8%) and a state and local tax benefit of approximately $1.0 million (using an estimated tax rate of 10.7%). The portion of LHL’s income tax benefit relating
to the Omaha property, the New Orleans property and the Key West property has been reclassified to discontinued operations. The following table summarizes
the income tax (benefit) expense (dollars in thousands):
 

   

For the year ended
December 31,

 

   

2004

  

2003

 
REIT state and local tax expense   $ 442  $ 457 
LHL federal, state and local tax benefit    (3,821)  (6,099)
    
Total tax benefit    (3,379)  (5,642)
    
Less: LHL federal, state and local tax benefit related to discontinued operations    (128)  37 
    
Total continuing operations tax benefit   $(3,507) $(5,605)
    

 
As of December 31, 2004, the Company had a deferred tax asset of $14,500 primarily due to past and current year’s tax net operating losses. These loss

carryforwards will expire in 2021 thru 2024 if not utilized by then. Management believes that it is more likely than not that this deferred tax asset will be
realized and has determined that no valuation allowance is required.
 

Minority interest
 Minority interest in the Operating Partnership represents the limited partners’ proportionate share of the equity in the Operating Partnership. Income is
allocated to minority interest based on the weighted average percentage ownership throughout the year. At December 31, 2004, the aggregate weighted average
partnership interest held by the limited partners in the Operating Partnership was approximately 1.52%. The following table summarizes the change in
minority interest (dollars in thousands):
 

   

For the year ended
December 31,

 

   

2004

  

2003

 
Net income before minority interest   $23,580  $39,660 
Weighted average minority interest percentage at December 31    1.516%  2.066%
    
Minority interest expense    357   819 
Less: minority interest expense related to discontinued operations    (68)   (779)
    

Total continuing operations minority interest expense   $ 289  $ 40 
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Discontinued operations
 Net income from discontinued operations is a result of the sale of the Omaha property, the Holiday Inn Beachside Resort property and the New Orleans
property in September 2004, July 2003 and April 2003, respectively. Net income from discontinued operations decreased by approximately $32.6 million from
$37.0 million in 2003 to $4.4 million in 2004. The following table summarizes net income from discontinued operations from 2004 and 2003 (dollars in
thousands):
 

   

For the year ended
December 31,

 

   

2004

  

2003

 
Net lease loss from New Orleans property   $ —    $ (123)
Net operating income from New Orleans property    —     5 9 
Net lease income from Key West property    —     299 
Net operating loss from Key West property    —     (444)
Net lease income from Omaha property    1,669   971 
Net operating income from Omaha property    309   290 
Gain on sale of New Orleans property    —     37,087 
Loss on sale of Key West property    —     (425)
Gain on sale of Omaha property    2,636   —   
Minority interest expense related to New Orleans property    —     2 
Minority interest expense related to Key West property    —     (758)
Minority interest in Omaha property    (68)  (23)
Income tax expense related to New Orleans property    —     (24)
Income tax benefit related to Key West property    —     184 
Income tax expense related to Omaha property    (128)  (123)
    
Net income from discontinued operations   $ 4,418  $36,972 
    

 
Distributions to preferred shareholders

 Distributions to preferred shareholders increased $1.7 million from $10.8 million in 2003 to $12.5 million in 2004. The Series B Preferred Shares were
issued on September 30, 2003. Distributions were paid for the Series B Preferred Shares for the entire first, second and third quarters of 2004, but there were
no Series B Preferred Shares distributions in the first, second and third quarters of 2003. Distributions on the Series A Preferred Shares were paid for the full
year in 2004 and 2003.
 
Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2003 to the Year Ended December 31, 2002
 Hotel operating revenues
 Hotel operating revenues from the hotels leased to LHL (13 hotels as of December 31, 2003), including room revenue, food and beverage revenue and
other operating department revenues (which includes golf, telephone, parking and other ancillary revenues) increased approximately $31.1 million, from
$135.1 million in 2002 to $166.2 million in 2003. This increase includes amounts that are not comparable year-over-year as follows:
 
 •  $20.5 million increase from the Lansdowne Resort, which was purchased in June 2003;
 
 •  $6.2 million increase from the Westin City Center Dallas, which lease was transferred to LHL in July 2003;
 
 

•  $3.8 million increase from the Hotel Helix, which was closed and repositioned during the second, third and fourth quarters of 2002, but was open
during all of 2003;

 
 

•  $3.6 million increase from the Hotel Madera, which was closed and repositioned during the second and third quarters of 2002, but was open
during all of 2003; and
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 •  $2.0 million increase from the Hotel George, which was purchased in September 2003.
 

The remaining change is a decrease of $5.0 million, or 3.7%, and is attributable to a 2.8% decrease in RevPAR for our properties leased to LHL. While
occupancies were up slightly, the decrease in RevPAR is primarily attributable to lower average daily room rates from weakness in primarily corporate
transient demand.
 

Overall, travel levels improved in the second and third quarters, when the industry benefited from relatively strong leisure demand. Compared to leisure
travel, business travel continued to be weak. On a year-over-year basis, overall industry demand for hotel rooms significantly outpaced supply growth
throughout the year, with occupancies up an average of 2.6% in 2003. The current marketplace is still unbalanced, however, with supply high and
occupancies relatively low. While demand improved during 2003, reflecting the early stage of an industry recovery, increasing and/or maintaining room rates
remains a challenge. Both the leisure traveler and the business traveler, group and transient, continue to be price sensitive, utilizing an aggressive negotiation
posture and internet sites to shop for the lowest rates. Additionally, the business is more competitive now because transient guests tend to book their rooms
closer to their time of stay than in the past, and transient rooms get priced lower than they otherwise would have been. Many of the Company’s hotels
experienced ADR declines during 2003, especially at the convention-oriented and urban-oriented hotels. Nevertheless, the Company is seeing meaningful
improvements industry-wide in the way the internet is utilized. These changes can be expected to improve rates obtained through the use of third-party and
hotel or brand-specific internet sites, as well as lower distribution costs.
 

Participating lease revenue
 Participating lease revenue from hotels leased to third-party lessees (two hotels) decreased $0.6 million from $21.9 million in 2002 to $21.3 million in
2003. Participating lease revenue includes (i) base rent and (ii) participating rent based on fixed percentages of hotel revenues pursuant to the respective
participating lease. This decrease includes amounts that are not comparable year-over-year as follows:
 
 

•  $1.3 million decrease from the Westin City Center Dallas, which lease was transferred to LHL in July, 2003, but was leased to a third party for the
entire 2002 year; and

 
 •  $0.4 million decrease from the Radisson Convention Hotel as a result of transferring the lease to LHL in January 2002.
 

The remaining change is an increase of $1.1 million, or 5.0%, and is a result of an increase in RevPAR at the hotels leased to third-party lessees. The
higher RevPAR resulted primarily from increased occupancy from strong leisure demand.
 

Hotel operating expenses
 Hotel operating expenses increased approximately $25.9 million from $97.2 million in 2002 to $123.1 million in 2003. This increase includes amounts
that are not comparable year-over-year as follows:
 
 •  $13.9 million increase from the Lansdowne Resort, which was purchased in June 2003;
 
 •  $5.2 million increase from the Westin City Center Dallas, which lease was transferred to LHL in July 2003;
 
 

•  $2.9 million increase from the Hotel Madera, which was closed and repositioned during the second and third quarters of 2002, but was open
during all of 2003;

 
 

•  $2.9 million increase from the Hotel Helix, which was closed and repositioned during the second, third and fourth quarters of 2002, but was open
during all of 2003; and

 
 •  $1.2 million increase from the Hotel George, which was purchased in September 2003.
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The remaining change is a decrease of $0.2 million, or 0.2%, a result of cost savings initiatives at the hotels.
 

Maintaining hotel margins continued to be a challenge during 2003. The Company continued to see increases in payroll and related employee costs and
benefits, insurance, energy and property taxes.
 

Depreciation and other amortization
 Depreciation and other amortization expense increased by approximately $3.4 million from $28.3 million in 2002 to $31.7 million in 2003. This increase
includes amounts that are not comparable year-over-year as follows:
 
 

•  $1.8 million due to the closing and repositioning of the Hotel Madera and Hotel Helix during the second and third quarters of 2002 and the second,
third and fourth quarters of 2002, respectively;

 
 •  $1.8 million from the Lansdowne Resort, which was purchased in June 2003; and
 
 •  $0.3 million from the Hotel George, which was purchased in September 2003.
 

The remaining change is a decrease of $0.5 million because certain assets were fully depreciated during 2003.
 

Real estate taxes, personal property taxes, insurance and ground rent
 Real estate taxes, personal property taxes, insurance and ground rent expenses increased approximately $1.8 million from $11.1 million in 2002 to
$12.9 million in 2003. This increase includes amounts that are not comparable year-over-year as follows:
 
 •  $0.5 million increase from the Lansdowne Resort, which was purchased in June 2003; and
 
 •  $0.1 million increase from the Hotel George, which was purchased in September 2003.
 

The remaining increase of $1.2 million, or 10.8%, is a result of increased real estate tax rates and tax assessments and higher insurance premiums
overall for the hotels and higher ground rent at the San Diego and Boston properties because of higher revenues and additional parking charges, respectively.
 

Property taxes were up 12.9% in 2003. With state and local budgets showing deficits, many state and local governments have increased real estate taxes.
These rate increases have almost completely offset the success the Company has had getting reductions in property assessments, many of them through
successful appeals. Property and casualty insurance, combined with general liability, were up 30.1% for 2003; although price increases have recently
moderated significantly from much larger increases over the last two years.
 
General and administrative expenses
 General and administrative expense increased approximately $0.9 million from $6.4 million in 2002 to $7.3 million in 2003, primarily as a result of
increases in pursuit costs, trustee’s fees, legal and audit fees, technology expenses and payroll related expenses to executives and employees.
 
Interest expense
 Interest expense increased by approximately $2.2 million from $10.5 million in 2002 to $12.7 million in 2003, due to an increase in the Company’s
weighted average interest rate, an increase in the weighted average debt outstanding and a decrease in capitalized interest. The Company’s weighted average
interest rate related to continuing operations increased from 5.0% in 2002 to 5.3% in 2003. The Company’s weighted average debt outstanding related to
continuing operations increased from $209.9 million in 2002 to $234.4 million in 2003, which includes (i) an $81.9 million net paydown in March 2002 on
the Company’s senior unsecured bank facility with proceeds from the March 2002 preferred share offering, (ii) a $29.1 million paydown in June 2003 on the
Company’s bank facility with proceeds from the June 2003 common stock offering, (iii) a $24.2 million
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net paydown in September 2003 on the Company’s bank facility with proceeds from the September 2003 Series B Preferred Share offering, (iv) $50.0 million
net paydown on the Company’s bank facility with proceeds from the November 2003 common stock offering, and (v) additional paydowns on the
Company’s bank facility with operating cash flows, offset by: (vi) assumption of a $65.2 million mortgage loan (including a $2.4 million mortgage
premium) in conjunction with the purchase of the Lansdowne Resort in June 2003, (vii) additional borrowings for renovations of the Hotel Madera, Hotel
Helix, Holiday Inn on the Hill and Hotel Viking early in 2003, (viii) additional borrowings under the Company’s bank facility to finance other capital
improvements during 2003 and (ix) additional borrowings to purchase the Hotel George in September 2003.
 
Impairment of investment in hotel property
 Impairment of investment in hotel properties increased approximately $2.5 million from zero due to the Company’s management changing its intent
from holding its investment in the Holiday Inn Beachside Resort to selling the property. As a result, the Company wrote down its investment in the Holiday Inn
Beachside Resort by $2.5 million in June 2003, to its estimated fair value, net of estimated costs to sell. The hotel was sold in July 2003.
 
Lease termination, advisory transition and subsidiary purchase expense
 Lease termination, advisory transition, subsidiary purchase and contingent lease termination expense decreased $2.5 million from $2.5 million for
2002, to less than $0.1 million for 2003. The 2002 amount consists of contingent expenses relating to terminating the Le Meridien New Orleans and Dallas
leases.
 
Writedown of notes receivable
 Writedown of notes receivable decreased approximately $0.2 million from $0.2 million for 2002 to zero for 2003. Writedown of notes receivable of $0.2
million in 2002 represents the adjustment to net realizable value of the furniture, fixtures and equipment notes receivable from the Dallas property based on the
Company’s valuation estimate of furniture, fixtures and equipment that secure the loan.
 
Income taxes
 Income tax benefit increased approximately $2.7 million from $2.9 million in 2002 to $5.6 million in 2003. For 2003, the REIT incurred state and local
income tax expense of $0.5 million. LHL’s net loss before income tax benefit increased by approximately $7.4 million from $7.5 million in 2002 to $14.9
million in 2003. Accordingly, for 2003 LHL recorded a federal income tax benefit of approximately $4.7 million (using an estimated tax rate of 30.8%) and a
state and local tax benefit of approximately $1.6 million (using an estimated tax rate of 10.7%). The portion of LHL’s income tax benefit relating to the Omaha
property, the New Orleans property and the Key West property has been reclassified to discontinued operations. The following table summarizes the change in
income tax benefit (dollars in thousands):
 

   

For the year ended
December 31,

 

   

2003

  

2002

 
REIT state and local tax expense   $ 457  $ 86 
LHL federal, state and local tax benefit    (6,099)  (3,103)
    
Total tax benefit    (5,642)  (3,017)
    
Less: LHL federal, state and local tax benefit related to discontinued operations    37   167 
    
Total continuing operations tax benefit   $(5,605) $(2,850)
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As of December 31, 2003, the Company had a deferred tax asset of $10,424 primarily due to past and current year’s tax net operating losses. These loss
carryforwards will expire in 2021 thru 2023 if not utilized by then. Management believes that it is more likely than not that this deferred tax asset will be
realized and has determined that no valuation allowance is required. The deferred tax asset is classified as non-current because the reversal in the subsequent
year cannot be reasonably estimated.
 
Minority interest
 Minority interest in the operating partnership represents the limited partners’ proportionate share of the equity in the operating partnership. Income is
allocated to minority interest based on the weighted average percentage ownership throughout the year. At December 31, 2003, the aggregate partnership interest
held by the limited partners in the operating partnership was approximately 2.066%. The following table summarizes the change in minority interest (dollars
in thousands):
 

   

For the year ended
December 31,

 

   

2003

  

2002

 
Net income before minority interest   $39,660  $4,575 
Weighted average minority interest percentage at December 31    2.066%  2.281%
    
Minority interest allocation    819   104 
Less: minority interest allocation related to discontinued operations    (779)   (52)
    
Total allocation of minority interest to continuing operations   $ 40  $ 52 
    

 
Discontinued operations
 Net income from discontinued operations is a result of the sale of the Omaha property, the Holiday Inn Beachside Resort property and the New Orleans
property in September 2004, July 2003 and April 2003, respectively. Net income from discontinued operations increased by approximately $34.8 million from
$2.2 million in 2002 to $37.0 million in 2003. The following table summarizes net income/(loss) from discontinued operations from 2003 and 2002 (dollars in
thousands):
 

   

For the year ended
December 31,

 

   

2003

  

2002

 
Net lease income (loss) from New Orleans property   $ (123) $ 2,102 
Net operating income (loss) from New Orleans property    5 9   (173)
Net lease income (loss) from Key West property    299   (269)
Net operating loss from Key West property    (444)  (600)
Net lease income from Omaha property    971   670 
Net operating income from Omaha property    290   371 
Gain on sale of New Orleans property    37,087   —   
Loss on sale of Key West property    (425)  —   
Minority interest expense related to New Orleans property    2   (46)
Minority interest expense related to Key West property    (758)  14 
Minority interest in Omaha property    (23)  (20)
Income tax benefit (expense) related to New Orleans property    (24)  72 
Income tax benefit related to Key West property    184   249 
Income tax expense related to Omaha property    (123)  (154)
    
Net income from discontinued operations   $36,972  $2,216 
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Distributions to preferred shareholders
 Distributions to preferred shareholders increased $2.4 million from $8.4 million in 2002 to $10.8 million in 2003. The Series A Preferred Shares were
issued on March 6, 2002 and the first quarter 2002 distribution was prorated for the actual number of days the Series A Preferred Shares were outstanding.
The second, third and fourth quarter 2002 Series A Preferred Shares distributions were paid for all quarters. By contrast, Series A Preferred Shares
distributions for the year ended December 31, 2003 were paid for the entire year. The Series B Preferred Shares were issued on September 30, 2003.
Distributions were paid for the Series B Preferred Shares for the entire fourth quarter of 2003, but there were no Series B Preferred Shares distributions in
2002.
 
Non-GAAP Financial Measures
 
Funds From Operations
 The Company considers the non-GAAP measure of funds from operations (“FFO”) to be a key supplemental measure of the Company’s performance
and should be considered along with, but not as an alternative to, net income as a measure of the Company’s operating performance. Historical cost accounting
for real estate assets implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. Since real estate values instead have historically
risen or fallen with market conditions, most industry investors consider supplemental measurements of performance to be helpful in evaluating a real estate
company’s operations. The Company believes that excluding the effect of gains or losses from debt restructuring, extraordinary items, real estate-related
depreciation and amortization, and the portion of these items related to unconsolidated entities, all of which are based on historical cost accounting and which
may be of limited significance in evaluating current performance, can facilitate comparisons of operating performance between periods and between REITs,
even though FFO does not represent an amount that accrues directly to common shareholders. However, FFO may not be helpful when comparing the
Company to non-REITs.
 

The White Paper on FFO approved by NAREIT in April 2002 defines FFO as net income or loss (computed in accordance with GAAP), excluding gains
or losses from debt restructuring, sales of properties and items classified by GAAP as extraordinary, plus real estate-related depreciation and amortization
(excluding amortization of deferred finance costs) and after comparable adjustments for the Company’s portion of these items related to unconsolidated entities
and joint ventures. The Company computes FFO in accordance with standards established by NAREIT, which may not be comparable to FFO reported by
other REITs that do not define the term in accordance with the current NAREIT definition or that interpret the current NAREIT definition differently than the
Company.
 

FFO does not represent cash generated from operating activities determined by GAAP and should not be considered as an alternative to net income, cash
flow from operations or any other operating performance measure prescribed by GAAP. FFO is not a measure of the Company’s liquidity, nor is it indicative
of funds available to fund the Company’s cash needs, including its ability to make cash distributions. FFO does not reflect cash expenditures for long-term
assets and other items that have been and will be incurred. FFO may include funds that may not be available for management’s discretionary use due to
functional requirements to conserve funds for capital expenditures, property acquisitions, and other commitments and uncertainties. To compensate for this,
management considers the impact of these excluded items to the extent they are material to operating decisions or evaluation of the Company’s operating
performance.
 

29



Table of Contents

The following is a reconciliation between net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders and FFO for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002 (dollars in thousands, except share data):
 

   

For the year ended December 31,

 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

 
Funds From Operations (FFO):              
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders   $ 10,691  $ 28,036  $ (3,939)
Depreciation    38,937   33,582   33,425 
Equity in depreciation of joint venture    1,053   1,019   974 
Amortization of deferred lease costs    46   50   71 
Minority interest:              

Minority interest in LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P    289   40   52 
Minority interest in discontinued operations    68   779   52 

Net gain on sale of properties disposed of    (2,636)  (36,662)  —   
Equity in extraordinary loss of joint venture    —     —     150 
     

FFO   $ 48,448  $ 26,844  $ 30,785 
     
Weighted average number of common shares and units outstanding:              

Basic    27,153,145   20,455,409   18,849,792 
Diluted    27,789,574   20,912,092   19,279,719 

 
EBITDA
 The Company considers the non-GAAP measure of earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) to be a key measure of
the Company’s performance and should be considered along with, but not as an alternative to, net income as a measure of the Company’s operating
performance. Most industry investors consider EBITDA a measurement of performance that is helpful in evaluating a REIT’s operations. The Company
believes that excluding the effect of non-operating expenses and non-cash charges, and the portion of these items related to unconsolidated entities, all of which
are based on historical cost accounting and which may be of limited significance in evaluating current performance, can help eliminate the accounting effects
of depreciation and amortization, and financing decisions and facilitate comparisons of core operating profitability between periods and between REITs, even
though EBITDA does not represent an amount that accrues directly to common shareholders.
 

EBITDA does not represent cash generated from operating activities determined by GAAP and should not be considered as an alternative to net income,
cash flow from operations or any other operating performance measure prescribed by GAAP. EBITDA is not a measure of the Company’s liquidity, nor is it
indicative of funds available to fund the Company’s cash needs, including its ability to make cash distributions. EBITDA does not reflect cash expenditures
for long-term assets and other items that have been and will be incurred. EBITDA may include funds that may not be available for management’s
discretionary use due to functional requirements to conserve funds for capital expenditures, property acquisitions, and other commitments and uncertainties.
To compensate for this, management considers the impact of the excluded items to the extent they are material to operating decisions or evaluation of the
Company’s operating performance.
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The following is a reconciliation between net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders and EBITDA for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 (dollars in thousands):
 

   

For the year ended December 31,

 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

 
Earnings Before Interest, Taxes,              

Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA):              
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders   $10,691  $ 28,036  $ (3,939)
Interest    13,081   14,331   15,333 
Equity in interest expense of joint venture    573   590   579 
Income tax (benefit) expense:              

Income tax benefit    (3,507)  (5,605)  (2,850)
Income tax (benefit) expense from discontinued operations    128   (37)  (167)

Depreciation and other amortization    39,046   33,702   33,531 
Equity in depreciation/amortization of joint venture    1,164   1,130   1,062 
Amortization of deferred financing costs    2,268   3,511   2,398 
Minority interest:              

Minority interest in LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P    289   40   52 
Minority interest in discontinued operations    68   779   52 

Distributions to preferred shareholders    12,532   10,805   8,410 
     

EBITDA   $ 76,333  $87,282  $54,461 
     
 
The Hotels
 The following table sets forth historical comparative information with respect to occupancy, average daily rate (“ADR”) and room revenue per available
room (“RevPAR”) for the total hotel portfolio for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
 

   

Year ended December 31,

 

   

2004

  

2003

  

Variance

 
Total Portfolio             
Occupancy    67.9%  64.8% 4.9%
ADR   $152.31  $146.45  4.0%
RevPAR   $ 103.49  $ 94.84  9.1%

 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
 
Investment in Joint Venture
 The Company is a party to a joint venture arrangement with The Carlyle Group, an institutional investor, that owns the 1,192-room Chicago Marriott
Downtown in Chicago, Illinois. The Company owns a non-controlling 9.9% equity interest in the joint venture that owns the Chicago Marriott Downtown.
The Company receives an annual preferred return in addition to its pro rata share of annual cash flow. The Company also has the opportunity to earn an
incentive participation in net sale proceeds based upon the achievement of certain overall investment returns, in addition to its pro rata share of net sale or
refinancing proceeds. The Chicago Marriott Downtown is leased to Chicago 540 Lessee, Inc., in which the Company also owns a non-controlling 9.9% equity
interest. The Carlyle Group owns a 90.1% controlling interest in both the joint venture that owns the Chicago Marriott Downtown and Chicago 540 Lessee,
Inc. Marriott International, Inc. operates the Chicago Marriott Downtown pursuant to a long-term incentive-based operating agreement. As the controlling owner,
The Carlyle Group may elect to dispose of the Chicago Marriott Downtown without the Company’s consent. The Company accounts for its non-controlling
9.9% equity interest in each of the joint venture that owns the Chicago Marriott Downtown and Chicago 540 Lessee, Inc. under the equity method of
accounting.
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The joint venture that owns the Chicago Marriott Downtown and in which the Company holds a non-controlling 9.9% ownership interest was subject to
two mortgage loans for an aggregate principal amount of $120.0 million. The mortgage loans had two-year terms, and were due to expire in July 2004. On April
6, 2004, the joint venture that owns the Chicago Marriott Downtown refinanced its existing two mortgage loans with a new mortgage loan for an aggregate
principal amount of $140.0 million. Upon refinancing, the Company received approximately $1.8 million in cash representing its prorated share of the
proceeds. The new mortgage loan has a two-year term, expires in April 2006, and can be extended at the option of the joint venture for three additional one-year
terms. The mortgage bears interest at the London InterBank Offered Rate plus 2.25%. The joint venture has purchased a cap on the London InterBank Offered
Rate capping the London InterBank Offered Rate at 7.25%, effectively limiting the rate on the mortgage to 9.5%. As of December 31, 2004, the interest rate on
this mortgage was 4.7%. Monthly interest-only payments are due in arrears throughout the term. The Chicago Marriott Downtown secures the mortgage. The
Company’s pro rata share of the mortgage loan is approximately $13.9 million and is included in the Company’s liquidity and capital resources discussion
and in calculating debt coverage ratios under the Company’s credit facility. No guarantee exists on behalf of the Company for this mortgage.
 

On November 2, 2004, the Chicago 540 Hotel Venture, in which the Company has a non-controlling 9.9% ownership interest, obtained a three and a
half year commitment for a $5.75 million FF&E credit facility to be used for partial funding of the FF&E costs related to the property. The FF&E credit
facility matures on the earlier of i) April 30, 2008, or ii) three years from the date on which the final borrowing is made. The borrower has an option to borrow
portions of the principal debt bearing interest with reference to the base rate or to LIBOR, and portions may be converted from one interest basis to another.
Base rate will be the greater of i) the rate established by the lender as a base rate and which is designated by the lender as its U.S. prime rate, or ii) the Federal
Funds Rate plus 0.50%. LIBOR rate will be set two business days before the start of an interest period. The Chicago 540 Hotel Venture purchased a cap on
London InterBank Offered Rate capping the London InterBank Offered Rate at 7.5%. Consistent with our ownership interest, the Company is guaranteeing
9.9% of the credit facility. The company’s maximum exposure under the FF&E facility is $569, and the guarantee will expire at the maturity of the credit
facility. In the event of default, any outstanding principal and accrued interest will be due and payable. As of December 31, 2004, there were no outstanding
borrowings under the FF&E credit facility.
 
Reserve Funds
 The Company is obligated to maintain reserve funds for capital expenditures at the hotels (including the periodic replacement or refurbishment of
furniture, fixtures and equipment) as determined pursuant to the operating agreements. The Company’s aggregate obligation under the reserve funds was
approximately $20.1 million at December 31, 2004. Five of the operating agreements require that the Company reserve restricted cash ranging from 4.0% to
5.5% of the individual hotel’s annual revenues. As of December 31, 2004, $5.7 million was available in restricted cash reserves for future capital
expenditures. Fourteen of the operating agreements require that the Company reserve funds of 4.0% of the individual hotel’s annual revenues but do not require
the funds to be set aside in restricted cash. As of December 31, 2004, the total amount obligated for future capital expenditures but not set aside in restricted
cash reserves was $14.4 million. Amounts will be recorded as incurred. As of December 31, 2004, purchase orders and letters of commitment totaling
approximately $17.0 million have been issued for renovations at the hotels. The Company has committed to these projects and anticipates making similar
arrangements with the existing hotels or any future hotels that it may acquire. Any unexpended amounts will remain the property of the Company upon
termination of the operating agreements.
 

The Company has no other off-balance sheet arrangements.
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 The Company’s principal source of cash to meet its cash requirements, including distributions to shareholders, is its pro rata share of hotel operating
cash flow distributed by LHL and the Operating Partnership’s
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cash flow from the participating leases. Available cash is generally defined as net income plus any reduction in reserves and minus interest and principal
payments on debt, capital expenditures, and additions to reserves and other adjustments. The Company’s senior unsecured bank facility contains certain
financial covenants relating to debt service coverage, net worth and total funded indebtedness and contains financial covenants that, assuming no continuing
defaults, allow the Company to make shareholder distributions (see below). There are currently no contractual or other arrangements limiting payment of
distributions by the Operating Partnership. Similarly, LHL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Operating Partnership. Payments to the Operating Partnership
are required to be paid pursuant to the terms of the lease agreements between LHL and the Operating Partnership relating to the properties owned by the
Operating Partnership and leased by LHL. Except for the security deposits required under the participating leases for the two hotels not leased by LHL, the
lessees’ obligations under the participating leases are unsecured and the lessees’ abilities to make rent payments to the Operating Partnership, and the
Company’s liquidity, including its ability to make distributions to shareholders, is dependent on the lessees’ abilities to generate sufficient cash flow from the
operations of the hotels.
 

In addition, cash flow from hotel operations is subject to all operating risks common to the hotel industry. These risks include:
 
 •  competition for guests and meetings from other hotels, including competition from internet wholesalers and distributors;
 
 

•  increases in operating costs including wages, benefits, insurance, property taxes and energy due to inflation and other factors, which may not be
offset in the future by increases in room rates;

 
 •  dependence on demand from business and leisure travelers, which may fluctuate and be seasonal;
 
 •  increases in energy costs, airline fares, and other expenses related to travel, which may deter traveling;
 
 •  terrorism alerts and warnings and military actions such as the war in Iraq, which may cause decreases in business and leisure travel; and
 
 •  adverse affects of weak general and local economic conditions.
 

These factors could adversely affect the ability of the hotel operators to generate revenues and therefore adversely affect the lessees of the Company’s
hotels and their ability to make rental payments to the Company pursuant to the participating leases and therefore impact the Company’s liquidity.
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The following is a summary of the Company’s obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2004 (dollars in thousands):
 

   Total
Amounts

Committed

  

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

     

Less than
1 year

  

1 to 3
years

  

4 to 5
years

  

Over 5
years

Contractual Obligations                     
Mortgage loans—GE Capital Corporation                     

Sheraton Bloomington and Westin City Center Dallas   $ 85,429  $ 4,344  $ 13,032  $ 68,053  $ —  
Le Montrose Suite Hotel    31,869   1,344   4,034   2,690   23,801
San Diego Paradise Point Resort    94,142   4,674   14,023   75,445   —  
Indianapolis Marriott Downtown    67,145   2,029   63,087   2,029   —  
Hilton Alexandria Old Town    42,033   2,408   7,225   32,400   —  

Ground rent                     
Harborside Hyatt Conference Center & Hotel    11,135   525   1,541   1,028   8,041
Sheraton Bloomington Hotel    1,111   111   333   222   445
San Diego Paradise Point Resort    88,867   1,957   5,870   3,913   77,127

Bonds payable                     
Massport taxable bonds    5,763   121   5,642   —     —  
Massport tax-exempt bonds    39,011   637   38,374   —     —  

Purchase commitments (1)                     
Purchase orders and letters of commitment    15,000   15,000   —     —     —  

           
Total contractual obligations   $ 481,505  $ 33,150  $ 153,161  $ 185,780  $ 109,414

Commercial Commitments                     
Borrowings under credit facilities    —     —     —     —     —  

           
Dividends on Preferred Shares                     

Dividends payable on preferred shares    34,078   12,532   19,243   2,303   —  
           

Total contractual obligations, commercial commitments and dividends on preferred
shares excluding off-balance sheet arrangements   $ 515,583  $ 45,682  $ 172,404  $ 188,083  $ 109,414

           
Off-Balance Sheet Obligation                     

Mortgage loans—CIGNA Chicago Hotel Venture    17,110   650   16,460   —     —  
           

Chicago Hotel Venture—FF&E LOC Guarantee    —     —     —     —     —  
           
Total obligations and commitments   $ 532,693  $ 46,332  $ 188,864  $ 188,083  $ 109,414
           
 (1)  As of December 31, 2004, purchase orders and letters of commitment totaling approximately $15.0 million had been issued for renovations at the hotels.

The Company has committed to these projects and anticipates making similar arrangements with the existing hotels or any future hotels that it may
acquire.

 
The Company had a senior unsecured bank facility from a syndicate of banks, which provided for a maximum borrowing of up to $215.0 million and

was due to mature on December 31, 2006. On August 30, 2004, the Company, in accordance with bank facility terms, executed a commitment agreement
expanding the commitment facility from $215.0 to $300.0 million. The unsecured bank facility matures on December 31, 2006 and has a one-year extension
option. The senior unsecured bank facility contains certain financial covenants relating to debt service coverage, net worth and total funded indebtedness and
contains financial covenants that,
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assuming no continuing defaults, allow the Company to make shareholder distributions which, when combined with the distributions to shareholders in the
three immediately preceding fiscal quarters, do not exceed the greater of (i) funds from operations from the preceding four-quarter rolling period or (ii) the
greater of (a) the amount of distributions required for the Company to maintain its status as a REIT or (b) the amount required to ensure the Company will
avoid imposition of an excise tax for failure to make certain minimum distributions on a calendar year basis. Borrowings under the new senior unsecured
bank facility bear interest at floating rates equal to, at the Company’s option, either (i) London InterBank Offered Rate plus an applicable margin, or (ii) an
“Adjusted Base Rate” plus an applicable margin. For the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the weighted average interest rate for borrowings under the
senior unsecured bank facility was approximately 3.7% and 3.8%, respectively. The Company did not have any Adjusted Base Rate borrowings outstanding
at December 31, 2004. Additionally, the Company is required to pay a variable unused commitment fee determined from a ratings or leverage based pricing
matrix, currently set at 0.250% of the unused portion of the senior unsecured bank facility. The Company incurred an unused commitment fee of
approximately $0.5 million and $0.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company
had no outstanding borrowings against the senior unsecured bank facility.
 

LHL had a three-year commitment for a $7.5 million senior unsecured revolving bank facility to be used for working capital and general corporate
purposes. On January 1, 2003, LHL amended its unsecured revolving credit facility agreement to allow for maximum borrowings of $10.0 million. This LHL
credit facility matured on December 31, 2003. Effective January 1, 2004, LHL renewed its credit facility for $13.0 million for three additional years. Effective
August 30, 2004, LHL again amended and increased its unsecured revolving credit facility to allow for maximum borrowings of $25.0 million. The new LHL
credit facility matures December 31, 2006. Borrowings under the LHL credit facility bear interest at floating rates equal to, at LHL’s option, either (i) London
InterBank Offered Rate plus an applicable margin, or (ii) an “Adjusted Base Rate” plus an applicable margin. The weighted average interest rate under the
facility for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was 3.6% and 3.5%, respectively. LHL is required to pay a variable unused commitment fee
determined from a ratings-based pricing matrix, and currently set at 0.250% of the unused portion of the LHL credit facility. LHL incurred an immaterial
commitment fee for each of the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had no outstanding borrowings
against the LHL credit facility.
 

On December 12, 2003, the Company, through LHO San Diego Financing L.L.C., entered into a five-year mortgage loan totaling $65.0 million that is
secured by the San Diego Paradise Point Resort. The mortgage loan matures on February 9, 2009 and does not allow for prepayment prior to maturity without
penalty. The mortgage loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 5.25% and requires interest and principal payments based on a 25-year amortization schedule. The
loan agreement requires the Company to hold funds in escrow sufficient for the payment of 50% of the annual insurance premiums and real estate taxes related
to the hotel that secures the loan. Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $3.4 and $0.2 million, respectively. The mortgage loan
had a principal balance of $63.9 million at December 31, 2004.
 

On February 26, 2004, the Company, through LHO Indianapolis Hotel One, L.L.C., entered into a three-year mortgage loan that is secured by the
Indianapolis Marriott Downtown. The mortgage loan matures on February 9, 2007 and can be extended at the option of the Company for two additional one-
year terms. The mortgage does not allow for prepayment without penalty prior to February 25, 2006. The mortgage bears interest at the London InterBank
Offered Rate plus 1.0%. As of December 31, 2004, the interest rate was 2.3%. On February 27, 2004, the Company entered into a three-year fixed interest rate
swap that fixes the London InterBank Offered Rate at 2.56% for the $57.0 million balance outstanding on this mortgage loan, and therefore fixes the mortgage
interest rate at 3.56%. Monthly interest-only payments are due in arrears throughout the term. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $1.2
million for the mortgage secured by the Indianapolis property plus an additional $0.5 million for the interest rate swap. The principal balance of this mortgage
loan was $57.0 million and zero at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
 

On August 26, 2004, the Company, through LHO Alexandria One, L.L.C., entered into a five-year mortgage loan that is secured by the Hilton
Alexandria Old Town Hotel located in Alexandria, Virginia. The mortgage loan
 

35



Table of Contents

matures on September 1, 2009 and does not allow for prepayment without penalty prior to June 1, 2009. The mortgage bears interest at a fixed rate of 4.98%
and requires interest and principal payments based on a 25-year amortization schedule. Monthly interest and principal payments are due in arrears throughout
the term. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $0.6 million. The principal balance of this mortgage loan was $34.2 million and zero at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
 

Effective January 1, 2001, LHL became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as provided for under the taxable-REIT subsidiary provisions of
the Code. LHL leased 16 hotels as of December 31, 2004 and currently leases the following 18 hotels owned by the Company:
 
 •  Seaview Marriott Resort and Spa
 
 •  LaGuardia Airport Marriott
 
 •  Harborside Hyatt Conference Center & Hotel
 
 •  Hotel Viking
 
 •  Topaz Hotel
 
 •  Hotel Rouge
 
 •  Hotel Madera
 
 •  Hotel Helix
 
 •  Holiday Inn on the Hill
 
 •  Sheraton Bloomington Hotel Minneapolis South
 
 •  Lansdowne Resort
 
 •  Westin City Center Dallas
 
 •  Hotel George
 
 •  Indianapolis Marriott Downtown
 
 •  Hilton Alexandria Old Town
 
 •  Chaminade Resort and Conference Center
 
 •  Hilton San Diego Gaslamp Quarter
 
 •  Grafton on Sunset
 

In March 2002, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 3,991,900 10¼% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares, par
value $0.01 per share (Liquidation Preference $25 per share) (the “2002 Equity Offering”). After deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and
other offering costs, the Company raised net proceeds of approximately $96.1 million. The net proceeds were used to repay then existing indebtedness under
the Company’s senior unsecured bank facility and to fund the redevelopment of the D.C. Collection throughout the year.
 

In June 2003, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 2,041,000 common shares of beneficial interest, par value $0.01 per share.
After deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering costs, the Company raised net proceeds of approximately $29.1 million. The net
proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under the Company’s senior unsecured bank facility. On July 1, 2003, the Company issued an additional
204,000 common shares pursuant to an over allotment option for approximately $2.9 million after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions.
 

In September 2003, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 1,000,000 shares of 8  3/8% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred
Shares, par value $0.01 per share (Liquidation Preference $25 per share). After deducting underwriting discounts and commission, the Company raised net
proceeds of approximately $24.4 million. The net proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under the Company’s senior unsecured bank facility. On
October 1, 2003, the Company issued an additional 100,000 Series B Preferred Shares pursuant to an over allotment option for approximately $2.4 million
after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions.
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In November 2003, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 3,000,000 common shares of beneficial interest, par value $0.01 per
share. After deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering costs, the Company raised net proceeds of approximately $50.0 million.
The net proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under the Company’s senior unsecured bank facility.
 

On May 12, 2004, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 2,700,000 common shares of beneficial interest, par value $0.01 per
share. After deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering costs, the Company raised net proceeds of approximately $55.4 million.
The net proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under the Company’s senior unsecured credit facility. The Company sold an additional 300,000
common shares on May 13, 2004, pursuant to an over allotment option for approximately $6.2 million after deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions.
 

On November 16, 2004, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 1,750,000 common shares of beneficial interest, par value $0.01
per share. After deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering costs, the Company raised net proceeds of approximately $54.9
million. The net proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under the Company’s senior unsecured credit facility and to fund future acquisitions.
 

At December 31, 2004, the Company had approximately $32.1 million of cash and cash equivalents and approximately $7.4 million of restricted cash
reserves.
 

Net cash provided by operating activities was approximately $55.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 primarily due to the distribution of
available hotel operating cash by LHL and participating lease revenues, which were offset by payments for real estate taxes, personal property taxes, insurance
and ground rent.
 

Net cash used in investing activities was approximately $172.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 primarily due to the purchases of the
Indianapolis Marriott Downtown, the Hilton Alexandria Old Town and Chaminade Resort and Conference Center, outflows for improvements and additions at
the hotels, the funding of restricted cash reserves, offset by proceeds from restricted cash reserves and proceeds from the sale of the Omaha Marriott.
 

Net cash provided by financing activities was approximately $114.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, comprised of borrowings under the
senior unsecured bank facility, proceeds from mortgage loans, proceeds from the exercise of stock options and proceeds form the May 2004 and November
2004 common stock offerings, offset by repayments of borrowings under the senior unsecured bank facility, payment of distributions to the common
shareholders and unitholders and payments of distributions to preferred shareholders and mortgage loan repayments.
 

The Company has considered its short-term (one year or less) liquidity needs and the adequacy of its estimated cash flow from operations and other
expected liquidity sources to meet these needs. The Company believes that its principal short-term liquidity needs are to fund normal recurring expenses, debt
service requirements, distributions on the preferred shares and the minimum distribution required to maintain the Company’s REIT qualification under the
Code. The Company anticipates that these needs will be met with cash flows provided by operating activities and using availability under the senior unsecured
bank facility. The Company also considers capital improvements and property acquisitions as short-term needs that will be funded either with cash flows
provided by operating activities, utilizing availability under the senior unsecured bank facility, the issuance of other indebtedness, or the issuance of
additional equity securities.
 

The Company expects to meet long-term (greater than one year) liquidity requirements such as property acquisitions, scheduled debt maturities, major
renovations, expansions and other nonrecurring capital improvements utilizing availability under the senior unsecured bank facility, estimated cash flows
from operations, the issuance of long-term unsecured and secured indebtedness and the issuance of additional equity
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securities. The Company expects to acquire or develop additional hotel properties only as suitable opportunities arise, and the Company will not undertake
acquisition or development of properties unless stringent acquisition/development criteria have been achieved.
 
Reserve Funds
 The Company is obligated to maintain reserve funds for capital expenditures at the hotels (including the periodic replacement or refurbishment of
furniture, fixtures and equipment) as determined pursuant to the operating agreements. The Company’s aggregate obligation under the reserve funds was
approximately $20.1 million at December 31, 2004. Four of the participating leases and one mortgage agreement require that the Company reserve restricted
cash ranging from 4.0% to 5.5% of the individual hotel’s annual revenues. As of December 31, 2004, $5.7 million was available in restricted cash reserves for
future capital expenditures. Fourteen of the participating leases require that the Company reserve funds of 4.0% of the individual hotel’s annual revenues but do
not require the funds to be set aside in restricted cash. As of December 31, 2004, the total amount obligated for future capital expenditures but not set aside in
restricted cash reserves was $14.4 million. Amounts will be capitalized as incurred. As of December 31, 2004, purchase orders and letters of commitment
totaling approximately $17.0 million have been issued for renovations at the hotels. The Company has committed to these projects and anticipates making
similar arrangements with the existing hotels or any future hotels that it may acquire. Any unexpended amounts will remain the property of the Company upon
termination of the participating leases.
 

The joint venture lease requires that the joint venture reserve restricted cash of 5.0% of the Chicago Marriott Downtown’s annual revenues; however, the
joint venture is not consolidated in the Company’s financial statements and, therefore, the amount of restricted cash reserves relating to the joint venture is not
recorded on the Company’s books and records.
 
Subsequent Events
 On January 6, 2005, the Company acquired a 100% interest in the Hilton San Diego Gaslamp Quarter, a 282-room upscale full-service hotel located in
the Gaslamp historic district in downtown San Diego, CA, for $85.0 million. The source of the funding for the acquisition was the Company’s senior
unsecured bank facility. The property is leased to LHL, and Davidson Hotel Company was hired to manage the property.
 

On January 10, 2005, the Company acquired a 100% interest in the Grafton on Sunset, a 108-room, upscale full-service hotel located in West
Hollywood, CA, for $25.5 million. The source of the funding for the acquisition was the Company’s senior unsecured bank facility. The property is leased
to LHL, and Outrigger Lodging Services was retained to manage the property.
 

On January 14, 2005, the Company declared monthly cash distributions to shareholders of the Company and partners of the operating partnership, in
the amount of $0.08 per common share of beneficial interest/unit for each of the months of January, February and March 2005.
 

On January 14, 2005, the Company paid its December 2005 monthly distribution of $0.08 per share/unit on its common shares of beneficial interest
and units of limited partnership interest to shareholders and unit holders of record as of December 31, 2004.
 

On January 14, 2005, the Company paid its preferred distribution of $0.64 per Series A Preferred Share for the quarter ended December 31, 2004 to
preferred shareholders of record at the close of business on January 1, 2005.
 

On January 14, 2005, the Company paid its preferred distribution of $0.52 per Series B Preferred Share for the quarter ended December 31, 2005 to
preferred shareholders of record at the close of business on January 1, 2005.
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On January 25, 2005, the Company granted 40,917 restricted common shares of beneficial interest to the Company’s executive officers. The restricted
shares granted vest over three years, starting January 1, 2007. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 
Inflation
 The Company’s revenues come primarily from its pro rata share of the operating partnership’s cash flow from the participating leases and the LHL hotel
operating revenues, thus the Company’s revenues will vary based on changes in the underlying hotels’ revenues. Therefore, the Company relies entirely on the
performance of the hotels and the lessees’ abilities to increase revenues to keep pace with inflation. The hotel operators can change room rates quickly, but
competitive pressures may limit the lessees’ and hotel operators’ abilities to raise rates faster than inflation or even at the same rate, as has been the case for the
period from the second quarter of 2001 through 2003.
 

The Company’s expenses (primarily real estate taxes, property and casualty insurance, administrative expenses and LHL hotel operating expenses) are
subject to inflation. These expenses are expected to grow with the general rate of inflation, except for property and casualty insurance, liability insurance,
property tax rates, employee benefits, and some wages, which are expected to increase at rates higher than inflation, and except for instances in which the
properties are subject to periodic real estate tax reassessments.
 
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
 In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment”, which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation”. SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and amends SFAS No. 95,
“Statement of Cash Flows”. Generally, the approach in SFAS No. 123(R) is similar to the approach described in SFAS No. 123. However, SFAS No. 123(R)
requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the income statement based on their fair
values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative. The new standard will be effective for the Company in the first interim or annual reporting period
beginning after June 15, 2005. Adoption is not expected to have a material effect on the Company.
 
Derivative/Financial Instruments
 In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to the effects of interest rate changes. As of December 31, 2004, approximately 21.0%
(including the Company’s $13.9 million pro rata portion of indebtedness relating to the Company’s joint venture investment in the Chicago Marriott
Downtown hotel) of the Company’s borrowings were subject to variable rates. The Company limits the risks associated with interest rate changes by following
established risk management policies and procedures including the use of derivatives. For interest rate exposures, derivatives are used primarily to align rate
movements between interest rates associated with the Company’s hotel operating revenue, participating lease revenue and other financial assets with interest
rates on related debt, and manage the cost of borrowing obligations. The Company may utilize derivative financial instruments to manage, or hedge, interest
rate risk. The Company requires that hedging derivative instruments be effective in reducing the interest rate risk exposure that they are designated to hedge.
This effectiveness is essential in order to qualify for hedge accounting. Some derivative instruments are associated with the hedge of an anticipated transaction.
In those cases, hedge effectiveness criteria also require that it be probable that the underlying transaction will occur. Instruments that meet these hedging criteria
are formally designated as hedges at the inception of the derivative contract. When the terms of an underlying transaction are modified, or when the underlying
hedged item ceases to exist, all changes in the fair value of the instrument are marked-to-market with changes in value included in net income each period until
the instrument matures.
 

The Company has a policy of only entering into contracts with major financial institutions based upon their credit ratings and other factors. When
viewed in conjunction with the underlying and offsetting exposure that the
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derivatives are designed to hedge, the Company has not sustained a material loss from those instruments nor does it anticipate any material adverse effect on
its net income or financial position in the future from the use of derivatives.
 

To manage interest rate risk, the Company may employ options, forwards, interest rate swaps, caps and floors or a combination thereof depending on
the underlying exposure. The Company utilizes a variety of borrowings including lines of credit and medium and long-term financings. To reduce overall
interest cost, the Company uses interest rate instruments, typically interest rate swaps, to convert a portion of its variable rate debt to fixed rate debt. Interest
rate differentials that arise under these swap contracts are recognized in interest expense over the life of the contracts. The resulting cost of funds is usually
lower than that which would have been available if debt with matching characteristics was issued directly.
 

To determine the fair values of derivative instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions
and risks existing as of each valuation date. For the majority of financial instruments including most derivatives, long-term investments and long-term debt,
standard market conventions and techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models, replacement cost, and termination cost are used to
determine fair value. All methods of assessing fair value result in a general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.
 
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
 

Interest Rate Sensitivity
 The table below provides information about our financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest rates, including mortgage obligations,
bonds and an interest rate swap. For debt obligations, the table presents scheduled maturities and related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity
dates. The debt securing the Indianapolis Marriott Downtown has been included in fixed rate debt because the Company has an interest rate swap in place
which is not used for trading purposes and effectively fixes the interest rate on the debt.
 

   

2005

  

2006

  

2007

  

2008

  

2009

  

Thereafter

  

Total

 
Fixed Rate Debt   $3,125  $3,327  $ 60,543  $3,756  $128,200  $12,859  $211,810 
Weighted Average Interest Rate    6.2%  6.2%  3.7%  6.3%  6.0%  8.1%  5.5%
Variable Rate Debt    —     —     42,500   —     —     —     42,500 
Weighted Average Interest Rate    —     —     1.3%  —     —     —     1.3%
         
Total   $3,125  $3,327  $103,043  $3,756  $128,200  $12,859  $ 254,310 
         
 

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to the fact that some of our long-term debt consists of variable interest rate loans. We
seek to limit the impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to lower our overall borrowing costs by closely monitoring our variable rate
debt and converting such debt to fixed rates when we deem such conversion advantageous.
 

The table above presents the principal amount of debt maturing each year, including annual amortization of principal, through December 31, 2009 and
thereafter and weighted average interest rates for the debt maturing in each specified period. This table reflects indebtedness outstanding as of December 31,
2004 and does not reflect indebtedness incurred after that date. Our ultimate exposure to interest rate fluctuations depends on the amount of indebtedness that
bears interest at variable rates, the time at which the interest rate is adjusted, the amount of adjustment, our ability to prepay or refinance variable rate
indebtedness and hedging strategies used to reduce the impact of any increases in rates.
 

The Company employs interest rate swaps to hedge against interest rate fluctuations. On February 27, 2004, the Company entered into a three-year fixed
interest rate swap that fixes the London Interbank offered rate at 2.56% for $57,000 of the Company’s mortgage loan secured by the Indianapolis hotel and
therefore fixes the mortgage rate at 3.56%.
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The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates. The Company’s interest rate risk management objective is to limit the impact of
interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to lower its overall borrowing costs. To achieve these objectives, the Company borrows at a combination
of fixed and variable rates. As of December 31, 2004, approximately $56.4 million of aggregate indebtedness (21.0% of total indebtedness), including the
Company’s $13.9 million pro rata portion of indebtedness relating to the Company’s joint venture investment in the Chicago Marriott Downtown hotel, was
subject to variable interest rates.
 

At December 31, 2004, the Company had no outstanding borrowings under the senior unsecured bank facility. Borrowings under the senior unsecured
bank facility bear interest at variable market rates. The weighted average interest rate under the facility for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was
3.7% and 3.8%, respectively. A 0.25% annualized change in interest rates would have changed interest expense by approximately $0.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2004. This change is based on the weighted average borrowings subject to variable rates under the senior unsecured bank facility for the
year ended December 31, 2004 of $44.8 million.
 

At December 31, 2004, the Company had no outstanding borrowings under the LHL credit facility. Borrowings under the LHL credit facility bear
interest at variable market rates. The weighted average interest rate under the facility for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was approximately 3.6%
and 3.5%, respectively. A 0.25% annualized change in interest rates would have changed interest expense by an immaterial amount for the year ended
December 31, 2004. This change is based on the weighted average borrowings under the LHL credit facility for the year ended December 31, 2004 of $5.9
million.
 

At December 31, 2004, the Company had outstanding bonds payable of $42.5 million. The bonds bear interest based on weekly floating rates and have
no principal reductions for the life of the bonds. The weighted average interest rate for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was 1.31% and 1.1%,
respectively. A 0.25% annualized change in interest rates would have changed interest expense by approximately $0.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2004. This change is based on the weighted average borrowings under the bonds for the year ended December 31, 2004 of $42.5 million.
 

At December 31, 2004, the mortgage loan that is collateralized by the Sheraton Bloomington Hotel Minneapolis South and the Westin City Center Dallas
had a balance of $42.7 million. At December 31, 2004, the carrying value of this mortgage loan approximated its fair value as the interest rate associated with
the borrowing approximated current market rates available for similar types of borrowing arrangements. This loan is subject to a fixed interest rate of 8.1%,
matures on July 31, 2009 and requires interest and principal payments based on a 25-year amortization schedule.
 

At December 31, 2004, the mortgage loan that is collateralized by the Le Montrose Suite Hotel located in West Hollywood, California had a balance of
$14.0 million. At December 31, 2004, the carrying value of this mortgage approximated its fair value as the interest rate associated with the borrowing
approximated current market rate available for similar types of borrowing arrangements. This loan is subject to a fixed interest rate of 8.08%, matures on July
31, 2010, and requires interest and principal payments based on a 27-year amortization schedule.
 

At December 31, 2004, the mortgage loan that is collateralized by the San Diego Paradise Point Resort had a principal balance of $63.9 million. At
December 31, 2004, the carrying value of this mortgage approximated its fair values as the interest rate associated with the borrowing approximated current
market rate available for similar types of borrowing arrangements. This loan is subject to a fixed interest rate of 5.25%, matures on February 1, 2009, and
requires interest and principal payments based on a 25-year amortization schedule.
 

At December 31, 2004, the mortgage loan that is collateralized by the Indianapolis Marriott Downtown had a principal balance of $57.0 million. This
mortgage loan bears interest at a floating rate that is reset monthly. However, the Company is party to a fixed interest rate swap agreement that fixes the London
InterBank Offered rate at 2.56% for the $57.0 million balance outstanding on the Company’s mortgage loan secured by the
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Indianapolis hotel, and therefore fixes the mortgage interest rate at 3.56%. At December 31, 2004, the carrying value of the mortgage loan approximated its fair
value as the interest rate associated with the borrowings approximated the current market rate available for similar borrowing arrangements. This loan matures
on February 9, 2007, can be extended at the option of the Company for two additional one-year terms and requires interest-only payments monthly throughout
the term of the loan.
 

At December 31, 2004, the mortgage loan that is collateralized by the Hilton Alexandria Old Town Hotel had a principal balance of $34.2 million. At
December 31, 2004, the carrying value of this mortgage approximated its fair value as the interest rate associated with the borrowing approximated the current
market rate available for similar types of borrowing arrangements. This loan is subject to a fixed interest rate of 4.98%, matures on September 1, 2009, and
requires interest and principal payments based on a 25-year amortization schedule.
 
Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
 See Index to the Financial Statements on page F-1.
 
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
 None.
 
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
 Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures – The Company have established disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material
information relating to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to the officers who certify the Company’s financial reports and
to the members of senior management and the Board of Trustees.
 

Based on management’s evaluation as of December 31, 2004, the principal executive officer and principal financial officer of the Company have
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934)
are effective to ensure that the information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms.
 

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting –  The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our principal executive officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework  issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework , our management concluded that our
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2004. Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which
is included herein.
 

The Company acquired Chaminade Resort and Conference Center on November 18, 2004 and has excluded from its assessment of effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, Chaminade’s internal control over financial reporting associated with total assets of $19.7
million and total revenues of $1.0 million as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004.
 

Changes in Internal Controls –  There were no changes to the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during the fourth quarter ended
December 31, 2004 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting.
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PART III
 
Item 10. Trustees and Executive Officers of the Registrant
 The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders (the “Proxy Statement”) under the captions “Election of Trustees” and “Audit Committee Report.”
 
Item 11. Executive Compensation
 The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Proxy Statement under the caption “Executive Compensation.”
 
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
 The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Proxy Statement under the captions “Equity Compensation
Plans,” “Election of Trustees” and “Principal and Management Shareholders.”
 
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
 None
 
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
 The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Proxy Statement under the caption “Ratification of Appointment
of Independent Registered Public Accountants—Fee Disclosure.”
 

PART IV
 
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
 (a)  1.     Financial Statements
 

Included herein at pages F-1 through F-41
 
     2.     Financial Statement Schedules
 

The following financial statement schedule is included herein at pages F-40 and F-41.
 

Schedule III – Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation
 

All other schedules for which provision is made in Regulation S-X are either not required to be included herein under the related instructions or are
inapplicable or the related information is included in the footnotes to the applicable financial statement and, therefore, have been omitted.
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     3.    Exhibits
 

The following exhibits are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:
 

Exhibit
Number

  

Description of Exhibit

  2.1
  

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of June 16, 1998, by and between Bird Island Limited Partnership and LaSalle Hotel Operating
Partnership, L.P. (3)

  3.1   Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Declaration of Trust of the Registrant (4)
  3.2   Bylaws of the Registrant (4)
  3.3

  

Articles Supplementary relating to the 10 1/4% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares of Beneficial Interest, Liquidation Preference
$25.00 Per Share, Par Value $.01 Per Share (15)

  4.1   Form of Common Share of Beneficial Interest (1)
  4.2   Form of Common Share Purchase Right (LaSalle) (1)
  4.3   Form of Common Share Purchase Right (Steinhardt/Cargill) (1)
  4.4   Common Share Purchase Right dated April 29, 1998 (LaSalle Partners) (4)
  4.5   Common Share Purchase Right dated April 29, 1998 (Steinhardt) (4)
  4.6   Common Share Purchase Right dated April 29, 1998 (Cargill) (4)
  4.7

  

Form of certificate evidencing 10 1/4% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares of Beneficial Interest, Liquidation Preference $25.00
Per Share, Par Value $.01 Per Share (15)

  10.1   Form of Agreement of Limited Partnership of the Operating Partnership (1)
  10.2   Form of Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Advisor (1)
  10.3   Form of Registration Rights Agreement relating to Rights to Purchase Common Shares (1)
  10.4   Form of Registration Rights Agreement relating to Units, exchangeable for Common Shares (1)
  10.5   Share Option Plan (1)*
  10.6   Omnibus Contribution Agreement By and Among LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. and the Contributors named herein (1)
  10.7   Contribution Agreement (Steinhardt) (1)
  10.8   Contribution Agreement (Cargill) (1)
  10.9   Contribution Agreement (OLS Visalia) (1)
  10.10   Contribution Agreement (OLS Le Montrose) (1)
  10.11   Contribution Agreement (Durbin) (1)
  10.12   Contribution Agreement (Radisson) (1)
  10.13   Form of Advisory Agreement (1)
  10.14   Form of Management Agreement (1)

  10.15   Form of Lease (1)
  10.16   Form of Lease with Affiliated Lessees (1)
  10.17   Form of Supplemental Representations, Warranties and Indemnity Agreement (1)
  10.18   Form of Pledge and Security Agreement (1)
  10.19

  

Purchase and Sale Agreement with Joint Escrow Instructions, dated as of June 1, 1998, by and between VVH Resorts, Ltd. and LHO
Mission Bay Hotel, L.P. (2)

  10.20   Subscription Agreement (with registration rights), dated as of May 28, 1998, by WestGroup San Diego Associates, Ltd. (2)
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Exhibit
Number

  

Description of Exhibit

  10.21   Agreement of Limited Partnership, dated as of June 1,1998, of LHO Mission Bay Hotel, L.P. (2)
  10.22   Lease Agreement, dated as of June 1, 1998, by and between LHO Mission Bay Hotel, L.P. and WestGroup San Diego Associates, Ltd. (2)
  10.23   Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of the Operating Partnership dated as of April 29, 1998 (4)
  10.24   Advisory Agreement, dated as of April 23, 1998, by and between the Registrant and LaSalle Hotel Advisors, Inc. (4)
  10.25

  

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 29, 1998, with respect to Common Shares which may be Issued upon Exchange of
Operating Partnership Units (LaSalle Partners) (4)

  10.26
  

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 29, 1998, with respect to Common Shares which may be Issued upon Exchange of
Operating Partnership Units (Steinhardt) (4)

  10.27
  

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 29, 1998, with respect to Common Shares which may be Issued upon Exchange of
Operating Partnership Units (Cargill) (4)

  10.28   Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 29, 1998, with respect to Common Share Purchase Rights (LaSalle Partners) (4)
  10.29   Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 29, 1998, with respect to Common Share Purchase Rights (Steinhardt) (4)
  10.30   Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 29, 1998, with respect to Common Share Purchase Rights (Cargill) (4)
  10.31

  

Senior Unsecured Credit Agreement, dated as of April 23, 1998, among the Operating Partnership, Societe Generale, Southwest Agency, as
Co-Arranger, Administrative Agent, and Documentation Agent, Bank of Montreal, Chicago Branch, as Co-Arranger and Syndication Agent,
and the Banks (4)

  10.32
  

Lease Agreement, dated as of June 24, 1998, by and between LHO Harborside Hotel, L.L.C. as Landlord, and LaSalle Hotel Lessee, Inc. as
Tenant (4)

  10.33
  

Loan and Trust Agreement, dated as of December 15, 1990, as amended and restated as of June 27, 1991, among the Massachusetts Port
Authority, Logan Harborside Associates II Limited Partnership, and Shawmut Bank, N.A., as trustee (4)

  10.34
  

Credit Enhancement Agreement, dated as of June 27, 1991, among the Massachusetts Port Authority, Logan Harborside Associates II Limited
Partnership and Shawmut Bank, N.A. (4)

  10.35
  

Management Agreement, dated as of February 1, 1990, by and between Logan Harborside Associates II Limited Partnership and Hyatt
Corporation, and the First Amendment thereto dated as of June 27, 1991 (4)

  10.36
  

Leasehold Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated as of December 15, 1990, between Logan Harborside Associates II Limited Partnership
and Shawmut Bank, N.A., and the First Amendment thereto dated as of June 27, 1991 (4)

  10.37   1998 Share Option and Incentive Plan (5)
  10.38   Amended and Restated Senior Unsecured Credit Agreement (5)
  10.39   First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Unsecured Credit Agreement (5)
  10.40   Form of First Amendment to Lease with Affiliated Lessee (7)
  10.41   Form of Second Amendment to Lease with Affiliate Lessee (7)
  10.42   First Amendment to the 1998 Share Option and Incentive Plan (8)*
  10.43   LaSalle Hotel Properties 1998 Share Option and Incentive Plan, as amended through September 9, 1999 (9)*
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Exhibit
Number

  

Description of Exhibit

  10.44
  

Loan Agreement dated July 29, 1999 between LHO Financing Partnership I, L.P. and General Electric Capital Corporation (Radisson
Convention Hotel) (10)

  10.45
  

Fee and Leasehold Mortgage, Assignment of Leases and Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing dated July 29, 1999 (Radisson
Convention Hotel) (10)

  10.46
  

Second Fee and Leasehold Mortgage, Assignment of Leases and Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing dated July 29, 1999 (Radisson
Convention Hotel) (10)

  10.47
  

Loan Agreement dated July 29, 1999 between LHO Financing Partnership I, L.P. and General Electric Capital Corporation (LeMeridien
Dallas) (10)

  10.48   Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases and Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing dated July 29, 1999 (LeMeridien Dallas) (10)
  10.49

  

Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement and Employee Lease Agreement dated January 1, 2000 between LaSalle Hotel Properties and
LaSalle Hotel Advisors, Inc. (11)

  10.50
  

Stock Purchase Agreement dated July 28, 2000 by and among LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. and LaSalle Hotel Co-Investment,
Inc., LPI Charities and LaSalle Hotel Properties (12)

  10.51
  

Second Amended and Restated Senior Unsecured Credit Agreement dated November 13, 2000 by and among Societe Generale, Bank of
Montreal, Deutche Banc Alex. Brown and LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. (12)

  10.52
  

Environmental Indemnification Agreement dated November 13, 2000 by and among Societe Generale, Bank of Montreal, Deutsche Banc Alex.
Brown and LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. (12)

  10.53
  

Guaranty and Contribution Agreement dated November 13, 2000 by and among Societe Generale, Bank of Montreal, Deutche Banc Alex.
Brown and LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. (12)

  10.54
  

Termination and Services Agreement dated December 28, 2000 by and among LaSalle Hotel Properties, and LaSalle Hotel Advisors, Inc. and
LaSalle Investment Management, Inc. (12)

  10.55   Revolving Credit Note dated January 3, 2001 between LaSalle Hotel Lessee, Inc. and Firstar Bank, National Association (12)
  10.56   Guaranty dated January 3, 2001 between LaSalle Hotel Lessee, Inc. and Firstar Bank, National Association (12)
  10.57

  

Third Amended and Restated Senior Unsecured Credit Agreement dated June 26, 2001 by and among Societe Generale, Bank of Montreal,
Deutche Banc Alex. Brown and LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. (13)

  10.58
  

Environmental Indemnification Agreement dated June 26, 2001 by and among Societe Generale, Bank of Montreal, Deutche Banc Alex. Brown
and LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. (13)

  10.59
  

Guaranty and Contribution Agreement dated June 26, 2001 by and among Societe Generale, Bank of Montreal, Deutche Banc Alex. Brown
and LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. (13)

  10.60

  

Second Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Senior Unsecured Credit Agreement entered into on February 11, 2002 by and among
Societe Generale, Bank of Montreal, Bankers Trust Company, Credit Lyonnais, LaSalle Bank, N.A., Fleet National Bank, Firstar Bank,
and LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. (14)

  10.61
  

First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P., dated as of
March 6, 2002 (16)

  10.62   Change in Control Severance Agreement between Jon E. Bortz and LaSalle Hotel Properties dated as of January 28, 2002 (17)*
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Exhibit
Number

  

Description of Exhibit

  10.63   Change in Control Severance Agreement between Hans S. Weger and LaSalle Hotel Properties dated as of January 28, 2002 (17)*
  10.64   Change in Control Severance Agreement between Michael D. Barnello and LaSalle Hotel Properties dated as of January 28, 2002 (17)*
  10.65

  

Senior Unsecured Credit Agreement entered into on November 20, 2003 by and among Bank of Montreal, Fleet National Bank, HarrisNesbitt
Corp., Fleet Securities, Inc. and LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. (18)

  10.66
  

Guaranty and Contribution Agreement dated November 20, 2003 by and among Bank of Montreal, Fleet National Bank, Harris Nesbitt
Corp., Fleet Securities, Inc. and LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. (18)

  10.67
  

Environmental Indemnification Agreement dated November 20, 2003 by and among Bank of Montreal, Fleet National Bank, Harris Nesbitt
Corp., Fleet Securities, Inc. and LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. (18)

  12.1   Calculation of the Registrant’s Ratios of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends (6)
  21   List of subsidiaries
  23   Consent of KPMG LLP
  24.1   Power of Attorney (included in Part IV of this Annual Report on Form 10-K)
  31.1   Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
  31.2   Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
  32.1   Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as created by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
  32.2   Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as created by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
 *  Management contract or compensatory plan or agreement.

(1)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (No. 333-45647) and incorporated to Amendment No. 1 herein by
reference.

(2)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 8-K report filed with the SEC on June 15, 1998 and incorporated herein by reference.
(3)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 8-K report filed with the SEC on July 9, 1998 and incorporated herein by reference.
(4)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 14, 1998 and incorporated herein by reference.
(5)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on November 16, 1998 and incorporated herein by reference.
(6)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-77371) on April 29, 1999 and incorporated herein by

reference.
(7)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on May 12, 1999 and incorporated herein by reference.
(8)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 11, 1999 and incorporated herein by reference.
(9)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-86911) on September 10, 1999 and incorporated herein

by reference.
(10)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on November 12, 1999 and incorporated herein by reference.
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(11)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 2, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference.
(12)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 27, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference.
(13)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 8-K report filed with the SEC on September 4, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference.
(14)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 8-K report filed with the SEC on February 13, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference.
(15)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14045) on March 5, 2002 and incorporated herein by

reference.
(16)  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 8-K report filed with the SEC on March 12, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference.
(17)  Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 19, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference.
(18)  Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Form 8-K report filed with the SEC on December 15, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
 
    LASALLE HOTEL PROPERTIES

Dated: February 23, 2005
 

 

 

BY: 
 

/s/    HANS S. WEGER        

        Hans S. Weger
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned officers and trustees of LaSalle Hotel Properties, hereby severally constitute Jon

E. Bortz, Michael D. Barnello and Hans S. Weger, and each of them singly, our true and lawful attorneys with full power to them, and each of them singly, to
sign for us and in our names in the capacities indicated below, the Form 10-K filed herewith and any and all amendments to said Form 10-K, and generally to
do all such things in our names and in our capacities as officers and trustees to enable LaSalle Hotel Properties to comply with the provisions of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended and all requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming our signatures as they
may be signed by our said attorneys, or any of them, to said Form 10-K and any and all amendments thereto.
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and dates indicated.
 

Date

 

Signature

   

February 23, 2005

 

/s/    JON E. BORTZ

Jon E. Bortz   

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

February 23, 2005

 

/s/    DARRYL HARTLEY-LEONARD

Darryl Hartley-Leonard   

Trustee

February 23, 2005

 

/s/    KELLY L. KUHN

Kelly L. Kuhn   

Trustee

February 23, 2005

 

/s/    WILLIAM S. MCCALMONT

William S. McCalmont   

Trustee

February 23, 2005

 

/s/    DONALD S. PERKINS

Donald S. Perkins   

Trustee

February 23, 2005

 

/s/    STUART L. SCOTT

Stuart L. Scott   

Trustee

February 23, 2005

 

/s/    DONALD A. WASHBURN

Donald A. Washburn   

Trustee

February 23, 2005

 

/s/    MICHAEL D. BARNELLO

Michael D. Barnello   

Chief Operating Officer and Executive Vice President
of Acquisitions

February 23, 2005

 

/s/    HANS S. WEGER

Hans S. Weger   

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting
Officer)
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
 
The Shareholders and Board of Trustees
LaSalle Hotel Properties:
 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of LaSalle Hotel Properties (the Company) as listed in the accompanying index. In connection with
our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the financial statement schedule as listed in the accompanying index. These
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.
 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of LaSalle Hotel
Properties as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.
 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of
LaSalle Hotel Properties’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission  (COSO), and our report dated February 23, 2005
expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.
 

/s/    KPMG LLP
 
Chicago, Illinois
February 23, 2005
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
 
To the Shareholders and Board of Trustees
LaSalle Hotel Properties:
 

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting , that
LaSalle Hotel Properties (the Company) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
 

In our opinion, management’s assessment that LaSalle Hotel Properties maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in  Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO. Also, in our
opinion, LaSalle Hotel Properties maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO.
 

LaSalle Hotel Properties acquired Chaminade on November 18, 2004, and management excluded from its assessment of the effectiveness of LaSalle
Hotel Properties’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, Chaminade’s internal control over financial reporting associated with total
assets of $19,686,000 and total revenues of $1,028,000 as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
of LaSalle Hotel Properties also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Chaminade.
 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance
sheets of LaSalle Hotel Properties as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, and our report dated February 23, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements.
 

/s/    KPMG LLP
 
Chicago, Illinois
February 23, 2005
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LASALLE HOTEL PROPERTIES
 

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

 

   

December 31,
2004

  

December 31,
2003

 
Assets:          

Investment in hotel properties, net (Note 4)   $ 739,733  $595,976 
Property under development (Note 3)    32,508   14,743 
Investment in joint venture (Note 2)    1,341   3,488 
Cash and cash equivalents    32,102   34,761 
Restricted cash reserves (Note 9)    7,430   21,988 
Rent receivable    1,527   2,116 
Hotel receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately $255 and $261, respectively)    8,227   10,593 
Deferred financing costs, net    4,283   4,195 
Deferred tax asset    14,500   10,424 
Prepaid expenses and other assets    17,945   9,585 
Assets sold, net (Note 6)    —     35 

    
Total assets   $859,596  $ 707,904 

    

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:          
Borrowings under credit facilities (Note 8)   $ —    $ —   
Bonds payable (Note 8)    42,500   42,500 
Mortgage loans (including unamortized premium of zero and $2,015, respectively) (Note 8)    211,810   187,157 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 9)    35,338   26,842 
Advance deposits    4,423   3,202 
Accrued interest    1,181   705 
Distributions payable    5,554   4,853 
Liabilities of assets sold (Note 6)    162   61 

    
Total liabilities    300,968   265,320 

Minority interest in LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. (Note 2)    4,554   5,721 
Minority interest in other partnerships    —     10 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)    —     —   
Shareholders' Equity:          

Preferred shares, $.01 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized,
10 1/4% Series A—3,991,900 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively
(Note 10)    40   40 
8 3/8% Series B—1,100,000 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively
(Note 10)    11   11 

Common shares of beneficial interest, $.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized and 29,880,047 and
24,140,855 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively (Note 10)    299   241 

Additional paid-in capital, including offering costs of $31,853 and $28,461 at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively    617,742   485,724 

Deferred compensation    (2,332)  (3,394)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Note 12)    9 6 5   —   
Distributions in excess of retained earnings    (62,651)  (45,769)

    
Total shareholders’ equity    554,074   436,853 

    
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity   $859,596  $ 707,904 

    
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LASALLE HOTEL PROPERTIES
 

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

 

   

For the year ended December 31,

 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

 
Revenues:              

Hotel operating revenues:              
Room revenue   $ 152,100  $ 92,951  $ 78,062 
Food and beverage revenue .    86,404   56,266   43,546 
Other operating department revenue    23,291   16,941   13,491 

     
Total hotel operating revenues    261,795   166,158   135,099 

Participating lease revenue    18,635   21,284   21,909 
Other income (Note 9)    187   919   19 

     
Total revenues    280,617   188,361   157,027 

     

Expenses:              
Hotel operating expenses:              

Room    38,912   25,069   20,234 
Food and beverage    59,951   40,256   31,605 
Other direct    13,349   9,371   6,772 
Other indirect (Note 14)    74,486   48,389   38,543 

     
Total hotel operating expenses    186,698   123,085   97,154 

Depreciation and other amortization    38,933   31,665   28,272 
Real estate taxes, personal property taxes and insurance    11,891   9,347   7,852 
Ground rent (Note 9)    3,493   3,561   3,208 
General and administrative    8,398   7,292   6,423 
Amortization of deferred financing costs    2,268   2,399   2,251 
Impairment of investment in hotel property    —     2,453   —   
Contingent lease termination expenses (Note 9)    850   10   2,520 
Other expenses    632   251   165 

     
Total operating expenses    253,163   180,063   147,845 

     
Operating income    27,454   8,298   9,182 

Interest income    361   353   344 
Interest expense    (13,081)  (12,651)  (10,527)

     
Income (loss) before income tax benefit, minority interest, equity in earnings of unconsolidated entities

and discontinued operations    14,734   (4,000)  (1,001)
Income tax benefit (Note 15)    3,507   5,605   2,850 
     
Income before minority interest, equity in earnings of unconsolidated entities and discontinued operations    18,241   1,605   1,849 
Minority interest in LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P.     (289)  (40)  (52)
     
Income before equity in earnings of unconsolidated entities and discontinued operations    17,952   1,565   1,797 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated entities (Note 2)    853   304   458 
     
Income before discontinued operations    18,805   1,869   2,255 
Discontinued operations (Note 6):              

Income from operations of properties disposed of, including gain on disposal of assets    4,614   37,714   2,101 
Minority interest, net of tax    (68)  (779)  (52)
Income tax benefit (expense) (Note 15)    (128)  37   167 

     
Net income from discontinued operations    4,418   36,972   2,216 

Net income    23,223   38,841   4,471 
Distributions to preferred shareholders    (12,532)  (10,805)  (8,410)
     



Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders   $ 10,691  $ 28,036  $ (3,939)
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LASALLE HOTEL PROPERTIES
 Consolidated Statements of Operations—Continued

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
 

   

For the year ended December 31,

 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

 
Earnings per Common Share—Basic:              

Income (loss) applicable to common shareholders before discontinued operations
and after dividends paid on unvested restricted shares   $ 0.23  $ (0.46) $ (0.34)

Discontinued operations    0.16   1.85   0.12 
      

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders after dividends paid on
unvested restricted shares   $ 0.39  $ 1.39  $ (0.22)

      
Earnings per Common Share—Diluted:              

Income (loss) applicable to common shareholders before discontinued operations   $ 0.23  $ (0.43) $ (0.33)
Discontinued operations    0.16   1.80   0.12 

      
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders   $ 0.39  $ 1.37  $ (0.21)

      
Weighted average number common shares outstanding:              

Basic    26,740,506   20,030,723   18,413,602 
Diluted    27,376,934   20,487,406   18,843,530 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LASALLE HOTEL PROPERTIES
 Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
 

  

Preferred
Shares

 

Treasury
Shares

  

Common
Shares of
Beneficial
Interest

 

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

 

Deferred
Compensation

  

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

  

Distributions
in Excess of

Retained
Earnings

  

Total

 
Balance, December 31, 2001  $ —   $ —    $ 187 $ 278,060 $ (2,601) $ (883) $ (44,370) $ 230,393 

Issuance of shares, net of offering costs   40  —     —    95,965  —     —     —     96,005 
Options exercised   —    —     —    31  —     —     —     31 
Unit conversions   —    —     —    244  —     —     —     244 
Deferred compensation   —    —     —    83  (83)  —     —     —   
Amortization of deferred compensation   —    —     —    —    770   —     —     770 
Unrealized loss on interest rate derivatives   —    —     —    —    —     (167)  —     (167)
Distributions declared ($0.44 per common share)   —    —     —    —    —     —     (8,230)  (8,230)
Distributions ($ 2.11 per preferred share)   —    —     —    —    —     —     (8,410)  (8,410)
Net income   —    —     —    —    —     —     4,471   4,471 

         
Balance, December 31, 2002   40  —     187  374,383  (1,914)  (1,050)  (56,539)  315,107 

Issuance of shares, net of offering costs   11  —     52  108,261  —     —     —     108,324 
Options exercised   —    —     1  661  —     —     —     662 
Unit conversions   —    —     —    —    —     —     —     —   
Deferred compensation   —    —     1  2,419  (2,420)  —     —     —   
Amortization of deferred compensation   —    —     —    —    940   —     —     940 
Unrealized loss on interest rate derivatives   —    —     —    —    —     1,050   —     1,050 
Distributions declared ($0.84 per common share)   —    —     —    —    —     —     (17,266)  (17,266)
Distributions ($ 2.56 per Series A preferred share)   —    —     —    —    —     —     (10,229)  (10,229)
Distributions ($ 2.09 per Series B preferred share)   —    —     —    —    —     —     (576)  (576)
Net income   —    —     —    —    —     —     38,841   38,841 

         
Balance, December 31, 2003   51  —     241  485,724  (3,394)  —     (45,769)  436,853 

Issuance of shares, net of offering costs   —    7,051   44  109,757  —     —     (165)  116,687 
Repurchase of common shares (treasury shares)   —    (611)  —    —    —     —     —     (611)
Options exercised   —    43   6  6,353  —     —     (6)  6,396 
Stock rights exercised   —    (6,490)  8  14,563  —     —     (2,842)  5,239 
Unit conversions   —    —     —    1,155  —     —     —     1,155 
Deferred compensation   —    7   —    190  (197)  —     —     —   
Amortization of deferred compensation   —    —     —    —    1,259   —     —     1,259 
Unrealized gain on interest rate derivatives   —    —     —    —    —     965   —     965 
Distributions declared ($0.90 per common share)   —    —     —    —    —     —     (24,558)  (24,558)
Distributions ($ 2.56 per Series A preferred share)   —    —     —    —    —     —     (10,229)  (10,229)
Distributions ($ 2.09 per Series B preferred share)   —    —     —    —    —     —     (2,305)  (2,305)
Net income   —    —     —    —    —     —     23,223   23,223 

         
Balance, December 31, 2004  $ 51 $ —    $ 299 $ 617,742 $ (2,332) $ 965  $ (62,651) $554,074 

         
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LASALLE HOTEL PROPERTIES
 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
 

   

For the year ended December 31,

 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

 
Cash flows from operating activities:              

Net income   $ 23,223  $ 38,841  $ 4,471 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flow provided by operating activities:              

Depreciation and other amortization    39,046   33,702   33,531 
Amortization of deferred financing costs    2,268   3,511   2,398 
Minority interest in LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P.    357   819   104 
Gain on sale of property disposed of    (2,636)  (37,087)  —   
Loss on sale of property disposed of    —     425   —   
Writedown of notes receivable    —     —     158 
Impairment of investment in hotel property    —     2,453   —   
Gain on extinguishment of debt    (70)  —     —   
Gain on disposition of minority interest in other partnerships    (10)  —     —   
Income tax benefit    (3,936)  (5,642)  (3,017)
Deferred compensation    1,259   899   770 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated entities    (853)  (304)  (458)

Changes in assets and liabilities:              
Rent receivable    589   520   1,004 
Hotel receivables, net    2,724   (5,410)  (1,079)
Deferred tax asset    (140)  (567)  (3,096)
Prepaid expenses and other assets    (7,286)  6,147   1,587 
Mortgage loan premium    (75)  2,015   —   
Accounts payable and accrued expenses    372   (834)  2,618 
Advance deposits    5 5 9   2,266   63 
Accrued interest    (307)  (560)  (1,093)

     
Net cash flow provided by operating activities    55,084   41,194   37,961 

     
Cash flows from investing activities:              

Improvements and additions to hotel properties    (37,161)  (27,024)  (31,685)
Acquisition of hotel properties    (181,020)  (74,895)  —   
Distributions from joint venture    3,000   1,396   1,198 
Purchase of office furniture and equipment    (441)  (203)  (23)
Repayment of notes receivable    —     1,319   600 
Funding of notes receivable    —     —     (198)
Funding of restricted cash reserves    (7,444)  (22,207)  (15,164)
Proceeds from restricted cash reserves    22,002   18,956   2,896 
Proceeds from sale of investment in hotel properties    28,596   49,949   828 

     
Net cash flow used in investing activities    (172,468)  (52,709)  (41,548)

     
Cash flows from financing activities:              

Borrowings under credit facilities    304,315   124,766   64,676 
Repayments under credit facilities    (304,315)  (224,156)  (140,686)
Proceeds from mortgage loans    91,400   65,000   —   
Repayments of mortgage loans    (64,732)  (1,673)  (1,520)
Mortgage loan premium    (1,870)  —     —   
Payment of deferred financing costs    (1,592)  (3,022)  (567)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options    12,060   662   —   
Proceeds from issuance of preferred shares    —     27,500   99,798 
Proceeds from issuance of common shares    119,625   83,919   —   
Payment of preferred offering costs    —     (732)  (3,868)
Payment of common offering costs    (3,392)  (2,360)  —   
Distributions-preferred shares    (12,532)  (10,229)  (5,853)
Distributions-common shares    (24,242)  (19,920)  (4,590)

     
Net cash flow provided by financing activities    114,725   39,755   7,390 

     



Net change in cash and cash equivalents    (2,659)  28,240   3,803 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year    34,761   6,521   2,718 
     
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year   $ 32,102  $ 34,761  $ 6,521 
     
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LASALLE HOTEL PROPERTIES
 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Dollars in thousands, expect per share data)
 
1. Organization and Initial Public Offering
 

LaSalle Hotel Properties (the “Company”) was organized in the state of Maryland on January 15, 1998 as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) as
defined in the Internal Revenue Code. The Company was formed to own hotel properties. The Company had no operations prior to April 29, 1998, at which
time the Company completed its initial public offering. The Company buys, owns and leases upscale and luxury full-service hotels located in convention,
resort and major urban business markets.
 

As of December 31, 2004, the Company owned interests in 19 hotels with approximately 6,300 suites/rooms located in ten states and the District of
Columbia. The Company owns 100% equity interests in 18 of the hotels and a non-controlling 9.9% equity interest in a joint venture that owns one hotel.
Each hotel is leased under a participating lease that provides for rental payments equal to the greater of (i) a base rent or (ii) a participating rent based on hotel
revenues. An independent hotel operator manages each hotel. Two of the hotels are leased to unaffiliated lessees (affiliates of whom also operate these hotels) and
16 of the hotels are leased to the Company’s taxable REIT subsidiary, LaSalle Hotel Lessee, Inc. (LHL), or a wholly-owned subsidiary of LHL (see Note 14).
Lease revenue from LHL and its wholly-owned subsidiaries is eliminated in consolidation. The hotel that is owned by the joint venture that owns the Chicago
Marriott Downtown is leased to Chicago 540 Lessee, Inc. in which the Company has a non-controlling 9.9% equity interest (see Note 2).
 

Substantially all of the Company’s assets are held by, and all of its operations are conducted through, LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership, L.P. The
Company is the sole general partner of the operating partnership. The Company owns approximately 98.7% of the operating partnership at December 31,
2004. The remaining 1.3% is held by other limited partners who hold 383,090 limited partnership units. Limited partnership units are redeemable for cash, or
at the option of the Company, a like number of common shares of beneficial interest of the Company.
 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
 

Basis of Presentation
 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, the operating partnership, LHL and its subsidiaries and partnerships in
which it has a controlling interest. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.
 

Reclassification
 

Certain 2003 and 2002 items have been reclassified to conform with 2004 presentations.
 

Use of Estimates
 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”)
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities and the amounts of contingent assets
and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
 

Fair value is determined by using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. The Company’s financial instruments include
cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
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accrued expenses, borrowings under the Company’s senior unsecured bank facility, borrowings under LHL’s credit facility, special project revenue bonds
issued by the Massachusetts Port Authority and mortgage loans on six properties. Due to their short maturities, cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses are carried at amounts that reasonably approximate fair value. As borrowings under the senior unsecured
bank facility, borrowings under LHL’s credit facility and the Massachusetts Port Authority Special Project Revenue Bonds bear interest at variable market
rates, carrying values approximate market value at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The carrying amount of the Company’s debt approximates fair
value. The carrying amount of the Company’s other financial instruments approximate fair value because of the relatively short maturities of these
instruments.
 

Investment in Hotel Properties
 

Upon acquisition, the Company allocates the purchase price of assets to asset classes based on the fair value of the acquired real estate, furniture,
fixtures and equipment and intangible assets. The Company’s investments in hotel properties are carried at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line
method over an estimated useful life of 30 years for buildings and improvements and three to five years for furniture, fixtures and equipment. Furniture
fixtures and equipment under capital leases are carried at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
 

The Company periodically reviews the carrying value of each hotel to determine if circumstances exist indicating impairment to the carrying value of the
investment in the hotel or that depreciation periods should be modified. If facts or circumstances support the possibility of impairment, the Company will
prepare an estimate of the undiscounted future cash flows, without interest charges, of the specific hotel and determine if the investment in such hotel is
recoverable based on the undiscounted future cash flows. If impairment is indicated, an adjustment will be made to the carrying value of the hotel to reflect the
hotel at fair value. The Company does not believe that there are any facts or circumstances indicating impairment of any of its hotels.
 

In July 2003, the Company’ s management changed its intent from holding its investment in the Holiday Inn Beachside Resort to selling the property due
to the projected cost of renovating the property and receiving an unsolicited offer to purchase the property. As a result, the Company wrote down its investment
in the Holiday Inn Beachside Resort by $2,453 to its estimated fair value, net of estimated costs to sell. The Board of Trustees approved management’s plan to
sell the asset in July 2003, and the asset was sold in July 2003.
 

In accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets,” a hotel is considered held for sale when a contract for sale is entered into or when management has committed to a plan to sell an asset, the asset
is actively marketed and sale is expected to occur within one year.
 

Interest and real estate taxes incurred during the renovation period are capitalized and depreciating over the lives of the renovated assets. Capitalized
interest for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $783, $289 and $1,031, respectively.
 

Intangible Assets
 

The Company has an intangible asset for rights to build in the future at the Lansdowne Resort, which has an indefinite useful life. The Company does
not amortize intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. The non-amortizable intangible asset is reviewed annually for impairment and more frequently if
events or circumstances indicate that the asset may be impaired. If a non-amortizable intangible asset is subsequently determined to have a finite useful life, the
intangible asset will be written down to the lower of its fair value or carrying amount and then amortized prospectively, based on the remaining useful life of
the intangible asset. The intangible asset for rights to build in the future is included in property under development in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.
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Investment in Joint Venture
 

Investment in joint venture represents the Company’s non-controlling 9.9% equity interest in each of (i) the joint venture that owns the Chicago Marriott
Downtown and (ii) Chicago 540 Lessee, Inc., both of which are associated with the Chicago Marriott Downtown. The Carlyle Group owns a 90.1%
controlling interest in both the Chicago 540 Hotel Venture and Chicago 540 Lessee, Inc. The Company accounts for its investment in joint venture under the
equity method of accounting, and receives an annual preferred return in addition to its pro rata share of annual cash flow. The Company also has the
opportunity to earn an incentive participation in net sale proceeds based upon the achievement of certain overall investment returns, in addition to its pro rata
share of net sale or refinancing proceeds. Marriott International, Inc. operates the Chicago Marriott Downtown pursuant to a long-term incentive-based operating
agreement.
 

The joint venture that owns the Chicago Marriott Downtown and in which the Company holds a non-controlling 9.9% ownership interest was subject to
two mortgage loans for an aggregate amount of $120,000. The mortgage loans had two- year terms, and were due to expire in July 2004. On April 6, 2004, the
joint venture that owns the Chicago Marriott Downtown refinanced its existing two mortgage loans with a new mortgage loan for an aggregate amount of
$140,000. Upon refinancing, the Company received approximately $1,822 in cash representing its prorated share of the proceeds. The new mortgage loan has
a two-year term, expires in April 2006, and can be extended at the option of the joint venture for three additional one-year terms. The mortgage bears interest at
the London InterBank Offered Rate plus 2.25%. The joint venture has purchased a cap on the London InterBank Offered Rate capping the London InterBank
Offered Rate at 7.25%, effectively limiting the rate on the mortgage to 9.5%. As of December 31, 2004, the interest rate on this mortgage was 4.69%. Monthly
interest-only payments are due in arrears throughout the term. The Chicago Marriott Downtown secures the mortgage. The Company’s pro rata share of the
loan is $13,860 and is included in the Company’s liquidity and capital resources discussion and in calculating debt coverage ratios under the Company’s
credit facility. No guarantee exists on behalf of the Company for this mortgage.
 

On November 2, 2004, the Chicago 540 Hotel Venture, in which the Company has a non-controlling 9.9% ownership interest, obtained a three and a
half year commitment for a $5,750 FF&E credit facility to be used for partial funding of the FF&E costs related to the property. The FF&E credit facility
matures on the earlier of (i) April 30, 2008, or (ii) three years from the date on which the final borrowing is made. The borrower has an option to borrow
portions of the principal debt bearing interest with reference to the base rate or to LIBOR, and portions may be converted from one interest basis to another.
Base rate will be the greater of (i) the rate established by the lender as a base rate and which is designated by the lender as its U.S. prime rate, or (ii) the Federal
Funds Rate plus 0.50%. LIBOR rate will be set two business days before the start of an interest period. The Chicago 540 Hotel Venture purchased a cap on
London InterBank Offered Rate capping the London InterBank Offered Rate at 7.5%. Consistent with our ownership interest, the Company is guaranteeing
9.9% of the credit facility. The company’s maximum exposure under the FF&E facility is $569, and the guarantee will expire at the maturity of the credit
facility. In the event of default, any outstanding principal and accrued interest will be due and payable. As of December 31, 2004, there were no outstanding
borrowings under the FF&E credit facility.
 

Derivative/Financial Instruments
 

In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to the effects of interest rate changes. As of December 31, 2004, approximately 21.0%
(including the Company’s $13,860 pro rata portion of indebtedness relating to the Company’s joint venture investment in the Chicago Marriott Downtown) of
the Company’s borrowings were subject to variable rates. The Company limits the risks associated with interest rate changes by following established risk
management policies and procedures including the use of derivatives. For interest rate exposures, derivatives are used primarily to align rate movements
between interest rates associated with the Company’s hotel operating revenue, participating lease revenue and other financial assets with interest rates on related
debt, and manage the cost of borrowing obligations. The Company utilizes derivative financial instruments to manage, or hedge, interest rate risk. The
Company requires that hedging derivative instruments be
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effective in reducing the interest rate risk exposure that they are designated to hedge. This effectiveness is essential in order to qualify for hedge accounting.
Some derivative instruments are associated with the hedge of an anticipated transaction. In those cases, hedge effectiveness criteria also require that it be
probable that the underlying transaction will occur. Instruments that meet these hedging criteria are formally designated as hedges at the inception of the
derivative contract. When the terms of an underlying transaction are modified, or when the underlying hedged item ceases to exist, all changes in the fair value
of the instrument are marked-to-market with changes in value included in net income each period until the instrument matures.
 

The Company has a policy of only entering into contracts with major financial institutions based upon their credit ratings and other factors. When
viewed in conjunction with the underlying and offsetting exposure that the derivatives are designed to hedge, the Company has not sustained a material loss
from those instruments nor does it anticipate any material adverse effect on its net income or financial position in the future from the use of derivatives.
 

To manage interest rate risk, the Company may employ options, forwards, interest rate swaps, caps and floors or a combination thereof depending on
the underlying exposure. The Company utilizes a variety of borrowings including lines of credit and medium and long-term financings. To reduce overall
interest cost, the Company uses interest rate instruments, typically interest rate swaps, to convert a portion of its variable rate debt to fixed rate debt. Interest
rate differentials that arise under these swap contracts are recognized in interest expense over the life of the contracts. The resulting cost of funds is usually
lower than that which would have been available if debt with matching characteristics was issued directly.
 

To determine the fair values of derivative instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions
and risks existing as of each valuation date. For the majority of financial instruments including most derivatives, long-term investments and long-term debt,
standard market conventions and techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models, replacement cost, and termination cost are used to
determine fair value. All methods of assessing fair value result in a general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
 

All highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.
 

Deferred Financing Fees
 

Deferred financing fees are recorded at cost and are amortized over the three-year term of the senior unsecured bank facility, over the life of the related
mortgage loans collateralized by certain hotel properties and over the 17-year term of the special project revenue bonds issued by the Massachusetts Port
Authority (see Note 8). Accumulated amortization at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $7,406 and $6,036, respectively.
 

Distributions
 

Through 2002, the Company paid quarterly distributions to its common shareholders of beneficial interest as directed by the Board of Trustees. On
October 3, 2002, the Company announced its plans to pay monthly distributions in lieu of quarterly distributions to its common shareholders and unitholders
beginning in 2003. The first monthly distribution was paid on February 14, 2003, for the month of January 2003, and monthly distributions were paid
throughout the remainder of 2003 and throughout 2004. The Company’s ability to pay distributions is dependent on the receipt of distributions from the
operating partnership.
 

To date, the Company has paid quarterly distributions to its Series A Preferred Shareholders pursuant to the preferred share prospectus supplement of
February 28, 2002, and to its Series B Preferred Shareholders pursuant to the preferred share prospectus supplement of September 23, 2003.
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Revenue Recognition
 

For properties not leased by LHL, the Company recognizes lease revenue on an accrual basis pursuant to the terms of each participating lease. Base and
participating rent are each recognized based on quarterly thresholds pursuant to each participating lease (see Note 13). For properties leased by LHL, the
Company recognizes hotel operating revenue on an accrual basis consistent with the hotel operations.
 

For the Lansdowne Resort, the Company defers golf membership fees and recognizes revenue over the average expected life of an active membership
(currently six years) on a straight-line basis. Golf membership, health club and executive club annual dues are recognized as earned throughout the
membership year.
 

Minority Interest
 

Minority interest in the operating partnership represents the limited partners’ proportionate share of the equity in the operating partnership. During 2004
and 2003, respectively, 41,596 and zero units of limited partnership interest were redeemed by unitholders. At December 31, 2004, the aggregate partnership
interest held by the limited partners in the operating partnership was approximately 1.3%. Income is allocated to minority interest based on the weighted average
percentage ownership throughout the year.
 

Outstanding operating partnership units of limited partnership interest are redeemable for cash or, at the option of the Company, for a like number of
common shares of beneficial interest of the Company.
 

Stock-Based Compensation
 

Prior to 2003, the Company applied Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for the 1998 share option
and incentive plan. Accordingly, no compensation costs were recognized for stock options granted to the Company’s employees, as all options granted under
the plan had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying stock on the date of grant. Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair
value recognition provisions of Statement No. 123 prospectively for all options granted to employees and members of the Board of Trustees. No options were
granted during 2004 and 2003. Options granted under the 1998 share option and incentive plan vest over three to four years, therefore the costs related to
stock-based compensation for 2004 and 2003 are less than that which would have been recognized if the fair value based method had been applied to all grants
since the original effective date of Statement No. 123.
 

The Company has applied Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for the 1998 share option and
incentive plan. Accordingly, no compensation costs have been recognized. Had compensation cost for all of the options granted under the Company’s 1998
share option and incentive plan been determined in accordance with the method required by Statement No. 123, the Company’s net income and net income per
common share for 2004, 2003 and 2002 would approximate the pro forma amounts below (in thousands, except per share data).
 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

 

   

Proforma

  

Proforma

  

Proforma

 
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders   $10,691  $ 28,036  $(3,939)
Stock-based employee compensation expense    (76)  (89)  (145)
     
Proforma net income (loss)   $10,615  $27,947  $ (4,084)
     
Proforma net income (loss) per common share:              

basic (after dividends paid on unvested restricted shares)   $ 0.39  $ 1.38  $ (0.23)
     

diluted (before dividends paid on unvested restricted shares)   $ 0.39  $ 1.36  $ (0.22)
     

 
From time to time, the Company awards restricted stock shares under the 1998 share option and incentive plan to trustees, executive officers and

employees, which vest over three years. We recognize compensation
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expense over the vesting period equal to the fair market value of the shares on the date of issuance, adjusted for any forfeiture. In 2004, 2003 and 2002, 9,465,
134,436 and 6,400 shares, respectively, of restricted stock were granted to certain trustees, executive officers and employees. In 2004, 3,466 shares were
forfeited. Deferred compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $1,259, $941 and $770, respectively. The weighted
average grant date fair value per share granted during each year was $26.57 in 2004, $18.10 in 2003 and $12.99 in 2002. Under these awards 260,997
shares were outstanding at December 31, 2004.
 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
 

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment”, which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation”. SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and amends SFAS No. 95,
“Statement of Cash Flows”. Generally, the approach in SFAS No. 123(R) is similar to the approach described in SFAS No. 123. However, SFAS No. 123(R)
requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the income statement based on their fair
values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative. The new standard will be effective for the Company in the first interim or annual reporting period
beginning after June 15, 2005. Adoption is not expected to have a material effect on the Company.
 

Income Taxes
 

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Code commencing with its taxable year ended December 31,
1998. To qualify as a REIT, the Company must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement that it currently
distribute at least 90% of its adjusted taxable income to its shareholders. It is the Company’s current intention to adhere to these requirements and maintain the
Company’s qualification for taxation as a REIT. As a REIT, the Company generally is not subject to federal corporate income tax on that portion of its net
income that is currently distributed to shareholders. If the Company fails to qualify for taxation as a REIT in any taxable year, it will be subject to federal
income taxes at regular corporate rates (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) and may not be able to qualify as a REIT for four subsequent
taxable years. Even if the Company qualifies for taxation as a REIT, the Company may be subject to certain state and local taxes on its income and property,
and to federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed taxable income. In addition, taxable income from non-REIT activities managed through taxable
REIT subsidiaries is subject to federal, state and local income taxes. As a wholly-owned taxable-REIT subsidiary of the Company, LHL is required to pay
income taxes at the applicable rates.
 

Earnings Per Share
 

Basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares of beneficial interest outstanding during the year excluding the
weighted average number of unvested restricted shares. Diluted earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares of beneficial
interest outstanding plus the effect of in-the-money stock options.
 
3. Acquisition of Hotel Properties
 

On June 17, 2003, the Company acquired a 100% interest in Lansdowne Resort, a 296-room, full-service luxury golf resort and conference center
located in Lansdowne, Virginia, for $115,800 including $52,955 in cash and the assumption of a $62,845 mortgage loan (see Note 8). The source of the
funding for the acquisition was the Company’s 1031-escrow and Company’s senior unsecured bank facility. The Company leases the hotel to LHL.
Benchmark Hospitality manages the property under a five-year management agreement. The Company has undertaken a development program, developing a
second golf course, nine–hole executive course, resort pool, clubhouse, spa, guestroom and public areas renovation, currently projected at a total of
approximately $52,000, which is expected to be completed by the end of 2005. As of December 31, 2004, total property under development was $32,495,
including $3,734 of future air rights for land development.
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On September 18, 2003, the Company acquired a 100% interest in the Hotel George, a 139-room, luxury full-service hotel located in Washington, D.C.,
for $24,110 and the Hotel George became the fifth hotel in the Company’s D.C. Collection. The source of the funding for the acquisition was the Company’s
senior unsecured bank facility. The property is leased to LHL, and Kimpton Hotel and Restaurant Group, LLC manages the property.
 

On February 10, 2004, the Company acquired a 100% interest in the Indianapolis Marriott Downtown, a 615-room, full-service hotel located in
downtown Indianapolis, Indiana, for $106,000. The source of the funding for the acquisition was the Company’s senior unsecured bank facility, a portion of
which was repaid when the Company entered into a mortgage agreement secured by the Indianapolis property in February 2004. The property is leased to LHL,
and White Lodging Services Corporation manages the property.
 

On May 28, 2004, the Company acquired a 100% interest in the Hilton Alexandria Old Town, a 241-room, upscale full-service hotel located in the heart
of historic downtown Alexandria, Virginia, for $59,000. The source of the funding for the acquisition was the Company’s senior unsecured bank facility.
The property is leased to LHL, and Sandcastle Resorts & Hotels manages the property.
 

On November 18, 2004, the Company acquired a 100% interest in the Chaminade Resort and Conference Center, a 153-room, AAA Four-Diamond
resort and executive conference center located in Santa Cruz, California, for $18,500. The source of the funding for the acquisition was the Company’s senior
unsecured bank facility. The property is leased to LHL, and Benchmark Hospitality manages the property.
 
4. Investment in Hotel Properties
 

Investment in hotel properties as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consists of the following:
 

   

December 31,
2004

  

December 31,
2003

 
Land   $ 96,404  $ 84,373 
Buildings and improvements    683,936   545,010 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment    136,681   114,279 
    
    917,021   743,662 
Accumulated depreciation    (177,288)  (147,686)
    
   $ 739,733  $595,976 
    

 
The December 31, 2004 balance of investment in hotel properties excludes $32,508 of property under development for Lansdowne Resort and San Diego

Paradise Point in the amounts of $32,495 and $13, respectively. The December 31, 2003 balance of investment hotel properties excludes $14,743 of property
under development for the Lansdowne Resort. The December 31, 2003 balance of investment in hotel properties includes $25,145 included in assets sold in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
 

The hotels owned as of December 31, 2004 are located in California (three), the District of Columbia (six), Indiana, Massachusetts, Minnesota, New
Jersey, New York, Rhode Island, Texas and Virginia (two).
 
5. Notes Receivable
 

The Company provided working capital to LHL and the other lessees in exchange for working capital notes receivable. As of December 31, 2003, the
working capital notes receivable balance was $483. During 2004, $187 of working capital notes receivable with an affiliate of the Chicago Marriott Hotel was
paid down, resulting in a working capital notes receivable balance of $296. The working capital notes receivable bear interest at either 5.6% or 9.0% per
annum and have terms identical to the terms of the related participating lease. The working capital notes receivable are payable in monthly installments of
interest only.
 

There were no outstanding balances on the furniture, fixtures and equipment notes receivable as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.
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6. Discontinued Operations
 

Prior to 2003, the Company classified the New Orleans property as held for sale and accordingly, depreciation was suspended. Effective January 3,
2003, the Company entered into a purchase and sale agreement, which was amended February 10, 2003, to sell the New Orleans property with expected net
sales proceeds of $91,500. The asset was sold on April 21, 2003 (see Note 7). Total revenues related to the asset of $6,267, comprised of primarily
participating rent and hotel operating revenues, and income before income tax expense related to the asset of $62 for the year ended December 31, 2003, are
included in discontinued operations. Revenues and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002 have been reclassified to conform with the current
presentation.
 

On July 16, 2003, the Board of Trustees approved management’s commitment to a plan to sell the Holiday Inn Beachside Resort. The asset was
classified as held for sale at that time because sale was expected to occur within one year; accordingly depreciation was suspended. On July 25, 2003, the
Company sold the Holiday Inn Beachside Resort (see Note 7). Total revenues related to the asset of $5,429, comprised of primarily participating rent and
hotel operating revenues, and income before income tax benefit related to the asset of $903 for the year ended December 31, 2003, are included in discontinued
operations. Revenues and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002 have been reclassified to conform with the current presentation.
 

Effective January 16, 2004, the Company entered into an exclusive listing agreement for the sale of its Omaha property. The asset was classified as held
for sale at that time because the property was being actively marketed and sale was expected to occur within one year; accordingly, depreciation was
suspended. Based on initial pricing expectations, the Company expected to recognize a gain on the sale, therefore, no impairment was recognized. Effective
June 30, 2004, the Company entered into a purchase and sale agreement, which was amended on July 30, 2004 and August 23, 2004, to sell its Omaha
property. The asset was sold on September 15, 2004 (see note 7) with net sale proceeds of approximately $28,596. The Company believes that it can redeploy
the capital into markets with better long-term fundamentals, thereby improving the return on its invested capital. Total revenues related to the asset of $9,828,
comprised of primarily hotel operating revenues, and income before income tax expense related to the asset of $1,910 for the year ended December 31, 2004 are
included in discontinued operations. Revenues and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 have been reclassified to conform to the current
presentation.
 

The Company allocates interest expense to discontinued operations for debt that is to be assumed or that is required to be repaid as a result of the
disposal transaction. The Company allocated $0 and $1,678 of interest expense to discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.
 

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had unsettled assets and liabilities of $0 and $162, respectively, related to the sale of the Omaha property. The
Company expects all assets and liabilities to be settled in the first quarter of 2005. At December 31, 2004, the Company had no assets and liabilities for assets
held for sale.
 
7. Disposition of Hotel Properties
 

On April 21, 2003, the Company sold the New Orleans Grande Hotel for $92,500 resulting in a gain of approximately $37,087. The gain is recorded in
discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The asset was classified as held for sale effective August 1, 2002, at which
time depreciation was suspended. Based on initial pricing expectations, the Company expected a gain on the sale of the asset, and as such, no impairment of
the asset was recorded. The Company redeployed the net sale proceeds of approximately $91,500 through an Internal Revenue Code Section 1031 like kind
exchange.
 

In July 2003, management of the Company changed its intent from holding its investment in the Holiday Inn Beachside Resort, located in Key West,
Florida, to selling the property due to the projected cost of renovating the property and receiving an unsolicited offer to purchase the property. As a result, the
Company wrote down its
 

F-16



Table of Contents

investment in the Holiday Inn Beachside Resort by $2,453 during the second quarter 2003 to its estimated fair value, net of estimated costs to sell. The
writedown is recorded in impairment of investment in hotel property in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. On July 16, 2003, the Board of
Trustees approved management’s commitment to a plan to sell the Holiday Inn Beachside Resort. The asset was classified as held for sale at that time because
sale was expected to occur within one year; accordingly, depreciation was suspended. On July 25, 2003, the Company sold the Holiday Inn Beachside Resort
for $17,170. The Company recognized a loss on the sale of the asset of $425 at the time of the sale. The loss is recorded in discontinued operations in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
 

On September 15, 2004, the Company sold the Omaha Marriott hotel for $28,500, resulting in a gain of approximately $2,636. The gain is recorded in
discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The asset was classified as held-for-sale effective January 16, 2004 at which
time depreciation was suspended. Based on initial pricing expectations, the Company expected a gain on the sale of the asset, and, as such, no impairment of
the asset was recorded.
 
8. Long-Term Debt
 

Credit Facility
 

The Company had a senior unsecured bank facility from a syndicate of banks, which provided for a maximum borrowing of up to $215.0 million and
was due to mature on December 31, 2006. On August 30, 2004, the Company, in accordance with bank facility terms, executed a commitment agreement
expanding the commitment facility from $215.0 million to $300.0 million. The unsecured bank facility matures on December 31, 2006 and has a one-year
extension option. The senior unsecured bank facility contains certain financial covenants relating to debt service coverage, net worth and total funded
indebtedness and contains financial covenants that, assuming no continuing defaults, allow the Company to make shareholder distributions which, when
combined with the distributions to shareholders in the three immediately preceding fiscal quarters, do not exceed the greater of (i) funds from operations from
the preceding four-quarter rolling period or (ii) the greater of (a) the amount of distributions required for the Company to maintain its status as a REIT or (b)
the amount required to ensure the Company will avoid imposition of an excise tax for failure to make certain minimum distributions on a calendar year basis.
Borrowings under the new senior unsecured bank facility bear interest at floating rates equal to, at the Company’s option, either (i) London InterBank Offered
Rate plus an applicable margin, or (ii) an “Adjusted Base Rate” plus an applicable margin. For the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the weighted
average interest rate for borrowings under the senior unsecured bank facility was approximately 3.7% and 3.8%, respectively. The Company did not have any
Adjusted Base Rate borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2004. Additionally, the Company is required to pay a variable unused commitment fee
determined from a ratings or leverage based pricing matrix, currently set at 0.250% of the unused portion of the senior unsecured bank facility. The Company
incurred an unused commitment fee of approximately $0.5 million and $0.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. At
December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had no outstanding borrowings against the senior unsecured bank facility.
 

LHL had a three-year commitment for a $7.5 million senior unsecured revolving bank facility to be used for working capital and general corporate
purposes. On January 1, 2003, LHL amended its unsecured revolving credit facility agreement to allow for maximum borrowings of $10.0 million. This LHL
credit facility matured on December 31, 2003. Effective January 1, 2004, LHL renewed its credit facility for $13.0 million for three additional years. Effective
August 30, 2004, LHL again amended and increased its unsecured revolving credit facility to allow for maximum borrowings of $25.0 million. The new LHL
credit facility matures December 31, 2006. Borrowings under the LHL credit facility bear interest at floating rates equal to, at LHL’s option, either (i) London
InterBank Offered Rate plus an applicable margin, or (ii) an “Adjusted Base Rate” plus an applicable margin. The weighted average interest rate under the
facility for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was 3.6% and 3.5%, respectively. LHL is required to pay an unused commitment fee, which is
variable, determined from a ratings-based pricing matrix, and currently set at 0.250% of the unused portion of the LHL
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credit facility. LHL incurred an immaterial commitment fee for each of the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the
Company had no outstanding borrowings against the LHL credit facility.
 

Bonds Payable
 

The Company is the obligor with respect to a $37.1 million tax-exempt special project revenue bond and $5.4 million taxable special project revenue
bond, both issued by the Massachusetts Port Authority (collectively, the “MassPort Bonds”). The MassPort Bonds, which mature on March 1, 2018, bear
interest based on a weekly floating rate and have no principal reductions prior to their scheduled maturities. The MassPort Bonds may be redeemed at any time
at the Company’s option without penalty. The bonds are secured by letters of credit issued by GE Capital Corporation that expire in 2007 and are collateralized
by the Harborside Hyatt Conference Center & Hotel and a $6.0 million letter of credit from the Company. If GE Capital Corporation fails to renew its letters of
credit at expiration and an acceptable replacement provider cannot be found, the Company may be required to pay-off the bonds. For the years ended December
31, 2004 and 2003, the weighted average interest rate on the MassPort bonds was 1.3% and 1.1%, respectively. Interest expense for the years ended December
30, 2004 and 2003 was $552 and $458, respectively. In addition to interest payments, the Company incurs a 2.0% annual maintenance fee, which is
included in amortization of deferred finance fees. At December 31, 2004, the Company had outstanding bonds payable of $42,500.
 

Mortgage Loans
 

The Company, through a wholly-owned partnership, is subject to a ten-year mortgage loan that is secured by the Sheraton Bloomington Hotel
Minneapolis South, located in Bloomington, Minnesota and the Westin City Center Dallas, located in Dallas, Texas. The mortgage loan matures on July 31,
2009 and does not allow for prepayment prior to maturity without penalty. The mortgage loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 8.1% and requires interest and
principal payments based on a 25-year amortization schedule. The loan agreement requires the partnership to hold funds in escrow sufficient for the payment
of 50% of the annual insurance premiums and real estate taxes related to the two hotels that secure the loan.
 

The mortgage loan that is collateralized by the Sheraton Bloomington Hotel Minneapolis South and the Westin City Center Dallas had principal balances
of $42,665 and $43,515 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Future scheduled debt principal payments at December 31, 2004 are as follows
(dollars in thousands):
 

2005   $ 922
2006    9 9 9
2007    1,083
2008    1,174
2009    38,487
   
   $42,665
   

 
The Company, through a wholly-owned partnership, is subject to a ten-year mortgage loan that is secured by the Le Montrose Suite Hotel located in West

Hollywood, California. The Company, through wholly-owned partnerships, had two additional mortgage loans collateralized by the New Orleans Grande
Hotel and the Holiday Inn Beachside Resort, located in Key West, Florida. These hotels were sold on April 21, 2003 and July 25, 2003, respectively, and the
purchasers assumed the principal balances of $46,680 and $11,392, respectively at the time of sale. The remaining mortgage loan bears interest at a fixed
rate of 8.08%, matures on July 31, 2010, and requires interest and principal payments based on a 27-year amortization schedule. The mortgage loan agreement
requires the partnership to hold funds in escrow sufficient for the payment of 50% of the annual insurance premium and real estate taxes on the Le Montrose
Suite Hotel.
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The mortgage loan that is collateralized by the Le Montrose Suite Hotel had a principal balance of $14,048 and $14,231 at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Future scheduled debt principal payments at December 31, 2004 are as follows (dollars in thousands):
 

2005   $ 201
2006    218
2007    237
2008    254
2009    279
Thereafter    12,859
   
    $14,048
   

 
The Company assumed a five-year mortgage loan of $62,845 million secured by the Lansdowne Resort located in Lansdowne, Virginia when it

acquired the property on June 17, 2003. In conjunction with the assumption of the mortgage, the Company recorded a premium of $2,380 which was being
amortized over the expected remaining life of the loan. The loan bore interest at a floating rate of the London InterBank Offered Rate plus 4.5%, matured on
January 28, 2007, and required interest and principal payments based on a 25-year amortization schedule. The mortgage loan had an interest rate floor of
3.0%. In conjunction with the assumption of the mortgage loan, the seller transferred to the Company a $5,000 debt service reserve escrow. The mortgage loan
permitted prepayment beginning on February 11, 2004, and on February 11, 2004 the Company paid in full the $62,326 balance of the mortgage loan. Under
the terms of the purchase agreement, upon prepayment the seller was entitled to the $5,019 debt service reserve, less any prepayment penalty. On February
12, 2004, the Company paid the seller $3,149 in cash representing the $5,019 debt service reserve escrow less a $1,870 prepayment penalty. The source of
funding for the prepayment was the Company’s senior unsecured bank facility. At the time of acquisition, the Company recorded the mortgage at its fair value
resulting in the Company recognizing a gain on the debt extinguishment of $70. Interest expense, net of premium amortization, for the years ended December
31, 2004 and 2003 was $457 and $2,218, respectively. The principal balance for the mortgage loan at December 31, 2004 and 2003, including the
unamortized premium was zero and $64,411, respectively.
 

On December 12, 2003, the Company, through a wholly-owned partnership, entered into a five-year mortgage loan totaling $65,000 that is secured by
the San Diego Paradise Point Resort. The mortgage loan matures on February 1, 2009 and does not allow for prepayment prior to maturity without penalty.
The mortgage loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 5.25% and requires interest and principal payments based on a 25-year amortization schedule. The loan
agreement requires the Company to hold funds in escrow sufficient for the payment of 50% of the annual insurance premiums and real estate taxes related to
the hotel that secures the loan.
 

The principal balance of the mortgage loan that is collateralized by the San Diego Paradise Point Resort at December 31, 2004 was $63,866. Future
scheduled debt principal payments at December 31, 2004 are as follows (dollars in thousands):
 

2005   $ 1,306
2006    1,378
2007    1,453
2008    1,523
2009    58,206
   
   $63,866
   

 
On February 26, 2004, the Company, through a wholly-owned partnership, entered into a three-year mortgage loan that is secured by the Indianapolis

Marriott Downtown. The mortgage loan matures on February 9, 2007 and can be extended at the option of the Company for two additional one-year terms. The
mortgage does
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not allow for prepayment without penalty prior to February 25, 2006. The mortgage bears interest at the London InterBank Offered Rate plus 1.0%. As of
December 31, 2004, the interest rate was 3.4%. On February 27, 2004, the Company entered into a three-year fixed interest rate swap that fixes the London
InterBank Offered Rate at 2.56% for the $57,000 balance outstanding on this mortgage loan, and therefore, fixes the mortgage interest rate at 3.56%. Monthly
interest-only payments are due in arrears throughout the term. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $1,239 for the mortgage secured by
the Indianapolis property, plus an additional $504 for the interest rate swap. The principal balance of this mortgage loan was $57,000 and zero at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Future scheduled debt principal payments at December 31, 2004 are as follows (dollars in thousands):
 

2005   $ —  
2006    —  
2007    57,000
   
   $57,000
   

 
On August 26, 2004, the Company, through a wholly-owned partnership, entered into a five-year mortgage loan that is secured by the Hilton Alexandria

Old Town Hotel located in Alexandria, Virginia. The mortgage loan matures on September 1, 2009 and does not allow for prepayment without penalty prior to
June 1, 2009. The mortgage bears interest at fixed rate of 4.98% and requires interest and principal payments based on a 25-year amortization. Monthly
interest and principal payments are due in arrears throughout the term. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $608. The principal balance
of this mortgage loan was $34,230 and zero at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Future scheduled debt principal payments at December 31, 2004 are
as follows (dollars in thousands):
 

2005   $ 6 9 6
2006    732
2007    770
2008    805
2009    31,227
   
   $ 34,230

   
 
9. Commitments and Contingencies
 

Ground Leases
 

Four of the hotels, San Diego Paradise Point Resort, Harborside Hyatt Conference Center & Hotel, Sheraton Bloomington Hotel Minneapolis South and
Indianapolis Marriott Downtown are subject to ground leases under non-cancelable operating leases with terms ranging out to June 2099. In addition, one of the
two golf courses, the Pines, at Seaview Marriott Resort and Spa is subject to a ground lease, which expires on December 31, 2012. Total ground lease expense
(including ground lease expense related to discontinued operations) for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $3,493, $3,689 and $3,624,
respectively. Future minimum ground lease payments (without reflecting future applicable Consumer Price Index increases) are as follows (dollars in
thousands):
 

2005   $ 2,592
2006    2,582
2007    2,582
2008    2,582
2009    2,581
Thereafter    88,194
   
   $101,113
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Reserve Funds
 

The Company is obligated to maintain reserve funds for capital expenditures at the hotels (including the periodic replacement or refurbishment of
furniture, fixtures and equipment) as determined pursuant to the participating leases. The Company’s aggregate obligation under the reserve funds was
approximately $20,094 at December 31, 2004. The reserve requirements for four hotels, the hotels operated by Marriott International, Inc. and Hyatt
Corporation, are contained in certain non-cancelable operating agreements, which require the reserves for the hotels operated by Marriott International, Inc. and
Hyatt Corporation to be maintained through furniture, fixtures and equipment restricted cash escrows. These four participating leases require that the
Company reserve restricted cash ranging from 4.0% to 5.5% of the individual hotel’s annual revenues. As of December 31, 2004, $5,676 was available in
restricted cash reserves for future capital expenditures. Fourteen of the participating leases require that the Company reserve funds of 4.0% of the individual
hotel’s annual revenues, but do not require the funds to be set aside in restricted cash. As of December 31, 2004, the total amount obligated for future capital
expenditures, but not set aside in restricted cash reserves was $14,418. Amounts will be capitalized as incurred. As of December 31, 2004, purchase orders
and letters of commitment totaling approximately $17,000 have been issued for renovations at the hotels. The Company has committed to these projects and
anticipates making similar arrangements with the existing hotels or any future hotels that it may acquire. Any unexpended amounts will remain the property of
the Company upon termination of the participating leases.
 

The joint venture lease requires that the joint venture reserve restricted cash of 5.0% of the Chicago Marriott Downtown’s annual revenues; however, the
joint venture is not consolidated in the Company’s financial statements and the amount of restricted cash reserves relating to the joint venture is not recorded on
the Company’s books and records.
 

Restricted Cash Reserves
 

At December 31, 2004, the Company held $7,430 in restricted cash reserves. Included in such amounts are (i) $5,676 of reserve funds relating to the
hotels with leases or operating agreements requiring the Company to maintain restricted cash to fund future capital expenditures, (ii) $500 for future
renovations and conversion costs expected to be incurred because of the Bloomington property re-branding under the Sheraton brand affiliation and (iii)
$1,254 deposited in mortgage escrow accounts pursuant to mortgages to pre-fund a portion of certain hotel expenses.
 

Litigation
 

The Company has engaged Starwood Hotels & Resorts Worldwide, Inc. to manage and operate its Dallas hotel under the Westin brand affiliation.
Meridien Hotels, Inc. (“Meridien”) affiliates had been operating the Dallas property as a wrongful holdover tenant, until the Westin brand conversion occurred
on July 14, 2003 under court order.
 

On December 20, 2002, affiliates of Meridien abandoned the Company’s New Orleans hotel. The Company entered into a lease with a wholly-owned
subsidiary of LHL and an interim management agreement with Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc., and re-named the hotel the New Orleans Grande Hotel. The
New Orleans property thereafter was sold on April 21, 2003 for $92.5 million.
 

In connection with the termination of the Meridien affiliates at these hotels, the Company is currently in litigation with Meridien and related affiliates.
The Company believes its sole potential obligation in connection with the termination of the leases is to pay fair market value of the leases, if any. With respect
to the Dallas hotel, the Company has obtained a judgment from the court that Meridien defaulted and that Meridien is not entitled to the payment of fair market
value. With respect to the New Orleans hotel, the issue of default by the lessee, among other claims, is currently in trial. Arbitration of the fair market value of
the New Orleans lease commenced in October 2002. On December 19, 2002, the arbitration panel determined that Meridien was entitled to an award of
approximately $5.7 million in connection with the New Orleans property, subject to adjustment
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(reduction) by the courts to account for Meridien’s holdover. In order to dispute the arbitration decision, the Company was required to post a $7.8 million
surety bond, which was secured by $5.9 million of restricted cash. The Company successfully challenged the award on appeal, and the dispute has been
remanded to the trial court. Meridien’s request for rehearing was denied on March 31, 2004, and Meridien did not petition to the Louisiana Supreme Court. In
June 2004, the $7.8 million surety bond was released and the $5.9 million restricted cash securing it was returned to the Company.
 

In 2002 the Company recognized a net $2.5 million contingent lease termination expense and reversed previously deferred assets and liabilities related to
the termination of both the New Orleans property and Dallas property leases and recorded a corresponding contingent liability included in accounts payable
and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The Company believes, however, it is owed holdover rent per the lease terms due
to Meridien’s failure to vacate the properties as required under the leases. The contingent lease termination expense was, therefore, net of the holdover rent the
Company believes it is entitled to for both properties. In the first, second and third quarters of 2003, the Company adjusted this liability by additional
holdover rent of $395, $380 and $52, respectively, that it believes it is entitled to for the Dallas property. These amounts were recorded as other income in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. The contingent lease termination expense recognized cumulatively since 2002 is comprised of (dollars in
thousands):
 

   

Expense
Recognized

Quarter Ended
December 31, 2002

  

Expense
Recognized
Year Ended

December 31, 2004

  

Cumulative
Expense

Recognized as of
December 31, 2004

 
Estimated arbitration “award”   $ 5,749  $ —    $ 5,749 
Legal fees related to litigation    2,610   1,350   3,960 
Holdover rent    (4,844)  —     (4,844)
Expected reimbursement of legal fees    (995)  (500)  (1,495)
     
Net contingent lease termination expense   $ 2,520  $ 850  $ 3,370 
     
 

In September 2004, after evaluating the ongoing Meridien litigation, the Company accrued additional net legal fees of $850 due to litigation timeline
changes in order to conclude this matter. As a result, the net contingent lease termination liability has a balance of approximately $2.0 million as of December
31, 2004, which is included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Based on the claims the Company
has against Meridien, the Company is and will continue to challenge Meridien’s claim that it is entitled to the payment of fair market value, and will continue
to seek reimbursement of legal fees and damages. These amounts may exceed or otherwise may be used to offset any amounts potentially owed to Meridien,
and therefore, ultimately may offset or otherwise reduce any contingent lease termination expense. Additionally, the Company cannot provide any assurances
that the holdover rents will be collectible or that the amounts due will not be greater than the recorded contingent lease termination expense.
 

The Company maintained a lien on Meridien’s security deposit on both disputed properties with an aggregate value of approximately $3.3 million, in
accordance with the lease agreements. The security deposits were liquidated in May 2003 with the proceeds used to partially satisfy Meridien’s outstanding
obligations, including certain working capital notes and outstanding base rent.
 

Meridien also has sued the Company and one of the Company’s officers alleging that certain actions taken in anticipation of re-branding the Dallas and
New Orleans hotels under the Westin brand affiliation constituted unfair trade practices, false advertising, trademark infringement, trademark dilution and
tortious interference. The Company intends to vigorously challenge Meridien’s claims if and when this matter gets set for trial.
 

The Company does not believe that the amount of any fees or damages it may be required to pay on any of the litigation related to Meridien will have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations, taken as a whole. The Company’s management has discussed this
contingency and the related accounting treatment with the audit committee of its Board of Trustees.
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The Company is not presently subject to any other material litigation nor, to the Company’s knowledge, is any other litigation threatened against the
Company, other than routine actions for negligence or other claims and administrative proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which
are expected to be covered by liability insurance and all of which collectively are not expected to have a material adverse effect on the liquidity, results of
operations or business or financial condition of the Company.
 
10. Shareholders’ Equity
 Common Shares of Beneficial Interest
 In connection with the acquisition of the initial hotels, the Company granted 1,280,569 rights to purchase common shares of beneficial interest at the
exercise price of $18.00 per share. The Company has recorded these rights in shareholders’ equity at their fair value on the date of grant. All rights had a one-
year vesting period and a 10-year term. At December 31, 2004, there were 358,986 exercisable rights remaining.
 

On January 29, 2002, the Company issued 12,331 common shares of beneficial interest, including 5,605 deferred shares, to the independent members
of its Board of Trustees for a portion of their 2001 compensation. The common shares of beneficial interest were issued in lieu of cash at the trustees’ election.
These common shares of beneficial interest were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On October 29, 2002, the Company granted 6,400 restricted common shares of beneficial interest to the Company’s employees. The restricted shares
granted vest over three years, starting January 1, 2004. These common shares of beneficial interest were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive
plan.
 

On January 27 and 28, 2003, the Company issued an aggregate of 9,792 common shares of beneficial interest, including 7,540 deferred shares, to the
independent members of its Board of Trustees for a portion of their 2002 compensation. The common shares were issued in lieu of cash at the Trustees’
election. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On January 29, 2003, the Company issued 500 common shares of beneficial interest to a newly appointed member of the Board of Trustees, Kelly L.
Kuhn. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On April 29, 2003, the Company granted an aggregate of 3,000 restricted common shares of beneficial interest to the Company’s Board of Trustees.
These restricted shares vest over three years. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On June 26, 2003, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 2,041,000 common shares of beneficial interest, par value $0.01 per
share. After deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering costs, the Company raised net proceeds of approximately $29,105. The
net proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under the Company’s senior unsecured credit facility. The Company sold an additional 204,000 common
shares on July 1, 2003, pursuant to an over allotment option for approximately $2,909 after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions.
 

On October 21, 2003 the Company granted 126,186 restricted common shares of beneficial interest to the Company’s executive officers. The restricted
shares granted vest over three and four years, starting January 1, 2005. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On October 21, 2003, the Company granted 5,250 restricted common shares of beneficial interest to the Company’s employees. The restricted shares
granted vest over three years, starting January 1, 2005. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

In November 2003, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 3,000,000 common shares of beneficial interest, par value $0.01 per
share. After deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other
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offering costs, the Company raised net proceeds of approximately $49,950. The net proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under the Company’s
senior unsecured bank facility.
 

On January 23, 2004 and January 29, 2004, the Company issued an aggregate of 6,761 common shares of beneficial interest, including 5,448 deferred
shares, to the independent members of its Board of Trustees for a portion of their 2003 compensation. The common shares of beneficial interest were issued in
lieu of cash at the trustees’ election. These common shares of beneficial interest were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On March 19, 2004, holders of rights to purchase common shares of beneficial interest exercised 90,000 of those rights. The Company issued 90,000
common shares of beneficial interest in exchange for the rights; the transaction resulted in 74,187 treasury shares to the Company.
 

During the three months ended March 31, 2004, executives and employees of the Company exercised 491,919 options to purchase common shares of
beneficial interest. The Company issued 460,727 common shares of beneficial interest and re-issued 31,192 treasury shares.
 

On April 2, 2004, holders of rights to purchase common shares of beneficial interest exercised 290,471 of those rights. The Company issued 216,284
common shares of beneficial interest and re-issued 74,187 treasury shares in exchange for the rights.
 

On April 12, 2004, holders of rights to purchase common shares of beneficial interest exercised 467,237 of those rights. The Company issued 467,237
common shares of beneficial interest; the holders of rights to purchase common shares surrendered some shares in order to pay the exercise price at the time of
exercising, and the transaction resulted in 360,293 treasury shares to the Company.
 

On April 22, 2004, the Company granted an aggregate of 3,000 restricted common shares of beneficial interest to the Company’s Board of Trustees.
These restricted shares vest over three years. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On May 12, 2004, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 2,700,000 common shares of beneficial interest, par value $0.01 per
share. After deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering costs, the Company raised net proceeds of approximately $55,350. The
net proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under the Company’s senior unsecured credit facility. UBS Securities LLC acted as the sole underwriter
for this transaction. The Company sold an additional 300,000 common shares on May 13, 2004, pursuant to an over allotment option for approximately
$6,150 after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions.
 

During the three months ended June 30, 2004, executives and employees of the Company exercised 2,500 options to purchase common shares of
beneficial interest.
 

During the three months ended September 30, 2004, executives and employees of the Company exercised 59,000 options to purchase common shares of
beneficial interest. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On October 6, 2004, the Company granted 6,465 restricted common shares of beneficial interest to the Company’s employees. The restricted shares
granted vest over three years, starting January 1, 2006. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On November 16, 2004, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 1,750,000 common shares of beneficial interest, par value $0.01
per share. After deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering costs, the Company raised net proceeds of approximately $54,933.
The net proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under the Company’s senior unsecured credit facility and to fund future acquisitions.
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During the three months ended December 31, 2004, employees of the Company exercised 5,334 options to purchase common shares of beneficial interest.
These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

During 2004, the Company issued an aggregate of 4,184 common shares of beneficial interest, including 3,376 deferred shares, to the independent
members of its Board of Trustees for a portion of their 2004 compensation. The common shares of beneficial interest were issued in lieu of cash at the trustees’
election. These common shares of beneficial interest were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

As of December 31, 2004, the Company has reserved 1,900,000 common shares of beneficial interest for future issuance under the 1998 share option
and incentive plan. The Company has also reserved a total of 1,280,569 common shares of beneficial interest for future issuance pursuant to rights which
have been issued and 1,539,147 common shares of beneficial interest for issuance upon the conversion of the units of limited partnership interest, both of
which were issued in connection with the initial public offering, the acquisition of the initial hotels and the formation of the Company.
 
Treasury Shares
 

Treasury shares are accounted for under the cost method. During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company re-purchased 589,742 common
shares of beneficial interest related to (i) executives and employees surrendering shares to pay taxes at the time restricted shares vested and (ii) holders of rights
to purchase common shares of beneficial interest surrendering shares to pay the exercise price at the time of exercising their rights. The Company also acquired
3,466 common shares of beneficial interest related to the forfeiture of restricted shares by employees leaving the Company. The Company re issued 593,208
common shares of beneficial interest related to (i) executives and employees exercising stock options, (ii) holders of rights to purchase common shares of
beneficial interest exercising rights, (iii) restricted shares granted to the Board of Trustees in April 2004, (iv) the common share of beneficial interest equity
offering in May 2004 and (v) restricted shares granted to employees in October 2004.
 

As of December 31, 2004, there were no common shares of beneficial interest in treasury.
 

Preferred Shares
 

In March 2002, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 3,991,900 shares of 10  1/4% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred
Shares, par value $0.01 per share (liquidation preference $25.00 per share). After deducting underwriting discounts, commissions and other offering costs,
the Company raised net proceeds of approximately $96,062. The net proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under the Company’s senior
unsecured bank facility and to fund the redevelopment of the D.C. Hotel Collection.
 

On September 30, 2003, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 1,000,000 shares of 8  3/8% Series B Cumulative Redeemable
Preferred Shares, par value $0.01 per share (liquidation preference $25.00 per share). After deducting underwriting discounts and commissions, the Company
raised net proceeds of approximately $24,409. The net proceeds were used to repay existing indebtedness under the Company’s senior unsecured credit facility.
On October 1, 2003, the Company issued an additional 100,000 Series B Preferred Shares pursuant to an over allotment option for approximately $2,441 after
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions.
 

The Series A Preferred Shares and Series B Preferred Shares rank senior to the common shares of beneficial interest and on parity with each other with
respect to payment of distributions; the Company will not pay any distributions, or set aside any funds for the payment of distributions, on its common
shares of beneficial interest unless it has also paid (or set aside for payment) the full cumulative distributions on the Series A Preferred Shares and Series B
Preferred Shares for the current and all past dividend periods. Neither the Series A Preferred
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Shares nor the Series B Preferred Shares have any maturity date, and neither the Series A Preferred Shares nor the Series B Preferred Shares are subject to
mandatory redemption. There is no difference between the carrying value and the redemption amount of the Series A Preferred Shares and Series B Preferred
Shares. In addition, the Company is not required to set aside funds to redeem the Series A Preferred Shares or Series B Preferred Shares. Also, the Company
may not optionally redeem the Series A Preferred Shares prior to March 6, 2007, or the Series B Preferred Shares prior to September 30, 2008, except in
limited circumstances relating to the Company’s continuing qualification as a REIT. After those dates, the Company may, at its option, redeem the Series A
Preferred Shares or Series B Preferred Shares, respectively, in whole or from time to time in part, by payment of $25.00 per share, plus any accumulated,
accrued and unpaid distributions to and including the date of redemption. Accordingly, the Series A Preferred Shares and Series B Preferred Shares will
remain outstanding indefinitely unless the Company decides to redeem them.
 

Operating Partnership Units
 

The outstanding units of limited partnership interest are redeemable for cash, or at the option of the Company, for a like number of common shares of
beneficial interest of the Company.
 

On August 16, 2002 and September 17, 2004, 18,497 and 41,596 units of limited partnership interest were converted to common shares, respectively.
 

As of December 31, 2004, the operating partnership had 383,090 units outstanding, representing a 1.3% partnership interest held by the limited
partners.
 
11. Share Option and Incentive Plan
 

In April 1998, the Board of Trustees adopted and the then current shareholders approved the 1998 share option and incentive plan that is currently
administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Trustees. The Company’s employees and the hotel operators and their employees generally are
eligible to participate in the 1998 share option and incentive plan. Independent members of the Board of Trustees continuing in office after an annual meeting
of shareholders of the Company receive automatic annual grants of 500 restricted common shares of beneficial interest.
 

The 1998 share option and incentive plan authorizes, among other things: (i) the grant of share options that qualify as incentive options under the Code,
(ii) the grant of share options that do not so qualify, (iii) the grant of share options in lieu of cash trustees’ fees, (iv) grants of common shares of beneficial
interest in lieu of cash compensation, and (v) the making of loans to acquire common shares of beneficial interest in lieu of compensation. The exercise price of
share options is determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Trustees, but may not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the common
shares of beneficial interest on the date of grant. Options under the plan vest over a period determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Trustees, which is generally a three-year period. The duration of each option is also determined by the Compensation Committee; however, the duration of
each option shall not exceed 10 years from date of grant.
 

On May 19, 1999, the common shareholders approved an amendment to the 1998 share option and incentive plan, increasing the number of common
shares of beneficial interest authorized for issuance under the 1998 share option and incentive plan from 757,000 to 1,500,000. On May 16, 2001, the
common shareholders approved an amendment to the 1998 share option and incentive plan, increasing the number of common shares of beneficial interest
authorized for issuance under the 1998 share option and incentive plan from 1,500,000 to 1,900,000. Accordingly, at both December 31, 2003 and 2002,
1,900,000 shares were authorized for issuance under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On January 29, 2002, the Company issued 12,331 common shares of beneficial interest, including 5,605 of deferred shares, to the independent
members of its Board of Trustees for a portion of their 2001 compensation.
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The common shares of beneficial interest were issued in lieu of cash at the trustees’ election. These common shares of beneficial interest were issued under the
1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On May 15, 2002, the Company granted an aggregate of 25,000 non-qualified stock options at a strike price of $14.88 to the independent members of
its Board of Trustees. The options granted vest over three years and expire on May 14, 2012. These options were issued under the 1998 share option and
incentive plan.
 

On October 29, 2002, the Company granted 6,400 restricted shares of common stock to the Company’s employees. The restricted shares granted vest
over three years, starting January 1, 2004. Compensation expense recognized for the restricted shares issued October 29, 2002, and classified as general and
administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $18, $24 and $4,
respectively. These restricted shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On January 27 and 28, 2003, the Company issued an aggregate of 9,792 common shares of beneficial interest, including 7,540 deferred shares, to the
independent members of its Board of Trustees for a portion of their 2002 compensation. The common shares were issued in lieu of cash at the Trustees’
election. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On January 29, 2003, the Company issued 500 common shares of beneficial interest to a newly appointed member of the Board of Trustees, Kelly L.
Kuhn. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On April 29, 2003, the Company granted an aggregate of 3,000 restricted shares of common stock to the Company’s Board of Trustees. These restricted
shares vest over three years. The Company measures compensation cost for restricted shares based upon the fair market value of its common stock at the
grant date. The fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant was $14.05. Compensation expense recognized for the restricted shares issued
April 29, 2003 and classified as general and administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003 was $14 and $9. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On October 21, 2003 the Company granted 126,186 restricted common shares of beneficial interest to the Company’s executive officers. The restricted
shares granted vest over three and four years, starting January 1, 2005. The Company measures compensation cost for restricted shares based upon the fair
market value of its common stock at the grant date. Compensation cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Compensation expense
recognized for these restricted shares and classified as general and administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $491 and $97, respectively. These restricted shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On October 21, 2003, the Company granted 5,250 restricted common shares of beneficial interest to the Company’s employees. The restricted shares
granted vest over three years, starting January 1, 2005. Compensation expense recognized for these restricted shares and classified as general and
administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $15 and $5, respectively.
These restricted shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On January 23, 2004 and January 29, 2004, the Company issued an aggregate of 6,761 common shares of beneficial interest, including 5,448 deferred
shares, to the independent members of its Board of Trustees for a portion of their 2003 compensation. The common shares of beneficial interest were issued in
lieu of cash at the trustees’ election. These common shares of beneficial interest were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On April 22, 2004, the Company granted an aggregate of 3,000 restricted common shares of beneficial interest to the Company’s Board of Trustees.
These restricted shares vest over three years. The Company
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measures compensation cost for restricted shares based upon the fair market value of its common stock at the grant date. The fair market value of the common
stock on the date of the grant was $21.22. Compensation expense recognized for the restricted shares issued April 22, 2004 and classified as general and
administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $14. These common shares were
issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On October 6, 2004, the Company granted 6,465 restricted common shares of beneficial interest to the Company’s employees. The restricted shares
granted vest over three years, starting January 1, 2006. The Company measures compensation cost for restricted shares based upon the fair market value of
its common stock at the grant date. The fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant was $29.05. Compensation expense recognized for the
restricted shares issued October 6, 2004 and classified as general and administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2004 was $12. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

During 2004, the Company issued an aggregate of 4,184 common shares of beneficial interest, including 3,376 deferred shares, to the independent
members of its Board of Trustees for a portion of their 2004 compensation. The common shares of beneficial interest were issued in lieu of cash at the trustees’
election. These common shares of beneficial interest were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

At December 31, 2004, there were 272,306 common shares available for future grant under the 1998 share option and incentive plan. There were no
stock options granted in 2004.
 

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:
 

  

2004

 

2003

 

2002

  

Shares

  

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

 

Shares

  

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

 

Shares

  

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

Options outstanding at beginning of year   742,368  $ 11.25  792,206  $ 11.38  785,706  $ 11.33
Options granted   —     —    —     —    25,000   14.88
Options exercised   (490,503)  11.42  (49,838)  13.27  (3,500)  8.99
Options forfeited   (5,332)  8.55  —     —    (15,000)  15.54
       
Outstanding at end of the year   246,533  $ 10.97  742,368  $ 11.25  792,206  $ 11.38
       
Weighted average remaining life outstanding   6.3 years      5.7 years      6.6 years    

Range of exercise prices  

$
$

8.55 to
18.00

 
     

$
$

8.55 to
18.00

 
     

$
$

8.55 to
18.00

 
    

Exercisable at end of the year   204,866  $ 11.20  539,311  $ 11.78  379,368  $ 12.62
Available for future grant at year end   272,306      283,032      428,911    
Weighted average per share fair value of options granted

during the year   n/a      n/a     $ 0.26    
 

The fair value of each stock option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted
average assumptions:
 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

 
Expected life   n/a  n/a  8.27 years
Expected volatility   n/a  n/a  23.94%
Risk-free interest rate   n/a  n/a  4.70%
Dividend yield   n/a  n/a  10.40%

 
F-28



Table of Contents

12. Financial Instruments: Derivatives and Hedging
 

The Company employs interest rate swaps to hedge against interest rate fluctuations. Unrealized gains and losses are reported in other comprehensive
income with no effect recognized in earnings as long as the characteristics of the swap and the hedged item are closely matched. On February 27, 2004, the
Company entered into a three-year fixed interest rate swap that fixes the London Interbank offered rate at 2.56% for $57,000 of the Company’s mortgage loan
secured by the Indianapolis hotel and therefore fixes the mortgage rate at 3.56%. As of December 31, 2004, there was $965 in unrealized gain included in
accumulated other comprehensive income. The hedge was effective in offsetting the variable cash flows; therefore no gain or loss was realized during the year
ended December 31, 2004.
 

The following table summarizes the notional value and fair value of the Company’s derivative financial instrument. The notional value at December 31,
2004 provides an indication of the extent of the Company’s involvement in these instruments at that time, but does not represent exposure to credit, interest rate
or market risks.
 

At December 31, 2004:
 

Hedge Type

 

Notional Value

 

Interest Rate

 

Maturity

 

Fair Value

Swap-Cash Flow  $57,000  2.555%  2/9/07  $965
 

At December 31, 2004, the derivative instrument was reported at its fair value of $965 and is included within prepaid expenses and other assets in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
 

Interest rate hedges that are designated as cash flow hedges hedge the future cash outflows on debt. Interest rate swaps that convert variable payments to
fixed payments, interest rate caps, floors, collars, and forwards are cash flow hedges. The unrealized gains/losses in the fair value of these hedges are reported
on the balance sheet with a corresponding adjustment to either accumulated other comprehensive income/loss or in earnings depending on the type of hedging
relationship. If the hedging transaction is a cash flow hedge, then the offsetting gains and losses are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income/loss.
Over time, the unrealized gains and losses reported in accumulated other comprehensive income/loss will be reclassified to earnings. This reclassification is
consistent with when the hedged items are also recognized in earnings. For the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company reclassified $504 and
$1,105 of accumulated other comprehensive loss to earnings as interest expense in conjunction with the interest rate swaps.
 

The Company hedges its exposure to the variability in future cash flows for transactions it anticipates entering into in the foreseeable future. During the
forecast period, unrealized gains and losses in the hedging instrument will be reported in accumulated other comprehensive income/loss. Once the hedged
transaction takes place, the hedge gains and losses will be reported in earnings during the same period in which the hedged item is recognized in earnings.
 
13. Participating Leases
 

The participating leases have non-cancelable terms ranging from five to 11 years (from commencement), subject to earlier termination upon the
occurrence of certain contingencies, as defined. Each participating lease requires the applicable lessee to pay the greater of (i) base rent in a fixed amount or (ii)
participating rent based on certain percentages of room revenue, food and beverage revenue and telephone and other revenue at the applicable hotel. Participating
rent applicable to room and other hotel revenues varies by lease and is calculated by multiplying fixed percentages by the total amounts of such revenues over
specified quarterly threshold amounts. Both the base rent and the participating rent thresholds used in computing percentage rents applicable to room and other
hotel revenues, including food and beverage revenues, are subject to annual adjustments based on increases in the United States Consumer Price Index
published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the United
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States of America Department of Labor, U.S. City Average, Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers. Participating lease revenues from non-LHL leased
properties, including participating lease revenues from discontinued operations, for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $18,635,
$21,284, and $31,326, of which $7,376, $8,578 and $9,949, respectively, was in excess of base rent.
 

Future minimum rentals from non-LHL leased properties (without reflecting future applicable Consumer Price Index increases) to be received by the
Company pursuant to the participating leases for each of the years in the period 2005 to 2009 are as follows. Rent from properties leased to LHL, a wholly-
owned subsidiary, is eliminated in consolidation.
 

2005   $11,654
2006    11,654
2007    11,654
2008    6,407
2009    923
   
   $ 42,292
   

 
14. LHL
 

A significant portion of the Company’s revenue is derived from operating revenues generated by the hotels leased by LHL.
 

Included in other indirect hotel operating expenses, including indirect operating expenses related to discontinued operations, are the following expenses
incurred by the hotels leased by LHL:
 

   

For the year ended December 31,

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

General and administrative   $ 24,433  $ 18,303  $ 14,604
Sales and marketing    18,534   13,143   10,058
Repairs and maintenance    11,579   8,601   6,873
Utilities and insurance    10,231   7,604   5,431
Management and incentive fees    9,279   7,175   7,281
Other expenses    3,762   1,730   1,720
       

Total other indirect expenses   $ 77,818  $56,556  $45,967
       

 
As of December 31, 2004, LHL leases the following 16 hotels owned by the Company:

 
 •  Seaview Marriott Resort and Spa
 •  LaGuardia Airport Marriott
 •  Harborside Hyatt Conference Center & Hotel
 •  Hotel Viking
 •  Topaz Hotel
 •  Hotel Rouge
 •  Hotel Madera
 •  Hotel Helix
 •  Holiday Inn on the Hill
 •  Sheraton Bloomington Hotel Minneapolis South
 •  Lansdowne Resort
 •  Westin City Center Dallas
 •  Hotel George
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 •  Indianapolis Marriott Downtown
 •  Hilton Alexandria Old Town
 •  Chaminade Resort and Conference Center
 

The two remaining hotels in which the Company owns an interest, excluding the joint venture that owns the Chicago Marriott Downtown, are leased
directly to affiliates of the current hotel operators of those respective hotels.
 

On January 25, 2002, the Company terminated its third-party operating lease on the Sheraton Bloomington Hotel Minneapolis South with Radisson
Bloomington Corporation and entered into a lease with LHL on essentially the same terms. There was no income or cost relating to the lease termination.
Radisson Hotels International, Inc. continued to operate and manage the hotel until March 16, 2004.
 

Effective March 16, 2004, LHL terminated its management agreement with Radisson Hotels and Resorts to manage the 565-room convention hotel in
Bloomington, Minnesota. The hotel was re-flagged as the Sheraton Bloomington Hotel Minneapolis South. Starwood Hotels and Resorts Worldwide, Inc. was
selected to manage the property as a Sheraton, Starwood’s upscale brand.
 

On December 20, 2002, Meridien Hotels, Inc. abandoned the New Orleans property. The Company entered into a lease with a wholly-owned subsidiary
of LHL and an interim management agreement with Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc., and re-named the hotel the New Orleans Grande Hotel. On April 29,
2003, the Company sold the New Orleans Grande Hotel and cancelled its operating lease with LHL (see Note 7).
 

On July 25, 2003, the Company sold the Holiday Inn Beachside Resort, located in Key West, Florida, and cancelled its operating lease with LHL (see
Note 7).
 

Effective July 14, 2003, LHL succeeded in evicting Le Meridien as tenant of the 407-room convention hotel in Dallas, Texas. The hotel was re-flagged as
the Westin City Center Dallas. Starwood Hotels and Resorts Worldwide, Inc. was selected to manage the property as a Westin, Starwood’s upscale brand.
 

During 2003, the Company purchased the Lansdowne Resort, located in Lansdowne, Virginia, and the Hotel George, located in Washington, D.C., and
entered into lease agreements with LHL.
 

During 2004, the Company purchased the Indianapolis Marriott Downtown located in Indianapolis, Indiana, the Hilton Alexandria Old Town located in
Alexandria, Virginia and Chaminade Resort and Conference Center located in Sanata Cruz, California, and entered into lease agreements with LHL.
 
15. Income Taxes
 

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Code commencing with its taxable year ended December 31,
1998. To qualify as a REIT, the Company must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement that it currently
distribute at least 90% of its adjusted taxable income to its shareholders. It is the Company’s current intention to adhere to these requirements and maintain the
Company’s qualification for taxation as a REIT. As a REIT, the Company generally will not be subject to federal corporate income tax on that portion of its net
income that is currently distributed to shareholders. If the Company fails to qualify for taxation as a REIT in any taxable year, it will be subject to federal
income taxes at regular corporate rates (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) and may not be able to qualify as a REIT for four subsequent
taxable years. Even if the Company qualifies for taxation as a REIT, the Company may be subject to certain state and local taxes on its income and property,
and to federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed taxable income. In addition, taxable income from non-REIT activities managed through taxable
REIT subsidiaries is subject to federal, state and local income taxes. LHL is a wholly-owned taxable-REIT subsidiary of the Company and as such is required
to pay income taxes at the applicable rates.
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The following is a reconciliation between the GAAP net income and taxable income for the REIT for the years ended December 31, 2004 (estimated), 2003
and 2002:
 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

 
   (estimated)        
GAAP Net income available to common shareholders   $ 10,691  $ 28,036  $ (3,939)

Add: LHL GAAP net loss    5,867   8,822   4,354 
Add: Preferred dividends paid    12,532   10,805   8,410 
Add: Book depreciation and amortization    39,046   33,702   31,230 
Less: Tax depreciation and amortization    (33,169)  (28,539)  (27,137)
Book/tax difference on gains/losses from capital transactions    1,248   (38,973)  —   
Other book/tax differences, net    (278)  815   2,821 

     
Adjusted taxable income subject to 90% dividend requirement   $ 35,937  $ 14,668  $ 15,739 
     

 
The following is a reconciliation between cash dividends paid on common shares of beneficial interest and preferred shares and the dividends paid

deduction for the years ended December 31, 2004 (estimated), 2003 and 2002:
 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

 
   (estimated)        
Dividends declared and claimed as a dividends paid deduction on common shares of

beneficial interest   $24,560  $19,503  $ 4,488 
Cash dividends paid on preferred shares    12,532   10,229   5,853 

Less: Dividends designated to prior year    —     (3,928)  (187)
Plus: Dividends designated from following year:              

Common shares of beneficial interest    —     1,690   3,928 
Preferred shares (1)    —     —     1,657 

Less: Portion designated return of capital    —     —     —   
      
Dividends paid deduction   $ 37,092  $ 27,494  $15,739 
      

(1)  The Company made an election pursuant to Section 858 of the Internal Revenue Code to have a portion of the distribution on preferred shares that was
paid on January 15, 2003 to shareholders of record on January 1, 2003 included as a 2002 distribution for purposes of the dividends paid deduction.
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For federal income tax purposes, the cash distributions paid to the Company’s common shareholders of beneficial interest and preferred shareholders
may be characterized as ordinary income, return of capital (generally non-taxable) or capital gains. The following characterizes distributions paid per common
share of beneficial interest and preferred share for the years ended December 31, 2004 (estimated), 2003 and 2002:
 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

 

   

$

  

%

  

$

  

%

  

$

  

%

 
   (estimated)              
Common shares of beneficial interest                   

Ordinary income   $ 0.8032  89.24% $ 0.8400  100.00% $ 0.4400  100.00%
Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain   $ 0.0968  10.76%  —    —     —    —   

           
   $ 0.9000  100.00% $ 0.8400  100.00% $ 0.4400  100.00%

           
Preferred shares (Series A)                       

Ordinary income   $ 2.2895  89.35% $2.5625  100.00% $1.4663  100.00%
Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain   $ 0.2730  10.65%  —    —     —    —   

           
   $2.5625  100.00% $2.5625  100.00% $1.4663  100.00%

           
Preferred shares (Series B)                       

Ordinary income   $ 1.8707  89.35% $ —    —    $ —    —   
Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain   $ 0.2230  10.65%  —    —     —    —   

           
   $ 2.0937  100.00% $ —    —    $ —    —   
           
 

Income tax benefit of $3,379 is comprised of state and local tax expense of $442 on the operating partnership’s income and federal, state and local tax
benefit of $3,821 on LHL’s loss of $9,688 before income tax benefit.
 

The components of the LHL income tax benefit were as follows:
 

   

For the year ended December 31,

 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

 
Federal:              

Current   $ —    $ —    $ —   
Deferred    (2,921)  (4,682)  (2,297)

State and local:              
Current    115   —     (7)
Deferred    (1,015)  (1,417)  (799)

     
Total income tax benefit   $ (3,821) $(6,099) $ (3,103)
     

 
The provision for income taxes differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the applicable U.S. statutory federal income tax rate to

pretax income as a result of the following differences:
 

   

For the year ended December 31,

 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

 
Computed “Expected” federal tax benefit (at 34.5%)   $ (3,342) $ (5,147) $(2,536)
State income taxes, net of federal income tax effect    (563)  (1,044)  (532)
Changes in valuation allowance    —     —     —   
Other, net    84   92   (35)
     

Income tax benefit   $(3,821) $(6,099) $ (3,103)
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The components of LHL’s deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:
 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

Deferred tax assets:             
Operating loss carryforward   $14,455  $10,379  $ 4,170
Allowance for doubtful accounts    45   45   45

       
Gross deferred tax assets    14,500   10,424   4,215
Deferred tax assets   $ 14,500  $ 10,424  $4,215
       

 
For the year ended December 31, 2004, LHL recorded an income tax benefit of $3,821 that is included in the accompanying consolidated financial

statements. The Company has estimated its income tax benefit using a combined federal and state rate of 41.5%. As of December 31, 2004, the Company had
a deferred tax asset of $14,500 primarily due to past and current year’s tax net operating losses. These loss carryforwards will expire in 2021 thru 2023 if not
utilized by then. Management believes that it is more likely than not that this deferred tax asset will be realized and has determined that no valuation allowance
is required. Reversal of deferred tax asset in the subsequent year cannot be reasonably estimated.
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16. Earnings Per Common Share
 

The limited partners’ outstanding limited partnership units in the operating partnership (which may be converted to common shares of beneficial
interest) have been excluded from the diluted earnings per share calculation as there would be no effect on the amounts since the limited partners’ share of
income would also be added back to net income. The computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share is presented below:
 

   

For the year ended December 31,

 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

 
Numerator:              

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders before discontinued
operations and dividends paid on unvested restricted shares   $ 6,273  $ (8,936) $ (6,155)

Discontinued operations    4,418   36,972   2,216 
     

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders before dividends paid on
unvested restricted shares    10,691   28,036   (3,939)

Dividends paid on unvested restricted shares    (232)  (215)  (123)
     

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders, after dividends paid on
unvested restricted shares   $ 10,459  $ 27,821  $ (4,062)

     
Denominator:              

Weighted average number of common shares—basic    26,740,506   20,030,723   18,413,602 
Effect of dilutive securities:              

Unvested restricted shares    258,820   250,171   275,582 
Common stock options    377,608   206,512   154,346 

     
Weighted average number of common shares—diluted    27,376,934   20,487,406   18,843,530 

     
Basic Earnings Per Common Share:              

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders per weighted average
common share before discontinued operations and after dividends paid on
unvested restricted shares   $ 0.23  $ (0.46) $ (0.34)

Discontinued operations    0.16   1.85   0.12 
     

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders per weighted average
common share, after dividends paid on unvested restricted shares   $ 0.39  $ 1.39  $ (0.22)

     
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share:              

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders per weighted average
common share before discontinued operations   $ 0.23  $ (0.43) $ (0.33)

Discontinued operations    0.16   1.80   0.12 
     

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders per weighted average
common share   $ 0.39  $ 1.37  $ (0.21)
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17. Comprehensive Income
 

For the year ended December 31, 2004, comprehensive income was $10,691. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003 the Company’s accumulated other
comprehensive gain was $965 and zero, respectively. The change in accumulated other comprehensive gain was entirely due to the Company’s unrealized
gains on its interest rate derivative. The interest rate derivative expires on February 27, 2007. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company
reclassified $504 and $1,105 of accumulated other comprehensive loss to earnings as interest expense.
 
18. Supplemental Information to Statements of Cash Flows
 

   

For the year ended
December 31,

 

   

2004

  

2003

  

2002

 
Interest paid, net of capitalized interest   $ 13,388  $ 14,891  $16,279 
     
Interest capitalized   $ 783  $ 289  $ 1,031 
     
Distributions payable (common shares)   $ 2,421  $ 1,720  $ 4,018 
     
Distributions payable (preferred shares)   $ 3,133  $ 3,133  $ 2,557 
     
Issuance of common shares for board of trustees compensation   $ 43  $ 36  $ 75 
     
In conjunction with the LHL lease transitions the Company assumed the following assets and liabilities:              

Accounts receivable, net   $ —    $ 9  $ 14 
Other assets    —     82   929 
Liabilities    —     (91)  (943)

     
Total net assets   $ —    $ —    $ —   

     
In conjunction with the hotel dispositions, the Company disposed of the following assets and liabilities:              

Sale of real estate   $(25,755) $(71,562) $ (817)
Mortgage loans assumed    —     58,072   —   
Other assets    63   (652)  —   
Liabilities    (268)  855   (11)
Gain/loss on sale of properties disposed of    (2,636)  (36,662)  —   

     
Disposition of hotel properties   $(28,596) $ (49,949) $ (828)

     
In conjunction with the hotel acquisitions, the Company assumed the following assets and liabilities:              

Purchase of real estate   $183,918  $141,908  $ —   
Mortgage loan assumed    —     (62,845)  —   
Other assets    1,010   7,189   —   
Liabilities    (3,908)  (11,357)  —   

     
Acquisition of hotel properties   $ 181,020  $ 74,895  $ —   

     
Exchange of units for common shares:              

Minority interest in operating partnership   $ (1,155) $ —    $ (244)
Common shares    —     —     —   
Additional paid-in capital    1,155   —     244 

     
   $ —    $ —    $ —   
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19. Pro Forma Financial Information (Unaudited)
 

The following condensed pro forma financial information is presented as if the following acquisitions as discussed in Note 3 had been consummated
and leased as of January 1, 2003.
 
 •  Lansdowne Resort
 •  Hotel George
 •  Indianapolis Marriott Downtown
 •  Hilton Alexandria Old Town
 •  Chaminade Resort and Conference Center
 

The following condensed pro forma financial information is not necessarily indicative of what actual results of operations of the Company would have
been assuming the acquisitions had been consummated and all the hotels had been leased at the beginning of the respective periods presented, nor does it
purport to represent the results of operations for future periods.
 

   

For the year ended
December 31,

   

2004

  

2003

Total revenues   $ 304,030  $ 276,107
Net income applicable to common shareholders of beneficial interest   $ 9,822  $ 29,813
Net income applicable to common shareholders of beneficial interest per weighted average

common share:         
basic (after dividends paid in unvested restricted shares)   $ 0.36  $ 1.48
diluted (before dividends paid on unvested restricted shares)   $ 0.36  $ 1.46

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:         
basic    26,740,506   20,030,723
diluted    27,376,934   20,487,406

 
20. Subsequent Events
 

On January 1, 2005, the Company re-purchased 32,867 common shares of beneficial interest related to executives and employees surrendering shares to
pay taxes at the time restricted shares vested. The Company re-issued these 32,867 treasury shares related to (i) compensation to the Board of Trustees and (ii)
issuance of restricted common shares of beneficial interest to the Company’s executive officers.
 

On January 1, 2005, the Company issued an aggregate of 1,071 common shares of beneficial interest, including 865 deferred shares, to the
independent members of its Board of Trustees for their fourth quarter 2004 compensation. The common shares were issued in lieu of cash at the trustee’s
election. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On January 6, 2005, the Company acquired a 100% interest in the Hilton San Diego Gaslamp Quarter, a 282-room upscale full-service hotel located in
the Gaslamp historic district in downtown San Diego, CA, for $85.0 million. The source of the funding for the acquisition was the Company’s senior
unsecured bank facility. The property is leased to LHL, and Davidson Hotel Company was retained to manage the property.
 

On January 10, 2005, the Company acquired a 100% interest in the Grafton on Sunset, a 108-room, upscale full-service hotel located in West
Hollywood, CA, for $25.5 million. The source of the funding for the acquisition was the Company’s senior unsecured bank facility. The property is leased
to LHL, and Outrigger Lodging Services was retained to manage the property.
 

On January 14, 2005, the Company declared monthly cash distributions to shareholders of the Company and partners of the operating partnership, in
the amount of $0.08 per common share of beneficial interest/unit for each of the months of January, February and March 2005.
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On January 14, 2005, the Company paid its December 2004 monthly distribution of $0.08 per share/unit on its common shares of beneficial interest
and units of limited partnership interest to shareholders and unit holders of record as of December 31. 2004.
 

On January 14, 2005, the Company paid its preferred distribution of $0.64 per Series A Preferred Share for the quarter ended December 31, 2004 to
preferred shareholders of record at the close of business on January 1, 2005.
 

On January 14, 2005, the Company paid its preferred distribution of $0.52 per Series B Preferred Share for the quarter ended December 31, 2004 to
preferred shareholders of record at the close of business on January 1, 2005.
 

On January 25, 2005, the Company granted 40,917 restricted common shares of beneficial interest to the Company’s executive officers. The restricted
shares granted vest over three years, starting January 1, 2007. These common shares were issued under the 1998 share option and incentive plan.
 

On February 15, 2005, the Company paid its January 2005 monthly distribution of $0.08 per share/unit on its common shares of beneficial interest
and units of limited partnership interest to shareholders and unit holders of record as of January 31, 2005.
 
21. Quarterly Operating Results (Unaudited)
 

The Company’s unaudited consolidated quarterly operating data for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands, except per share data)
follows. Certain 2003 items have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation of discontinued operations. In the opinion of management, all
adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) necessary for a fair presentation of quarterly results have been reflected in the data. It is also
management’s opinion, however, that quarterly operating data for hotel enterprises are not indicative of results to be achieved in succeeding quarters or years.
 

  

Year Ended December 31, 2004

 

  

First
Quarter

  

Second
Quarter

  

Third
Quarter

  

Fourth
Quarter

 
Total revenues from continuing operations  $ 50,647  $ 79,206  $ 82,269  $ 69,709 
Total expenses from continuing operations   54,197   69,792   72,276   66,761 
     
Net income (loss) from continuing operations   (3,550)  9,414   9,993   2,948 
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations   496   818   3,179   (75)
     
Net income (loss)   (3,054)  10,232   13,172   2,873 
Distributions to preferred shareholders   (3,133)  (3,133)  (3,133)  (3,133)
     
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders  $ (6,187) $ 7,099  $ 10,039  $ (260)
     
Earnings per weighted average common share

outstanding—basic:                 
Income (loss) applicable to common shareholders before

discontinued operations and after dividends paid on unvested
restricted shares  $ (0.28) $ 0.24  $ 0.25  $ (0.01)

Discontinued operations   0.02   0.03   0.11   —   
     

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders after
dividends paid on unvested restricted shares  $ (0.26) $ 0.27  $ 0.36  $ (0.01)

     
Earnings per weighted average common share

outstanding—diluted:                 
Income (loss) applicable to common shareholders before

discontinued operations  $ (0.27) $ 0.23  $ 0.24  $ (0.01)
Discontinued operations   0.02   0.03   0.11   —   

     
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders  $ (0.25) $ 0.26  $ 0.35  $ (0.01)

     
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:                 

Basic   24,045,610   26,395,156   27,805,183   28,684,261 
Diluted   24,729,272   26,917,093   28,351,296   29,266,357 
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Year Ended December 31, 2003

 

   

First
Quarter

  

Second
Quarter

  

Third
Quarter

  

Fourth
Quarter

 
Total revenues from continuing operations   $ 30,249  $ 44,987  $ 61,022  $ 52,760 
Total expenses from continuing operations    35,124   46,222   54,913   50,890 
      
Net income (loss) from continuing operations    (4,875)  (1,235)  6,109   1,870 
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations    1,120   36,025   (298)  125 
      
Net income (loss)    (3,755)  34,790   5,811   1,995 
Distributions to preferred shareholders    (2,557)  (2,558)  (2,557)  (3,133)
      
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders   $ (6,312) $ 32,232  $ 3,254  $ (1,138)
      
Earnings per weighted average common share outstanding

—basic:                  
Income (loss) applicable to common shareholders before

discontinued operations and after dividends paid on
unvested restricted shares   $ (0.40) $ (0.21) $ 0.17  $ (0.06)

Discontinued operations    0.06   1.95   (0.01)  0.01 
      

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders after
dividends paid on unvested restricted shares   $ (0.34) $ 1.74  $ 0.16  $ (0.05)

      
Earnings per weighted average common share outstanding

—diluted:                  
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders

before discontinued operations   $ (0.39) $ (0.20) $ 0.16  $ (0.06)
Discontinued operations    0.05   1.90   (0.01)  0.01 

      
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders   $ (0.34) $ 1.70  $ 0.15  $ (0.05)

      
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:                  

Basic    18,483,506   18,517,924   20,738,660   22,337,143 
Diluted    18,838,009   18,911,328   21,197,051   22,945,864 
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LASALLE HOTEL PROPERTIES
 Schedule III — Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

As of December 31, 2004
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

 

  

 

 

Encum-
brances

 

Initial Cost

 

Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to Acquisition

 

Gross Amounts at Which
Carried at Close of Period

 

Accumulated
Depreciation

 

Net Book
Value

 

Date of
Original

Construction

 

Date of
Acquisition

 
Life On
Which

Depreciation
in Income

Statement is
Computed

    

Land

 

Building and
Improvements

 

Furniture,
Fixtures

and
Equipment

 

Land

 

Building and
Improvements

 

Furniture,
Fixtures

and
Equipment

 

Land

 

Building and
Improvements

 

Furniture,
Fixtures

and
Equipment

     
1.

 
Sheraton Bloomington
Hotel  $ 27,801 $ 8,172 $ 11,258 $ 13,811 $—   $ 4,412 $ 11,604 $ 8,172 $ 15,670 $ 25,415 $ 23,994 $ 25,263 1969 12/01/95 3-30 years

2 .
 
Westin City Center
Dallas   14,864  2,452  20,847  2,166  —    2,070  7,141  2,452  22,917  9,307  11,497  23,179 1980 04/29/98 3-30 years

3.
 
Marriott Seaview
Resort   —    7,415  40,337  2,339  182  4,882  11,966  7,597  45,219  14,305  20,893  46,228 1912 04/29/98 3-30 years

4.
 
Le Montrose All Suite
Hotel   14,048  5,004  19,752  2,951  —    2,572  3,923  5,004  22,324  6,874  9,262  24,940 1976 04/29/98 3-30 years

5 .
 
LaGuardia Airport
Marriott   —    8,127  32,139  3,976  —    4,304  5,989  8,127  36,443  9,965  15,205  39,330 1981 04/29/98 3-30 years

6.
 
San Diego Paradise
Point (2)   63,866  —    69,639  3,665  —    20,864  10,515  —    90,503  14,180  30,294  74,389 1962 06/01/98 3-30 years

7.

 

Harborside Hyatt
Conference Center &
Hotel   42,500  —    66,159  5,246  —    639  4,149  —    66,798  9,395  23,180  53,013 1993 06/24/98 3-30 years

8 .  Hotel Viking   —    2,421  24,375  353  77  12,789  4,828  2,498  37,164  5,181  9,779  35,064 1850 06/02/99 3-30 years
9.  Topaz Hotel   —    2,137  8,549  —    12  3,894  2,513  2,149  12,443  2,513  2,939  14,166 1963 03/08/01 3-30 years
10.  Hotel Madera   —    1,682  6,726  —    15  4,950  2,439  1,697  11,676  2,439  2,236  13,576 1963 03/08/01 3-30 years
11.  Hotel Rouge   —    2,162  8,647  —    17  4,952  3,752  2,179  13,599  3,752  3,631  15,899 1963 03/08/01 3-30 years
12. Hotel Helix   —    2,636  10,546  —    13  8,486  4,714  2,649  19,032  4,714  3,739  22,656 1962 03/08/01 3-30 years
13.

 
Holiday Inn on the Hill
Hotel   —    8,353  33,412  2,742  —    3,733  4,625  8,353  37,145  7,367  8,040  44,825 1968 06/01/01 3-30 years

14.  Lansdowne (1)   —    27,421  74,835  3,114  44  828  4,114  27,465  75,663  7,228  5,294  105,062 1991 06/17/03 3-30 years
15. Hotel George   —    1,743  22,221  531  —    215  373  1,743  22,436  904  1,151  23,932 1928 09/18/03 3-30 years
16.  Indianapolis Marriott   57,000  —    96,173  9,879  —    81  262  —    96,254  10,141  4,883  101,512 2001 02/10/04 3-30 years
17.  Alexandria Hilton   34,230  11,079  45,539  2,597  —    —    105  11,079  45,539  2,702  1,188  58,132 2000 05/28/04 3-30 years
18. Chaminade   —    5,240  13,111  299  —    —    —    5,240  13,111  299  83  18,567 1985 11/18/04 3-30 years

                     
  Total $254,309 $ 96,044 $ 604,265 $ 53,669 $ 360 $ 79,671 $ 83,012 $ 96,404 $ 683,936 $ 136,681 $ 177,288 $ 739,733      

                     
 (1)  Total Investment in hotel properties does not include $32,495 of property under development for the Lansdowne Resort.
(2)  Total Investment in hotel properties does not include $13 of property under development for the San Diego Paradise Point.
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LASALLE HOTEL PROPERTIES
 

Schedule III—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation—Continued
As of December 31, 2004

 
Reconciliation of real estate and accumulated depreciation:
 
Reconciliation of Real Estate:      
Balance at December 31, 2001   $652,218 

Improvements and additions to hotel properties    33,964 
Disposal of hotel    (902)

   
Balance at December 31, 2002    685,280 

Acquisition of hotel properties    127,540 
Improvements and additions to hotel properties    25,384 
Disposal of hotel    (94,542)

   
Balance at December 31, 2003    743,662 

Acquisition of hotel properties    183,917 
Improvements and additions to hotel properties    24,369 
Disposal of hotel    (34,927)

   
Balance at December 31, 2004   $ 917,021 
   

Reconciliation of Accumulated Depreciation:      
Balance at December 31, 2001   $ 102,203 

Depreciation    33,348 
Disposal of hotel    (85)

   
Balance at December 31, 2002    135,466 

Depreciation    33,501 
Disposal of hotel    (21,281)

   
Balance at December 31, 2003    147,686 

Depreciation    38,827 
Disposal of hotel    (9,225)

   
Balance at December 31, 2004   $ 177,288 
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Exhibit 21 – List of Subsidiaries
 

LaSalle Hotel Properties
LaSalle Hotel Operating Partnership
LHO Hollywood Financing, Inc. (QRS)
LHO New Orleans Financing, Inc.
LHO Financing, Inc.
LHO Hollywood LM, LP
LHO New Orleans LM, LP
LHO Financiing Partnership I, LP
LHO Viking Hotel, LLC
LHO Harborside Hotel, LLC
LHO Mission Bay Hotel, LP
LaSalle Washington One Lessee, Inc
LaSalle Washington Two Lessee, Inc
LaSalle Washington Three Lessee, Inc
LaSalle Washington Four Lessee, Inc
LHO Washington Five Lessee, LLC
LHO Washington Hotel One, LLC
LHO Washington Hotel Two, LLC
LHO Washington Hotel Three, LLC
LHO Washington Hotel Four, LLC
I&G Capital, LLC
LaSalle Hotel Lessee, Inc.
LHO Dallas One Lessee LLC
LHO Dallas Beverages, Inc
LHO Bloomington One Lessee, LLC
LHO Carlyle 540, LLC
Chicago 540 Hotel, LLC
540 Leaseco, LLC
Chicago 540 Lessee, Inc.
LHO Leesburg One Lessee, Inc
LHO Washington Hotel Six, LLC
LHO Washington Six Lessee, Inc
LHO Indianapolis One Lessee, LLC
LHO Indianapolis Hotel One MM LLC
LHO Indianapolis Hotel One CMM Inc
LHO Indianapolis Hotel One LLC
LHO Alexandria One, LLC
LHO Alexandria One Lessee, LLC
LHO Santa Cruz Hotel One, LLC
LHO San Diego Hotel One, LLC
LHO San Diego Hotel One, L.P
LHO Santa Cruz Hotel One, L.P.
LHO San Diego One Lessee, Inc
LHO Santa Cruz One Lessee, Inc.
LHO Grafton Hotel, L.P.
LHO Grafton Hotel Lessee, Inc.
LHO Grafton Hotel, L.L.C.
LHO Onyx One Lessee, L.L.C.
LHO Onyx Hotel One, L.L.C.



Exhibit 23
 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
 
The Board of Trustees
LaSalle Hotel Properties:
 
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-104056, 333-86911 and 333-72265) and on Form S-3 (Nos.
333-104054, 333-51476, 333-44872, 333-76373 and 333-77371) of LaSalle Hotel Properties of our reports dated February 23, 2005, with respect to the
consolidated balance sheets of LaSalle Hotel Properties as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, and the related financial statement schedule, management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 and the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, which reports appear in the December 31, 2004 annual report on Form 10-K of LaSalle Hotel Properties.
 
(signed) KPMG LLP
 
Chicago, Illinois
February 23, 2005



Exhibit 31.1
 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 32 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
 
I, Jon E. Bortz, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of LaSalle Hotel Properties;
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter of 2004 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;
and

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the

registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

 
Date: February 23, 2005
 

/s/    JON E. BORTZ        
Jon E. Bortz

Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 32 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
 
I, Hans S. Weger, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of LaSalle Hotel Properties;
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter of 2004 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;
and

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the

registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

 
Date: February 23, 2005
 

/S/     HANS S. WEGER        
Hans S. Weger

Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
 

Certification Pursuant To
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to

Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
 

In connection with the Annual Report of LaSalle Hotel Properties (“LHO”) on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2004 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jon E. Bortz, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of
LHO, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 
 (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
 
 (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of LHO.
 
February 23, 2005
 

/s/    JON E. BORTZ        
Jon E. Bortz

Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2
 

Certification Pursuant To
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to

Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
 

In connection with the Annual Report of LaSalle Hotel Properties (“LHO”) on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2004 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Hans S. Weger, Executive Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of
LHO, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 
 (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
 
 (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of LHO.
 
February 23, 2005
 

/S/    HANS S. WEGER        
Hans S. Weger

Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
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